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Financial Highlights and Calendar
MBHER Y B

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE
Year ended 31 March 2025 2024 Change
HE=A=1T—HItFE —ECEF —E g S E
HK$000 HK$'000 %
FET FET Bt
Revenue WA 8,568,317 8,691,449 (1.4)
Profit attributable to equity holders RATIRIERE A 232,744 330,454 (29.6)
of the Company FEAE R
Adjusted EBITDA* A EBITDA* 687,657 798,315 (13.9)
Total assets BELE 5,980,230 6,513,924 (8.2)
Net assets BEFE 2,744,736 2,910,513 (5.7)
Basic earnings per share BREREH HK$0.4138 7T HK$0.57 & 7T (28.1)
Interim and final dividends per share &R HI K R EARL & HKA40 cents &1l HK57 cents 71l (29.8)
Net assets per share BREEFE HK$4.73 8T HK$4.97 87T (4.8)
*  Operating profit excluding fair value changes on investment properties, depreciation and * BRIEEWMEZATEZE  WEREE(CTIEREERESE
amortization (excluding depreciation for right-of-use assets — properties), reversal of impairment e - %) Y% BERXMENCHAREE 2 RERE
loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, impairment loss of property, plant e WE BELRXBNEREEEZRERE K8
and equipment and right-of-use assets; and including finance cost of lease liabilities EHEEBEZVBRAZ €& RT|
FINANCIAL CALENDAR
ji% H e
Announcement of Interim Results 28 November 2024
BHEE R —2-mEt—A=A
Interim Dividend HK15 cents per share paid on 24 December 2024
IR G5B ER-E-mE+= A=+ AREN
Announcement of Annual Results 16 June 2025
PEEENM “ZE-RERATRA
Annual General Meeting ("AGM") 19 August 2025
BREFAE ZE-RFNATNA

For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM
RIETLERRREEFAEREMER

Closure of Register of Members: 14 August 2025 to 19 August 2025
TEHIBAD BB (both days inclusive)
“E-RENATREE_E-_RFNATIE
(BEEMABEEA)
Record date: 19 August 2025
SR E —T-RFENATNA
Proposed Final Dividend HK25 cents per share payable on 4 September 2025
Ed 2 RBBRE FR25EW - RZE_RFNAEBIKN
For determining entitlement to the final dividend
RETYE R B AIERE
Closure of Register of Members: 26 August 2025
EEmEiRinhBFELR - —E_RFENAZTRA
Record date: 26 August 2025
EaszaEl-i —E_RFENAZTRA



Chairman’s Message
X JF R &F

The year under review was marked by continued economic volatility. Globally,
geopolitical uncertainties continued to weigh on markets and international
trade flows. These macroeconomic concerns in turn affected the regional
economy, resulting in tighter budgets and more cautious consumers.

Locally, Hong Kong found itself in a state of transition as it fine-tunes its
role in the global and regional economy, with changes in local consumption
patterns and labour demographics. Although it may take some time to
reach a new equilibrium, | am confident that the Group’s management team
has embraced the current situation, and has taken swift action to reposition
our operations and business models for continued success.

Despite the challenges of the past year, | am pleased to report that the
Group delivered revenue of HK$8,568.3 million and profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$232.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Although performance was affected during the year under review, | remain
confident in the Group’s prospects for many reasons. Even in this uncertain
global environment, our business in China has continued to grow and
expand. At the same time, the diversity of our business has shielded us from
many of the challenges faced by our competitors. Positive results from our
Institutional Catering business, for example, made steady contributions to
our bottom line; while the deep-rooted community relationships we have
built over five decades continue to deliver returns in customer loyalty and
goodwill.

TRANSFORMING FOR THE FUTURE

The uncertainty we have witnessed over the past year is a sign of a longer-
term transformation in markets worldwide, as geopolitical forces settle into
a new dynamic. These changes are not just temporary, but evidence of a
longer-term, fundamental shift in the global, regional and local economy.

Although the Group’s business was impacted during the year under review,
our management team has accepted and embraced the current economic
challenges, and is adapting the business to thrive in the new environment
through constant self-improvement, accelerating the Group’s transformation
in line with our long-term philosophy of “keeping pace with the times”.
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Putting these values into practice through forward thinking and pre-emptive
planning, we are updating our restaurant portfolio, recruiting fresh talent,
and adopting new technology to transform the business for the future. The
strength and value of the Café de Coral brand bridges both Hong Kong and
the Greater Bay Area (GBA), and we will continue to grow together with the
community — well positioned in one of the world’s most dynamic economic
regions.

Our commitment to fundamentals and integration of our Hong Kong and
GBA operations is paying off — paving the way for the Group to become one
of the largest catering groups in the region. After opening a record number
of new stores in the GBA last year, we continued to expand and upgrade
our network in Mainland China — experimenting with new store formats
and layouts to maximise efficiency. Today, our network spans over 500
stores in Hong Kong, Macau and 9 key cities in Mainland China, supported
by a staunchly engaged customer base and about 2 million registered Club
100 members in Hong Kong, plus over 6.6 million registered loyalty club
members in Mainland China.

INVESTING IN OUR COMMUNITY

The Group’s ability to thrive and grow in challenging times comes in no small
part thanks to our deep-rooted relationships with the community — which
has been one of our key strengths since we opened our first shop in 1969.
Since then, Café de Coral’s reputation as “the neighbourhood canteen”
has been a source of pride and strength — and also a tangible business asset
— as we have grown together with our local communities. Amongst our
customers, we are known for serving local favourites and comfort food with
a heartfelt smile, while delivering exceptional value to people from all walks
of life.
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Let me share a story that illustrates this bond. In January 2025, we closed
our first shop in Foshan to move to a newer, more accessible location.
Opened in 1993, this store had become a beloved fixture of the community,
serving generations of families for over 30 years. As a thank you to our
staff and customers for their long-term support, we held a commemorative
closing ceremony at the old location, which rekindled deep emotional
connections to our brand. Countless customers turned to social media to
share their warm sentiments and fond memories at Café de Coral; and the
event drew viral media attention — generating over 10 million exposures in
local and national news outlets, including official channels such as Xinhua
News Agency and China News Service. Although time marches on and
shops come and go, the Group's deep emotional ties with our customers
and communities are assets that span generations.

Recognising that our business and our community must grow together, we
have made a point of giving back to our society — and lending a helping
hand to our neighbours in their times of need. To this end, our “Bon Appetit
Café” food assistance programme has provided over 700,000 meals to
beneficiaries and carers in Hong Kong, understanding that a warm meal
and a caring heart can make a world of difference in difficult times. This
year, we worked with our newly launched soft gourmet brand “Taste Joy”
to create nutritious, flavourful meals for those with special dietary needs and
swallowing difficulties.
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Believing that “charity begins at home”, we remain committed to taking
care of our people with the same compassion and generosity we extend
to our family. In a recent interview aired on Phoenix Hong Kong Channel, |
shared a story of how my father, the Group’s Founder, set up the “Lo Tang
Seong Educational Foundation” in 1997 to help our employees’ children
achieve their dreams of attending university. In the programme’s first year,
only 4 students qualified for the scholarship. This year, | am delighted to
report that we granted scholarships to 205 young pupils; and to date, we
have awarded over HK$40 million to nearly 1,000 employees — providing
brighter futures to the families that have helped our business grow over the
years.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| must sincerely thank our management and staff for their hard work and
perseverance during these challenging times. And as always, | would like to
express my gratitude to our Board of Directors, investors, business partners
and customers for their continued support.

With our new CEO and management team in place, commitment to
continuous self-improvement, and our strong brand reputation in one of the
world’s fastest-growing markets, | hold full confidence in the Group’s long-
term prospects and future success.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 June 2025
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Business Highlights
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CAFE DE CORAL ®

CAFE DE CORAL GROUP KEY STRATEGIC BUSINESSES

Mainland China
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Hong Kong Casual Dining
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Others
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Revenue Distribution
WA %

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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Total Operating Units: 566

EEEVAY
(As of 31 March 2025)
(BE=—Z2-RF=A=1+—H)

IIII No. of new shops (Since 1 April 2024): 45

250  Total ##: 224 FAEHE (BT -MNFENA—R)
New shops
HDIE: 10
200 Total #824: 185
New shops
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150
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A TE-
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ANNUAL RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
(Year Ended 31 March 2025)

The Group’s revenue for the year decreased by 1.4% to HK$8,568.3
million. Profit attributable to shareholders declined by 29.6% to
HK$232.7 million. Excluding the fair value loss of investment properties,
profit attributable to shareholders declined by 25.2%.

The restaurant sector in Hong Kong and Mainland China faced a severe
downturn during the year, marked by a weak economy and consumer
sentiment. The adverse market conditions were compounded by
outbound spending behaviour of Hong Kong residents and fierce price
competition in the Mainland China market, which impacted the Group's
results for the year, especially during the traditional peak seasons around
festive periods and long holidays in the second half of the year.

Navigating the headwinds, the Group focused on value offers, menu
mix adjustment, hero product promotions, as well as membership
loyalty strategies to create sales demand. Digitalisation and automation
were prioritised to enhance customer experience, uplift manpower
productivity and boost work efficiency, whilst optimising cost controls to
protect profit.

The Group’s business in Mainland China demonstrated its resilience
during this difficult period by maintaining stable profit margins and
steady expansion of its network in the Greater Bay Area.
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Market conditions have experienced a fundamental shift and evolved
into a new norm. The Group is enhancing its business models to adapt
to fast changing consumer behaviours and fluctuating demand. We will
continue to optimise our store network and consolidate our multi-brand
portfolio to thrive in the new operating environment.

A final dividend of HK25 cents per share is recommended (FY2023/24:
HK42 cents), with a total dividend payout ratio of 99.7% for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESNWR D

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2025 decreased by 1.4%
to HK$8,568.3 million (FY2023/24: HK$8,691.4 million). Profit attributable
to shareholders amounted to HK$232.7 million, a 29.6% decline as
compared to that of HK$330.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Excluding the fair value loss of investment properties, the Group recorded
a 25.2% decline in profit attributable to shareholders for the year under
review.

The restaurant sector in Hong Kong and Mainland China faced a severe
downturn during the year under review, marked by depressed economic
conditions and weak consumer sentiment in both regions. The adverse
market conditions were compounded by outbound spending behaviour of
Hong Kong residents and fierce price competition in the Mainland China
market. These effects impacted the Group’s revenue and profit for the year,
especially during the festive Christmas and Lunar New Year periods in the
second half of the year, which were traditionally the peak season for the
Group's Quick Service Restaurant and Casual Dining businesses.

Taking swift action, the Group reinforced measures to strengthen robustness
across its operations, focusing on value offers, menu mix adjustments and
hero product promotions, as well as membership loyalty strategies to create
demand and drive sales. Digitalisation and automation remained our key
strategies to enhance customer experience, uplift manpower productivity
and boost work efficiency, whilst optimising cost controls to protect profit.

The Group's Institutional Catering business returned to normal operating
conditions with steady profit during the year under review, an example of
the competitive edge provided by our diverse business portfolio amidst an
unstable economy.

The Group’s business in Mainland China demonstrated its resilience during
this difficult period by emphasising value-for-money and promotional offers.
The business outperformed the general market with stable profit margins
and steady expansion of our shop network in the Greater Bay Area (GBA),
which is expected to drive continued, sustainable growth in the coming
years.
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Changes in the market conditions of Hong Kong's and Mainland China’s
restaurant sectors are evidence of a fundamental shift into a new normal.
Proactively addressing this situation, the Group is reinventing and adjusting
its business models for the new operating environment, focusing on
efficiency, flexibility and agility to quickly adapt to fast changing consumer
behaviours and fluctuating demand. The Group will also continue to
consolidate its multi-brand portfolio, as well as optimise its store network by
exploring new shop formats and opportunities in high-potential locations
while consolidating underperforming shops.

Through integration of our well-established business platforms in Hong
Kong and across the GBA, as well as the broad diversity of our business
portfolio which caters to a wide range of customers and needs, we are
confident in our ability to weather the current storm and thrive as the
market continues to evolve.

Having grown together with our customers for generations, the Group
has developed deep, caring relationships with the communities in which
we operate. Addressing aging demographics in Hong Kong, the Group
introduced specially-crafted soft meals branded “Taste Joy” during the year,
helping individuals with chewing and swallowing difficulties to rediscover
the joy of eating. We are the first fast food chain to serve soft meal at our
dine-in restaurants, offering classic Hong Kong flavours such as “Soy Sauce
Chicken Leg” and “Peking Style Pork Ribs” that meet IDDSI (International
Dysphagia Diet Standardisation Initiative) Levels 4 and 6 catering to elderly
diners.

Against the backdrop of a challenging market, the Group continued to earn
recognition from the industry and the wider business community. We were
named a “Diamond Enterprise” in GS1 Hong Kong’s Quality Food Scheme
Plus 2024, and recognised by the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing as “55
Years Golden Jubilee Hong Kong Power Brand 2023/2024". The Group
was named a “2024 Quality Service Retailer of the Year” by the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association, and also received the “Sustainable
Corporate (Social Responsibility) Outstanding Award” at the Standard
Chartered Corporate Achievement Awards 2024. Our efforts in ESG
(Environmental, Social and Governance) were acknowledged at the ESG
Commendation Awards hosted by Sing Tao News Corporation and The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. And in Mainland China, we were named
one of “Hurun China Top 100 Restaurant Brands 2024" by Hurun, as well
as one of “Guangdong’s Time-honoured Brands” by the Department of
Commerce of Guangdong Province.
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RESULTS OVERVIEW EERE
Revenue PN

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recorded revenue of EZE_ZT-_RAF=A=+—HILFE - £EK

HK$8,568.3 million, a 1.4% decrease as compared to HK$8,691.4 million in BUA 85683 AEB T BT =/ —MNE

FY2023/24. Revenue by business division is set out below: E8,6914BEBBILBA1.4% - FERAIKRE
BRI

FY2024/25 FY2023/24 Change
—E-N-REE T =/—NFE BE
HKS$'m HK$’'m %
BEET H&E5T BZ
Hong Kong BB
Quick Service Restaurants RRER 5,121.3 5,138.1 (0.3)
Casual Dining NGRS/ 823.2 879.2 (6.4)
Institutional Catering KSR 999.6 1,019.6 (2.0)
Others* E 129.0 139.2 (7.4)
Subtotal INEF 7,073.1 7,176.1 (1.4)
Mainland China AR A i 1,495.2 1,515.3 (1.3)
Group 58 8,568.3 8,691.4 (1.4)
*  Mainly represents income from food processing and distribution and rental income * FEARMMIMSHEARBSHA
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Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin decreased to 10.4% during the year (FY2023/24:
11.4%), primarily due to the decline in sales amidst the weak economy
and consumer sentiment, compounded by outbound spending behavior of
Hong Kong residents and fierce price competition in Mainland China.

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses decreased by 1.7% to HK$494.5 million
(FY2023/24: HK$503.2 million).

ARBEEBFR AR 2024/25 F3#

ERZE
FEREMNERFPE104% (ZBE = /M4
B 11.4%)  TEAREETSR - BBEMX
55 MEBEBMRINEEE U KRPRAH T
GERGEHR - BRHETE -

THEHR
THERRDI1TI%E4AU4 5B ERET(ZZ
Z=/ZWFE 5032 HERIT) ©

Key Costs FERAR
The breakdown of major expenses is set out below: FERHINAT
FY2024/25 FY2023/24
—ECNRHEE —E-= EE
HK$'m % of revenue HK$'m % of revenue
BEET WAL (%) BEBT WAL (%)
Cost of raw materials R R B AR
and packing 2,329.0 27.2 2,384.6 27.4
Staff cost AL 2,946.1 344 2,914.7 335
Rental costs* HERA* 988.5 11.5 959.3 11.0

* Includes rental related depreciation in right-of-use assets, finance cost of lease liabilities, rental
costs of short-term leases and low-value leases, as well as turnover rent and gain on modification
and termination of leases

Other Income and Other Losses, Net

Other income and other losses, net increased by HK$40.0 million, mainly
due to the increase in impairment loss of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment totalling HK$25.5 million and increase in fair value loss
on investment properties by HK$6.3 million.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by 42.6% to HK$32.3 million (FY2023/24:
HK$56.3 million).
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders Hﬁ%%ﬁkﬁéﬁ;‘* |

The Group’s profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 29.6% to ~ BEE_T_AF=A=+—HILFE - REFH
HK$232.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2025 (FY2023/24: HK$330.5 ﬁAmas&lmu W 29.6% £232.7EES
million), primarily due to a severe downturn in the restaurant business and T(ZZE ==/ —F¥E :3305588/87T)
FEHREERPEAMBERERNETE - H
BEOED

weak consumer sentiment in both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

FY2024/25 FY2023/24 Change
ZECZHFE —EC=/CNEE )
HK$'m HK$'m %
BE®ET B&E&T Bk
Profit attributable to equity holders ARHEFE B A (G 5 A 232.7 3305 (29.6)
If excluding: fied L
Fair value loss on investment EMEN QT EEE
properties 38.2 31.9
Adjusted profit attributable to RARRERE AEMEEF
equity holders 270.9 362.4 (25.2)
Segment Results pag e 3
Hong Kong segment results decreased by 15.2% to HK$525.1 millionin ~ M -Z M/ ~“HFEZ - FE ”*Eﬁ,%/ﬁi?
FY2024/25 (FY2023/24: HK$618.9 million) and Mainland China segment 152% 25251 BEEB (T = “WF
results decreased 9.4% to HK$162.6 million (FY2023/24: HK$179.4 milion)  E :6189R&EE L) - RE A H A FKEF

during the year.

Basic Earnings Per Share
The Group's basic earnings per share decreased by 28.1% to HK41 cents for
the year ended 31 March 2025 (FY2023/24: HK57 cents).

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK25 cents
per share to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2025 (FY2023/24:
HK42 cents). Together with the interim dividend of HK15 cents per share
paid during the year, the dividend payout ratio for the year is 99.7%.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As of 31 March 2025, the Group had a network of 381 stores in Hong
Kong (31 March 2024: 380) and 185 stores in Mainland China (31 March
2024:171).

Hong Kong Retail Operations

Quick Service Restaurants (QSR)
Revenue from the QSR division decreased by 0.3% to HK$5,121.3 million
during FY2024/25 (FY2023/24: HK$5,138.1 million). Café de Coral fast
food and Super Super Congee & Noodles recorded same store sales
decline of 3% and 2%, respectively. The business operated 224 total shops
at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 219).

As mentioned in the Group’s interim results announcement, the
unexpectedly slow economy in Q1 initially caught the business off guard.
Taking swift measures to address the situation, the QSR business launched
super value meals, brand-building campaigns, and above-the-line advertising
campaigns.

Café de Coral fast food gained popularity and patrons from price-sensitive
customer segments with our value-focused “ X XHB{ETE Gii& " campaign.
The business adopted a value strategy to drive additional breakfast and
lunch traffic, and strengthened its branding in baked rice with a campaign
highlighting new dishes such as Japanese-style baked chicken and eel rice
(B /348 B ZEH\ 8R), appealing to local tastes with high-perceived-value
surf and turf (K KA offerings. Strengthening the value proposition at
dinner time, we launched high value takeaway dishes including our HK$30
BBQ pork promotion and HK$99 two-person winter melon combo meals.
These initiatives invigorated demand, and mitigated economic challenges in
Q2.

ARBEEBFR AR 2024/25 F3#
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However, the external environment worsened in the second half of the
financial year — and especially during the traditional peak festive (Christmas
and Chinese New Year) season with long holidays in Q3 and Q4 — as
outbound spending and outbound tourism continued to batter Hong
Kong's economy. The Group’s QSR business model, with its emphasis on
volume and scale, was deeply impacted by this trend — which particularly
affected stores in northern districts.

Navigating the headwinds, the Group focused on value offers, menu mix
adjustments, hero product promotions, as well as membership loyalty
strategies to drive sales and create demand.

Providing exceptional value-for-money, Café de Coral fast food launched a
curry soft shell crab promotion in Q3 to drive lunch and dinner sales. As the
only fast food restaurant offering this premium ingredient, the promotion
created market noise and consumer demand, which uplifted sales in the
challenging second half of the year.

Leveraging our 2 million-strong loyalty club membership base to drive sales,
we launched a Club 100 coupon promotion in Q3, aimed at maximising
visitor frequency and per-visit spending. Catering to the vibrant silver
economy, we launched a new membership segment — senior Club 100
membership — for JoyYou card holders. Focused promotions including
HK$1 milk tea and HK$28 tea sets, as well as a special collaboration with
the JoyYou festival, helped to boost significant growth in the senior Club
100 membership segment. From Q4 onwards, we introduced targeted
promotions utilising our Customer Data Platform to further drive sales with
tailored offers.

The Group also enhanced the online-to-offline customer journey by
leveraging our eatCDC.com platform to drive online sales with special
offers and cash coupons. Further efforts in digitalisation and automation
have fuelled the continued rollout of ordering kiosks in shops, as well as
revamped mobile ordering and a new e-wallet functionality in the Club 100

app.
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We have continued efforts to enhance manpower productivity and
operational efficiency, and to streamline and simplify inter-departmental
processes and communications through digitalisation and automation.
The Group will continue to balance cost lines while driving sales to protect
margins. We have been aggressively negotiating with landlords to secure
favourable shop lease renewal terms, and are focusing on revamping our
business model to optimise our store portfolio in terms of store size, rental
costs, sales and profit — as well as consolidating underperforming stores.

In recognition of our efforts, Café de Coral fast food won the “Best CRM
Campaign” and “Best Video Campaign” awards, and was named a Top
10 Finalist in the O+0O Retail category at the “Digital Ex Awards 2024" held
by Metro Finance FM104. We also won a “Digital Brand Award 2024"
from Metro INFO Live, a “Best Engagement Strategy” award at the Spark
Awards 2025, as well as an “Excellence in Viral Marketing” award from
MARKETING-INTERACTIVE. Café de Coral fast food's Cityplaza outlet also
received a “Three Leaf Rating” from Swire Properties’ Green Leaf Initiative.
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Super Super Congee & Noodles was also affected by the unfavourable
market conditions during the year. To drive foot traffic, the business adjusted
its product mix, promoting value-for-money products such as Hainan
chicken and claypot rice. Focusing on core menu items throughout the year,
we enhanced the congee category mix to drive margin growth and also
featured hero products with premium ingredients through initiatives such
as a successful claypot rice promotion in the winter months. The “Claypot
Rice with Abalone Thousand-Person Challenge” event held during the year
received a World Record Certificate from the World Record Association. At
the same time, seasonal and festive lines were upgraded, and more online
platforms were developed to drive additional sales.
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To rejuvenate the brand, Super Super Congee & Noodles expanded into
new districts, launching new strategies and communications to drive brand
awareness and refresh brand vitality to attract more customers in younger
age groups. Customers were effectively engaged through various in-store
activities including a chicken mascot tour, wonton lucky draw campaign,
claypot rice man performances, red packet premiums and other events.

Café de Coral fast food opened 4 new stores during the year, ending
the year with 174 stores (31 March 2024: 172). Super Super Congee
& Noodles opened 6 new stores, operating 50 stores at the end of the
financial year (31 March 2024: 47). At present, 5 new QSR shops are in the
pipeline.
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Casual Dining

The Casual Dining business was particularly impacted by the adverse
economy and outbound spending shift, as consumers became more price
sensitive. Revenue decreased by 6.4% during the year to HK$823.2 million
(FY2023/24: HK$879.2 million).

The business focused efforts on brand building campaigns and dedicated
itself to creating better value for customers by offering creative products
and services. More emphasis has been put on margin improvement across
all brands through reengineering menus, improving menu offerings,
streamlining workflow and enhancing productivity.
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Oliver's Super Sandwiches collaborated with nutrition consultant/
chef/health influencer Hilda Leung to introduce a healthy, low-carb “EAT
to FIT” menu. This promotion enhanced the brand's healthy image and
brought new customers to the brand, drawing positive responses from in-
store customers and on social media. During the year, we continued this
collaboration to introduce low-carb Winter and Spring menus, leveraging a
comprehensive below-the-line marketing strategy, social media and CRM
marketing push to attract new customers and drive repeat purchases.

Shanghai Lao Lao continued efforts to introduce a diverse range
of seasonal menus featuring themed products throughout the year
— showcasing the brand’s craftsmanship while focusing on customer
satisfaction. The brand also partnered with different food-delivery platforms
(e.g. FoodPanda) to drive sales, and embarked on a multi-channel
advertising campaign leveraging street posters, tram shelters, MTR digital
posters, television commercials and in-app push notifications to enhance its
presence in the competitive food delivery sector.

The business will cautiously continue to develop promising brands, while
consolidating underperforming brands. The Casual Dining division operated
57 shops at the end of the financial year (31 March 2024: 62). Mixian
Sense opened 2 new shops, and together with Shanghai Lao Lao the
two brands operated 18 and 12 stores, respectively, as of 31 March 2025
(31 March 2024: 18 and 12, respectively). The Spaghetti House operated
6 shops at the end of the year (31 March 2024: 7), while Oliver's Super
Sandwiches operated 18 stores at the financial year end (31 March 2024:
20).
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Institutional Catering

The Institutional Catering business saw a return to normal operating
conditions with stable performance during the year under review, leveraging
its market leadership position as a preferred strategic partner to build scale.
Revenue decreased by 2.0% to HK$999.6 million (FY2023/24: HK$1,019.6
million).

Asia Pacific Catering successfully renewed major contracts, while applying
a strategic renewal process to rationalise underperforming branches. It also
continued to extend its business in the educational and hospital sectors,
introducing new products to drive customer traffic and repeat visits. The
business will continue to explore new opportunities to improve its revenue
base and margin performance. Asia Pacific Catering ended the year with
100 operating units (31 March 2024: 99).

Offering new menus with a greater variety of premium ingredients,
Luncheon Star improved contract renewals during the year under review.
In addition to maintaining its core student meal operations, it is actively
exploring new business opportunities aimed at parents, teachers and other
customers with special dietary requirements.

Mainland China Operations

Revenue from Mainland China operations decreased by 1.3% to
HK$1,495.2 million (FY2023/24: HK$1,515.3 million). Revenue from the
South China fast food business slightly increased by 0.4% to RMB1,357.9
million, with same store sales decline of 8%.

The economy in Mainland China remained sluggish with subdued
consumer sentiment. The catering sector in particular was marked by fierce
competition, including aggressive price-cutting tactics. Working proactively
to address the situation, the Group leveraged its strong brand positioning,
focusing on essential daily needs and deep-rooted connections with local
communities to fine-tune its business models. As a result, the Group’s
Mainland China business outperformed the market, maintaining healthy
profit margins and steady network expansion in the GBA.
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The business continued to focus on prudent expansion and optimisation of
our store network. During the year, we opened 21 new stores — focusing on
expansion into untapped trade areas, as well as adjusting store formats and
business models to enhance market penetration. As of 31 March 2025, the
Group operated 185 stores in Mainland China (31 March 2024: 171), with
16 new stores in the pipeline.

Investing in product innovation to drive sales, the Group launched various
new product lines throughout the year, including its highly popular Unagi
(eel) Rice — and enhanced hero products such as its “Signature Baked
Rice” and “Signature Curry” series, which significantly enhanced customer
appeal and the brand’s innovative image. To reinforce our value-for-money
proposition, we implemented a series of strategies such as maintaining
consistent, value-oriented prices, offering discounted upgrades within set
meals, and providing premium ingredients at affordable prices. We also
introduced new value-focused lines, including “Happy Work Meals” and
“Low-Carb Balanced Meals”. Together, these initiatives effectively attracted
new and price-sensitive customers, broadened the price spectrum of our
offerings, and enhanced the breadth and appeal of our menu portfolio.

The Group’s successful “—F KZKZE" (Good Morning, Café de Coral)
campaign promoted nutritious, health-oriented meals to effectively spur
growth of the breakfast segment. In addition, Kids’ meals, launched in
partnership with internationally-loved characters such as Ultraman and
Peppa Pig, continued to strengthen the brand’s presence and reputation in
the family dining segment.

Our strategic focus and digital transformation continued to drive sales,
enhance efficiency and improve productivity. Launched in 2022, our
Mainland China membership programme has over 6.6 million registered
members today, and contributes a significant amount of revenue from an
active membership base. Combined with other omni-channel membership
programmes (including UnionPay, Dianping and Douyin), we have amassed
over 9.8 million followers — enabling the Group to employ sustained
marketing programmes that directly target our customers.
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The "S5k o LEFEE AZRLE | “ (Enjoy Happiness at Café de Coral)
campaign continued to reinforce the Group's brand positioning in Mainland
China. The campaign achieved over 300 million exposures on Douyin
over the past two years, marking a major milestone in brand visibility and
influence. This year, we launched adult-targeted strategic collaborations
with popular characters including Transformers and Doraemon, which
helped to rejuvenate the brand and deepen penetration into the youth
and family customer segments. In recognition of our efforts, the Group’s

“Transformers x Signature Baked Rice” campaign won a “Gold Award for
Brand Innovation” at the “2024 Golden Glad Awards”.

Leveraging collaborations with popular athletes and artists, the Group
partnered with Olympic gymnastics champion Liu Xuan to launch the
“MECEESNTE" (Be your own champion) brand campaign, which
won a Bronze Award at the 8th “DMAA International Digital Marketing
Awards”. A strategic partnership campaign with Hong Kong pop group
Twins to promote our Signature Curry range delivered significant growth.
The campaign also won a Bronze award at the “TBI Outstanding Brand
Innovation Awards”.

Other industry recognition included being named as one of the “Top 100
Guangdong Catering Companies 2023"” and “Top 20 Brands of Fast Food
Chain 2023" by the Guangdong Catering Service Association, as well as
one of the “Top 100 Brands of Guangdong Chain Operation 2023" by the
Guangdong Chain Operation Association. The Group was named one of the
“Top 100 Catering Companies in China” by the China Cuisine Association,
and also received a “2024 Golden Flag Award”.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

The Group’s financial position remained healthy during the year under
review. As of 31 March 2025, the Group had cash of approximately
HK$1,054 million, with HK$813 million in available banking facilities. The
Group’s current ratio as of the same date was 0.8 (31 March 2024: 0.9) and
the cash ratio was 0.6 (31 March 2024: 0.7). The Group had borrowings of
HK$305 million (31 March 2024: HK$385 million) and a gearing ratio of nil
(ratio of total borrowing less cash and cash equivalents to total equity) (31
March 2024: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group's capital expenditure (excluding
right-of-use assets) was HK$294 million (FY2023/24: HK$318 million). As
at 31 March 2025, the Group’s outstanding capital commitments were
HK$395 million (31 March 2024: HK$516 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2025, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$1,281 million (31 March 2024: HK$1,920 million) to financial
institutions in connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
The Group had no charge on assets as of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:
nil).

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
while those of our Mainland China businesses were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2025, the Group had a workforce of 18,970 employees (31
March 2024: 19,569).
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Committed to its core value of People-Oriented focus, the Group
consistently drives ongoing communication to foster an open and inclusive
workplace. Following the successful leadership transition of our CEO,
internal communication activities were held across the organisation from
April 2024 to ensure consistent delivery of the new CEO’s messages and
boost engagement. This included a series of 12 interactive engagement
sessions, such as a townhall, CEO breakfast meeting, one-on-one sessions
with the CEO, and a China immersion tour — attended by 800 staff
from Hong Kong and Mainland China, covering regional and branch
management across all business segments.

We focus on succession planning with a well-established, systematic
selection and promotion mechanism, along with tailored development
programmes supporting leadership and strategic growth. Extensive
training is provided to staff to cultivate future leaders, enhance workforce
competitiveness and to differentiate the Group as an employer of choice.
Qualifications Framework accredited training on shift and store management
is provided to potential branch managers; while tailored mindset and
management training — such as project management and collaboration,
“Luncheon Star Culture Day”, and our “100-Day project” on quality
and service for Casual Dining teams — is provided to regional and branch
managers. Training on important topics including Al transformation, anti-
deception, IT security, anti-bribery and corruption are offered to appropriate
staff to boost awareness and knowledge.

The Group reviews internal equity and market benchmarking on pay level
regularly. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Qualified employees are entitled
to participate in profit-sharing bonus and performance incentive plans, and
Long-Term Incentive schemes to reward staff for their contributions and

achievements.

A journey of process improvement and technology adaptation is
continuously improving organisational efficiency and staff work experience.
Internal processes are challenged and streamlined, while workflows have
been digitalised, especially between branches and head office. Meanwhile,
smart office and HR systems are continuously being upgraded and
improved.
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Our staff fun club, powered by volunteer members across different levels
from all business units and departments, continues to organise leisure
activities, wellness workshops and lively social events — all designed to
enhance engagement and nurture the well-being of our staff members.

The Group is committed to supporting the development of employees’
families through the “Lo Tang Seong Educational Foundation”, which has
provided scholarships to nearly 1,000 employees’ children over 26 years,
awarding over HK$40 million in total. This year alone, over 200 children
received support from the Foundation, demonstrating our commitment to
fostering educational opportunities and empowering the next generation.

Acknowledging the contributions of our long-serving employees, we present
"Give Me Five” Long Service Awards to employees who have completed
five or more years of service. This year, over 1,530 employees across Hong
Kong and Mainland China received this award, with over 370 having served
for 15 years or more. This year, five employees were honoured for providing
40 years of service.

Faced with structural shrinkage of the labour force in Hong Kong, the Group
has continued to focus on resourcing, with effective mechanisms to support
recruitment such as promotions at job fairs, forming partnerships with
NGOs and internally promoting staff referrals through our bonus scheme.
To facilitate early talent acquisition, the Group has also collaborated with
tertiary institutions to organise summer internships and student placement
programmes.

The Group has been recognised with a number of awards for our efforts
to build a positive, safe and diverse workplace that fosters personal and
professional growth. 2024/25 marked the sixth year we received a “Happy
Company Label” from the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the fourth year we were
recognised at the “Best HR Awards 2024" organised by CTgoodjobs — with
a Gold award for “Best Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Strategy” and a Grand
award for “Best Employee Health & Safety Programme”; and the “Employer
of Choice Award 2024" organised by JobMarket. We were also awarded
the “Good Employer Charter 2024" by the Labour Department of the Hong
Kong SAR Government.
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SUSTAINABILITY

The Group remains strongly committed to ESG initiatives as a core
component of our strategy and operations. We have been a constituent
of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index for ten
consecutive years with an “AA" rating. During the year under review, the
Group received the “Outstanding ESG Corporate Award” from HKO1, was
recognised for the “Best ESG Report” at the TVB ESG Awards 2024, and
was also honoured at the "ESG Green Development & Carbon Neutrality
Awards 2024" organised by am730.

Now in its third year, the Group’s “Bon Appetit Café” CSR programme has
expanded its scope and mission. Collaborating with the Group’s newly-
launched “Taste Joy” soft gourmet brand, the programme has extended
support to include individuals with chewing and swallowing difficulties.
“Taste Joy" provides nutritious and flavourful gourmet meals with a softer
consistency, professionally crafted to meet IDDSI (International Dysphagia
Diet Standardisation Initiative) Level 4 and Level 6 standards, as well as
Guideline of Care Food Standards promoted by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service. During the year, “Bon Appetit Café” distributed soft gourmet
meal coupons to reach more people in need, continuing our commitment
to community care.

To celebrate the Lunar New Year with the community, we partnered with
the Hong Kong Society for the Aged (SAGE) to host a “Chinese New Year
Poon Choi Fest” at one of our Café de Coral fast food restaurants in
Tsuen Wan. Virtually connecting SAGE's 23 service units — including nursing
homes, day care centres, elderly centres and integrated home care services
— we brought together 1,600 seniors and caregivers for a Lunar New Year
celebration, treating them to a newly launched soft Poon Choi meal created
by Taste Joy.

In Mainland China, the Group partnered with community welfare
organisations to launch a food assistance programme, inviting underprivileged
children and their families to enjoy meals at Café de Coral, as well as
complimentary kids' meal toys. This was commended as a “2024 e CSREREK
BT EFAZM] " (List of CSR World Innovation 2024) by CSRWorld.
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During the year under review, the Group extended its climate risk
management efforts by collecting Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions data,
enabling us to better understand our contributions to decarbonisation. \We
also hosted Sustainability Training Workshops for our Board of Directors
and management teams in Hong Kong and China to foster our culture
of sustainability, enrich knowledge on the latest ESG trends, update our
materiality matrix and plan for future initiatives.

Full details of our sustainability programmes can be found in the Group’s
Sustainability Report 2024/25.

PAER - 1S9 WIRRE KA,
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OUTLOOK

The global and regional economies are expected to remain volatile, and

changing market conditions in the regions where we operate warrant the
need for transformation to adapt and thrive in tomorrow’s economy.

Hong Kong's economy is shifting to a new norm, experiencing structural
changes as it continues to integrate with the GBA. Acknowledging that
sales volumes will be more volatile in the coming future, the Group is re-
rigging its operations with more flexible business models better suited to
managing fluctuating demand. Greater emphasis will be placed on driving
consumer demand and optimising our store network, while consolidating
the strength of the Group’s multi-brand portfolio.
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Putting customer experience first, we will continue to focus on providing
exceptional value while committing our highest priority to food quality
and service, driving hero products, and enhancing digital interfaces to
appeal to consumers from all walks of life. We will continue to engage and
attract new target segments with menu creation into new categories, and
exciting, value-focused promotions — while reaching out to our strong base
of loyalty club members for their continued support. Priority will also be
given to optimising the Group’s network portfolio in terms of store sizes and
locations, while consolidating underperforming shops.

While focusing on the basic fundamentals of food quality, service and
cleanliness, the Group is also maintaining its ongoing efforts to control
costs, enhance manpower productivity and introduce new technology
and automation. At the same time, continuous initiatives to digitalise
our operations and internal processes will reap further gains in efficiency,
helping to protect margins in the new market environment.

Fierce competition in the restaurant sector continues to impact the
Mainland China market, which has also been affected by global economic
turbulence and uncertainty. However, with the Group’s focus on providing
high-value basic necessities, as well as our focus on building community
relationships and disciplined network expansion, we are confident in moving
forward based on these established, proven strategies for success. Further
opportunities lie ahead in the form of shared food factories and combined
strategic sourcing for our Hong Kong and Mainland China operations, and
the Group expects to derive additional benefits as our operations continue
to grow in the GBA.

While the operating environment is transforming into a new normal,
the Group is confident in leveraging its market leadership position and
reputation for value in a market for daily essential needs. With the breadth
and diversity of the Group’s business portfolio across the GBA, as well as
our continuous focus on constant improvement, we remain positive in our
ability to adapt the business to not only survive — but thrive — as the market
settles into its new economic rhythm.
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Directors and Senior Management

SEERSAETEAR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 69, is the Chairman of the Company and
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in
1982 and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation
as a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. As Chairman, Mr Lo is responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, and a relative of Mr Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan,
all of whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of Victor Reach
Investments Limited which has discloseable interests in the shares of the
Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 72, joined the Group in 1982. Ms Lo has
been an Executive Director of the Company since 1990 except the period
from September 2016 to December 2017 which she was re-designated as
a Non-executive Director. She ceased to be an Executive Director in April
2019 and is currently a Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee. Ms Lo has extensive experience in the fast food industry. She
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong
Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, and a relative of Mr Chan

Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all
of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Café de Coral Holdings Limited

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 73, joined the Group in 1984 and
was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr Chan led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the Executive
Chairman from 1997 to 2012. He was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the Company
from April 2012 to March 2016. Mr Chan is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Having worked as a professional town planner
for various government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has
considerable experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services Association and an
Adjunct Professor of The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of
Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup
Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of
the Company.

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 71, joined the Group in 1984 and
has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui
is currently a member of the Audit Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United
Kingdom.

32

BRI EE 1+ =5 BR—NA/AEFMAR
EBYR—NN\NFEZEALARRES - R
EER—NNANEZE—NANEFEEITERER
HEAKE  RE-NAEFEZZT—ZFH
THRITEE - R T —FMAATAIER
TEE YH-_ T —FNAE-_ZT—AE=
AEERRARERE -BREERATHEESK
B -RAELREBERNEABRTRETESE
EWMREIRD - HMERZ 2 EEREINEEL
BoBRAELEHANEASEAERELE KK
SRBEMRBTREELTSN  WHEIEE
BREELTBUREEEMAS Y RER LTI

g .

REERBEMBRERELR - BEIRER
B eBEEARBBEERBRFEHI -

PREFBEAZSRB DN E] [ BEEES
HERE | [RFEHEHERRE] - [H#Y
EEHR | HERIIKEBeta Gamma Sigma &
[ 2K BERE | ZFREK o

REERBENKEERAR] - EAHBIER
BRAT - HinBIRE (BR) BRAR - BK
FHEEERARLARBEEEBRARZ
BYFMTES  UANBEERERARZHFE
WITES ZXFRRZBMNEOREEHARS
PRAR AR ER LM o

BAANEAREERMALE BES
+ - BREGERBEEREE I -

AFRERE % R NAN\EFMAR
SE  WH-NANEFREEADBZERITE
Fo-FAERRERZEGNE - KEHEEFEHR
REN GRIZEF B K EE Brunel University
TEEEELTEM -



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 69, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan (“KYC"), Solicitors. Prior to founding KYC, he worked
in a number of international law firms, including Baker McKenzie, Simmons
& Simmons (Partner), Andersen Legal (Managing Partner, Greater China),
Mallesons Stephen Jaques (Managing Partner, Mainland China and Hong
Kong) and King & Wood Mallesons (Managing Partner, Asia Strategy &
Markets). Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with
combined Degrees in accounting/economics and laws respectively as well
as a Master’s Degree in laws. He also obtained the Advanced Management
Program diploma from the Harvard Business School. He is qualified to
practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong, Australia, England and Wales and
Singapore. He is also qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England and
Wales and a CPA in Hong Kong and Australia.

Mr Kwok has served regularly on Government boards and committees.
Previously, he was Chairman of the Transport Advisory Committee,
Chairman of the Independent Police Complaints Council, Convenor of
the Disciplinary Appeals Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, Chairman of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance
Advisory Committee, Chairman of the Appeal Board of the Criminal &
Law Enforcement Injuries Compensation Boards, Vice-Chairman of the
Consumer Council and Deputy Chairman of the Appeal Board under
the Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance. Currently, he is Chairman of the
Buildings Appeal Tribunal Panel and arbitrator of the Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 74, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2013 and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr Au is the Honorary Chairman of BDO Limited,
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited. He has more
than 45 years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au was
the President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.
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Café de Coral Holdings Limited

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2023 and is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms Fang is a director and Chief Executive
Officer of Fang Brothers Holdings Limited. She has been in the garment
industry for over 19 years with extensive knowledge and experience in the
retail markets in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the United States. Ms
Fang also has over 14 years of experience in banking and investment and
she was the Head of the Middle Markets Division of ABN AMRO Bank prior
to joining Fang Brothers Holdings Limited.

Ms Fang is currently a Member of the Election Committee of HKSAR,
a Committee Member of the Nantong City Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the Chairlady of the Garment Advisory Committee
of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a Member of the Advisory
Committee on Hong Kong Polytechnic University School of Fashion and
Textiles, a Member of the Clothing Industry Training Authority and the
Chairman of its Committee on Staff Establishment, a Member of the Board
of Trustees of Yau Yat Chuen School, and the Vice Chairman of Hong
Kong Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association. Ms Fang
graduated from the Wellesley College of the United States and obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and Mathematics.

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick, aged 63, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since September 2024. Mr Lee is the
co-founder for several innovative technology ventures including Rabbit
Energy Limited and Asia Carbon Neutral Limited. Mr Lee is an experienced
business leader and entrepreneur serving in various senior executive roles
at leading multinational corporations over three decades. He is currently
the Chief Strategic Officer of EPRO Advance Technology Ltd., a Consultant
of The Greater Bay Area Xiaohongshu E-commerce Operation Center-
HKSAR Region. Mr Lee is also the Advisor of The Payment Cards Group Ltd.,
Wizpresso and EASi Green Technology Limited.

Mr Lee is actively involved in the Hong Kong business community. He is
currently a member of the Corporate Innovation Index Project Team at
The Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK") Business School, and
the Convenor of The Smart City Working Group of Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce. Mr Lee holds a Bachelor's Degree and Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from CUHK in Marketing.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 63, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a director of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo joined the Group in
1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998. Mr Lo was appointed
as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September
2015 and had been the Chief Executive Officer from April 2016 to March
2024. Mr Lo is responsible for corporate activities to support the Board in
enhancing shareholder value. He had been playing an important role in
crafting the Group’s long-term strategic plan and overseeing the Group's
business development and operations. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Electronic Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough University
of Technology, a Master's Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University of
London and an Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director and a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a director of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive
Director of the Company from 2010 until his re-designation as an Executive
Director in March 2016. Mr Lo is responsible for corporate activities to
support the Board in enhancing shareholder value. He was in charge of
property and branch development, project and facilities management,
guantity surveying and business analysis of the Group during March 2016
to March 2022. He had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager
(Food Manufacturing) of the Group from November 2003 to June 2009. Mr
Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts, specialist in Economics from University
of Toronto and an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of LBK Holding Corporation and
MMW Holding Corporation, each of which has discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chief Executive Officer

Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony, aged 54, joined the Group in February 2019
and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She also serves as a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. As the Chief Executive Officer,
Ms Leung oversees the business in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
providing visionary leadership to set the strategic direction of the Group for
sustainable growth and profitability. Furthermore, she is also responsible
for the overall management of the organisation, providing oversight of all
operational aspects of the Group and driving its overall success. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms Leung had over 25 years of experience in retail and
fast moving consumer goods industries across Asia Pacific region where she
held senior management positions with leading multinational corporations
with extensive experience in general management, brand marketing as well
as strategic business development. She holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 54, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (Mainland China) of the Group. He also serves as a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Yang is responsible
for strategic planning, business operation and market development of
the Group’s catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. He is also
in charge of the administrative functions of Mainland China operations,
including finance, information technology, legal and human resources.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr Yang had over 20 years of rich management
experience gained from various international corporations where he
was responsible for leading corporate strategic business development,
formulating operation direction and expanding business in Asia Pacific
region. Mr Yang holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration jointly
from the J.L. Kellogg School of Management of Northwestern University
and the School of Business and Management of The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology.
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Mr Tsang Yin Chiu, Stanley, aged 50, joined the Group in October 2012
and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He also serves as a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Tsang is responsible for financial
strategy and management as well as corporate compliance of the Group.
He is also in charge of branch development and project management of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Tsang held financial management
positions in various listed companies with businesses in different industries.
Mr Tsang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and is a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a Chartered Financial
Analyst.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders &
Stakeholders
BRREF0E

Sustainability &
Growth
AEERERIEE Board & Board
Committees

EERRESR
BTEER

People & Planning
ANERRIRE
Management Board
B

Risk Management
[z e R

Corporate
Management
TEER

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Adhering to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), the Directors’ Handbook of
Corporate Governance adopted by the Board guides the Group’s corporate
governance framework and practices. For the year ended 31 March 2025,
the Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as they
are relevant and practicable.
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OUR PURPOSE, CORE VALUES, STRATEGY AND
CULTURE

The Board is responsible for setting the Group's purpose, values and
strategy; and ensuring their alignment with our corporate culture.

Café de Coral Group pioneered the concept of Chinese fast food,
integrating both Chinese and Western culinary traditions to build our
reputation as “Hongkonger’s canteen”. We are committed to spreading
this spirit throughout the region, fulfilling our role as a community dining
hall by offering delicious, nutritious and hygienic food at reasonable prices —
with the goal of bringing happiness to our customers, employees and
shareholders.

Our corporate culture is built around a dedication to continuous learning
and improvement, which compels us to innovate and adapt to the
changing environment. Applying these principles, we approach setbacks
with a positive attitude, and learn from adversity to better face the
challenges of the future.

Committed to the highest standards of governance, transparency and
integrity, our management team leads by personal example, setting
a high bar for business ethics by living up to our core values: Pursuit of
Excellence, People-Oriented, Integrity, Keeping Up with the Times and
Creating Sustainable Value.

Pursuit of

Excellence
‘ BREH ’

We balance the needs of customers,

employees, society and the environment

to create sustainable value.
TEEHE  REEE
HEMREEMHER -

8T

Creating
Sustainable Value
HETWRHEEE
Core Values
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Integrity

We prioritise food quality and excellent service
to meet the needs of our customers.
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People-Oriented
BARZ

We respect and care for

every partner, share our
achievements and help each
other grow.
NEENEERENE - BT

o fIRBHDERR - HBEMT

/We uphold honesty and integrity in all our
actions.
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The Board ensures these values are embedded throughout the Group,
shaping our corporate culture and forming the foundation of the Group’s
business models and long-term success. The Group's operating practices,
workplace policies and stakeholder relationships give us the opportunity
to bring our culture and values to life, supported by a strong governance
framework, disciplined risk management and effective internal controls,
which create long-term value for Shareholders through continued,
sustainable business development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

Directors

The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick (Appointed on 6 September 2024)

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company, retired at the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on
5 September 2024. The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude for
Mr Li's invaluable contributions to the Company during his tenure of office.
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Biographies, including relationships between members of the Board (if
any) are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the
Company’s Annual Report 2024/25.

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care,
skill and diligence. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are
required, external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses. Comprehensive liability insurance
coverage is in place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors
and senior management.

The Board conducts periodically evaluation of its performance with a view
to enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and corporate governance. The
last Board evaluation assisted by an external professional advisor helped
the Board in identifying and strengthened areas for improvement of the
Board's operations, including extra focus on corporate vision and strategy,
management succession plan, Directors’ involvement, as well as better
collaboration and communication with management.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony (“Ms Leung”) respectively. Ms
Leung was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2024. Her
biography is set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of
the Company’s Annual Report 2024/25. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships) between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. Their responsibilities are
clearly established and set out in the charter adopted by the Board (the
“Board Charter”).

The Chairman, being a Non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board’s
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.
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The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. Her main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies as
well as monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.

The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of each of the
four Independent Non-executive Directors during the year and the Company
considered them still independent.

The Board reviews from time to time its mechanisms of ensuring independent
views and inputs are available to the Board and considers them effective. A
summary of the established mechanisms is set out below:

° Structure of the Board and its Committees

v The Board maintains a balanced composition of Executive, Non-
executive and Independent Non-executive Directors to ensure a
strong independent element in the Board.

v/ Majority members of all the Board Committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

v The Nomination Committee reviews the Board’s structure, size
and composition annually.

o Appointment process of Independent Non-executive Directors
v Assessment of suitability of candidates is based on the Board

adopted procedures, including consideration of background and
personality, integrity and reputation, other commitments, etc.
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The Nomination Committee conducts annual review of Independent
Non-executive Directors’ independence, taking into account the
following criteria:

v Fulfiiment of independence criteria required by the Listing Rules;

v Possession of required character, integrity, perspective, skills and
experience to fulfil the role of an independent director; and

v Expression of objective views, provision of independent advice
and guidance, as well as exercise of independent judgement
relating to the affairs of the Board and the Company.

The Board conducts evaluation of its performance periodically
for Directors to express their views for ongoing enhancement of

operations of the Board and its Committees.

The Chairman of the Board meets regularly with Independent Non-
executive Directors outside the boardroom.

Directors are entitled to seek in-house and independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense where appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors are remunerated by fixed fee
and have not participated in the Company’s share schemes.
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Diversity

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives in terms of skills, professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. Board appointments
are made on a merit basis and candidates are considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Board has delegated the Nomination Committee to review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual
basis, make recommendations on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives.

The Board embraces gender diversity of directors. Currently, the Board has
two female members out of ten Directors. In the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Nomination Committee was of the
view that the current structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
is suitable for leading the Group's development and recommendation
on setting targets for further Board diversity would be considered when
appropriate. The Nomination Committee also considered that the
implementation of the existing Board Diversity Policy remains effective for
the Board and the Company.

As of 31 March 2025, the gender ratio for the Group’s workforce in Hong
Kong is 74.7% female and 25.3% male, and in Mainland China 64.5%
female and 35.5% male. These ratios reflect the local job market supply
and the industry pattern. Our current workforce is diverse in terms of race,
ethnicity, age or religions. The Group is committed to fostering diversity and
inclusion in the workforce and has developed policies around an inclusive
workplace including non-discriminatory people processes.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted specific procedures for identifying, assessing and
nominating suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as a new
director of the Company in addition to the incumbents or to fill a vacancy.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for conducting search for
candidates, including potential nominees from the target pool developed by
the Board from time to time, recommendations from Directors and senior
management and engagement of external consultancies or utilisation of
services of professional bodies. Nomination to the Board shall be based
on merit and consideration of objective selection criteria developed by the
Nomination Committee in light of the needs and desires of the Board as
well as the Company’s business and strategies. Selected individuals shall be
evaluated against the desired criteria with consideration of the following

factors:

o Skills and knowledge

o Related business / financial acumen and experience

o Leadership and communication capabilities

o Cultural background and personality

° Integrity and reputation

o Other commitments, including directorships in other listed companies
and public organisations

o Independence criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (applicable

for appointment of independent non-executive directors)
o Other attributes and strengths, as appropriate

During the year, Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in accordance with the nomination and appointment
procedures and process above mentioned.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), (i) any Director who is appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to election
by Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all
Directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and are eligible for re-election.

There is no specific term of appointment for Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company for they are all
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations,
business and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external
legal adviser meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully
aware of the responsibilities as a director under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory
requirements. Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick who was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 September 2024 obtained the
legal advice pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 15 August 2024
and has confirmed understanding of his obligations as a Director of the
Company.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates
and presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes
to the statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors’
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and
briefing sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with
the Group’s business and operation as well as developments of regulatory
and compliance requirements. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous improvement programmes held by external bodies at the
expense of the Company.
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All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record ~ FTBZE S AT BRA R AR ERE S 2 57142
on a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set &% o FFRNEBIEI I EEBEHI 0T ¢
out below:

Directors 55 Training Areas Mt
O 1GE)

Non-executive Directors EMITESE

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) R IE(EE) abce

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEZLLT abce

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael PR YA a,bce

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel PRI A a,bce

Independent Non-executive Directors B IEHITES

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry SRR S a,bcdef

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert A a,b,ce

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine FRELZ L a,bce

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick THELAE abce

(Appointed on 6 September 2024) (RZFEZWEAANAEZE)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BIEASLE abce

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan EREKE a,b,ce

Note:  Training relating to (a) corporate governance / risk management; (b) Environmental, Social Mzt : FIRASR@QBEER/BBRERE  O)RE &

and Governance Reporting; (c) legal or regulatory update; (d) banking / accounting / REBHE (QERKBEECRHEE  (ORIT/ B
financial reporting / taxation; (e) information technology; and (f) business environment / sHOMBERE B @ BB ROBEERR
Z‘«_O‘ﬁ?ﬁ

economy RL/H

THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT EERNEEE

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board as wellas EEZRERHINEFHZBERES  UKE
the roles and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board, F EFREF ERATEEEERZAG
the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board. REE -
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The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers and
authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of the Board is to
provide overall strategic direction for the Group and effective oversight of
management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board which mainly include the following:

o Approval of strategic and business plans and financial budget of the
Group;
o Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

o Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, including material risks relating to environment, social and
governance (“ESG");

o Approval of Company’s announcements, circulars and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports;
and

o Appointment or removal of external auditor.
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The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board is
headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include the Executive
Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior executives of the
Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and agreed by the Board.
When the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions are given as to the limits of the
authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances where management
should report to the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board reviews its delegation
of responsibilities to the Management Board from time to time to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group and its business.
Principal functions that are delegated to the Management Board include the
following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy, business
plans and financial budgets;

o Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within
the limit delegated by the Board;

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control, including ESG related risks;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning
of executives; and

o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient

and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including the management support and engagement of independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Committees report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following three
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and
(Chairman of the Committee) Chairman of the Board
(Re-designated from a member

to the Chairman of the Committee
on 6 September 2024)

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine Independent Non-executive Director
The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board with due regard of diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement

the Company’s corporate strategy.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o The structure, size and composition of the Board with due regard of
the Board Diversity Policy;

o Implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy;
o Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors;
o Directors for Shareholders’ re-election at the annual general meeting

of the Company held on 5 September 2024;

o Implementation and effectiveness of the Board’s mechanisms to
ensure independent views and inputs are available;

o Preparation and nomination for appointment of a new Independent
Non-executive Director; and

° Consideration of the next Board evaluation.
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following three
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive

Directors:

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine Independent Non-executive Director
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Non-executive Director
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The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management.
Remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined with
reference to duties and responsibilities of the role, individual experience,
personal and corporate performance, as well as market benchmarks
and the prevailing market conditions. Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are remunerated with fixed fee and
have not been granted any equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

° External market benchmark and internal salary positioning review for
the Group;
° Remuneration package of Chairman, Executive Directors, Chief

Executive Officer and other senior management members based on
individual performance appraisal;

o Grant of share awards under the Company’s Share Award Scheme;
and
o Grant of share options under the Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following five Directors with
majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert
(Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine Independent Non-executive Director

(Appointed on 17 June 2024)

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
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The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems as well as corporate
governance functions.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Engagement of external auditor, independence and remuneration of
external auditor;

o Audit findings by external auditor and related management
responses, as well as development in accounting standards and its

effects on the Group;

o Financial reporting system, accounting policies and practices, annual
and interim results announcements and financial statements;

o Engagement of external auditors for provision of non-audit services;

o Internal audit plan and findings, performance of risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness;

o Corporate governance practices and policies, compliance with CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report;

o Internal audit relating to the Company’s ESG reporting;

o Annual review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions;

o Renewal of Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy; and

o Adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training

programmes and budget of the Group’s internal audit, accounting
and financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to ESG
performance and reporting.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the
external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
the presence of management.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled a year ahead
to facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at
least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect of regular meetings and
arrangement is in place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda.
For special Board or Board Committee meetings, reasonable notices are
given.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings and kept by the Company Secretaries.
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The Board held four regular meetings at approximately quarterly intervals &R EEBNEFT - A HBTOAEHE
during the year. Directors’ attendance of the Board Meetings, Board - SEEFRHBZEZ_ZT-_RAF=-A=+—HL
Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and other meetings Efﬁﬁ% TZEERER EFRETLEEY
delegated by the Board held during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set RRAFASKREMNESREEESH 2L
out below: rﬁaﬁﬁﬁlmﬂ—lt :

Number of meetings attended/held during the year
ERMR/ BRZEEAR

Budget
Deliberation
Nomination Remuneration Audit Working Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Group General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BER REZEE ¥MzEe ENZEE REFAIfA RREF
R EE EE R E g
Non-executive Directors E ]
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ERXEE 4/4 22 NANER NATER n 1"
(Chairman) €59,
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBLL 4/4 NATER N/ARE 4/4 17 17
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (S it 4/4 N/AZ &R 22 NATER 17N 11
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ARESRE 44 NATER NATER 4/4 11 10
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FEH{TES
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry IHESLE 4/4 22 22 3/4 NATER 10
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BB 4J4 NAZ @R NARER 4/4 NATER 17
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine @ FREZLO 4/4 22 212 33 N/ATEH 11
Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick © FHEEEY 22 NATER NATRER NANER NATER NANER
Executive Directors H1ES
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEARE 44 NATER NATER NATER 11 10
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan © BRALEO 404 22 NANER NANER 7 7
Notes: ffsT -

(@) Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 17 June (@) FHEBEZLTR-ZZ-NF A +LtHEZEAEREZES
2024. K& -

(b) Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 6 September by ZHBEAE T -_NENANBEZTABIIEHITES -
2024.

(© Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee on 6 September (0 BEAEER-_ZT_NFNANBHETREEZEEKE
2024.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group's
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the

Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor
A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2024/25.

The Company has adopted a non-assurance services concurrence policy on
engagement of external auditor for non-audit services. The external auditor
may provide non-audit services to the Group as permitted under the policy
provided that the external auditor’s independence of audit works shall not
be impaired. The Audit Committee reviews the nature, size and proportion
of non-audit service fees as to the total service fees of the external auditor
on an annual basis.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

ISR AR
ESERNEAEERBAKE M HHRE
NEEMAIE M RRAE BN ERRRE 2 25
RRARFREER S REBANN - LFERFH
BE - RAEEERI2HE  RELTHRAR
EATHRBEZEMAREMMIBER - AR
RIBZEGIREATREZEN  EERANETH
AR BW R SNIERHIERT -

EREERMEZRMREETZEGRHTRR
B MREFAUMERTEZRIEZVE
REMEBERHEL BTG - SEZTBTEE
ARBZ2REEAL  UEHE R LRERE
—HEH

SNEEAZ LR
SNEERZ BREMBE 10 &5 2 R TR & R 1EH 2 B RAHE D)
RARRE) 2024/25 F 3R 72 B AZEENRE A ©
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Fee paid/payable

Type of services B 38 5l e ENER
HK$000

FETT

Audit services ZERTE 3,257
Non-audit services* IERZEARTE * 1,669
Total 4t 4,926

*  Include mainly advisory services on information system, ESG and taxation
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is pivotal
to the fulfilment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-term
sustainable growth. The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks according to the Board's
risk appetite in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Structure and Process

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
founded on internationally recognised standard and designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of
the Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of by two essential
features — the risk governance structure and risk management process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group’s risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM") policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, Audit
Committee, Management Board, department and operation heads as well
as Internal Audit.

Board
BEER

1st Line of Defense:

Risk Content and Accountability
E—ERAR -

EEAETREE

Department and operation heads
BPAREELE

— Day-to-day management control
and internal control measures
AEEREE R AT

2nd Line of Defense:

Risk Process and Accountability
EER

ERBEREE

Management Board chaired by the
Chief Executive Officer
HEFHTEFENERR

— Risk and compliance oversight
R KA REEE
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Audit Committee

BERERES

3

3rd Line of Defense:
Risk Process and
Content Monitoring
E=ERL -

R BER AR EE

Internal Audit
MNEBERET

— Independent assurance
B ARTE
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The Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, provides oversight and
review on risk management, financial reporting and internal control system.

The Company’s Internal Audit team, co-sourced with external consultant,
is an independent function reporting directly to the Audit Committee. It
provides independent, objective, assurance and consulting services on risk
management and internal control.

Risk Management Process — The Group's ERM approach is a structured
mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising,
managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The risks
are categorised into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks. The key process of the Group’s ERM is illustrated below:

Risk Identification

2 B

BERZECHEERETEN  HRARERE
PR ERE A BPEEIE R A B R MBS

RNz AEREETNMAR B BRE - BINISRER
AUNAEERERRABRZESER - NHE
AHEREREERABEEREREBY T
B~ OREE NS ARTS o

mEEERF — ARBEZOERRER T
EREEORAIEG - FERR - FHh - B8
BEBREXF BELERAKEFMEEH2E
2 - B0 B AREERERE - 2ERR - MR
BhERER AERELCXREREE CEER
FFHIIRET

FESESSSSESas D Identify potential risks of key processes ~ ----------- DSEEEEEEEREES

at least annually
SLEFHFFEEHE EERR
Annual Review

FERH

Conduct annual review on the
effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems
%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%&*%%z*ﬁ
LYk

Strategic and
Operational

Objectives

A WL EERE

Risk Reporting
B B BEE 3R

Submit risk monitoring and
management reports on a regular basis Risk Monitorin
ERER AR R E RS apEn D

Risk Assessment

[ B FP A

Evaluate and prioritise the risks
at least annually

RO EFE R EL TS R
BIEBRIERF

Y

Risk Response

JeB Pz 3

Formulate risk mitigation plans for the
significant risks identified
TP 2 B KR\ B 1 R T L Bk g =t

Define risk indicators and set acceptable

indicator levels for monitoring the
significant risks identified

WESHEPT E Z EAR R FUE R R IER

SRR DGR RARE AT 2 R
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plans promptly
and regular risk reports are presented to the Management Board and
Audit Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The key risks
identified, managed and monitored during the year included food safety,
human resources management, repairs and maintenance management,
procurement management and sales management. Sustainability-related
risks are under ongoing monitoring and managed by the Group’s ERM
framework. Climate change is currently considered an emerging risk to the
Group and further actions will be taken if such risk becomes a significant
threat to our business operations.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2025. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Heads
of key business units and functional departments are required to confirm
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of
their responsible areas during the year. The Audit Committee has received
confirmation from management on the effectiveness of the systems. No
significant areas of concern have been identified and the Board considered
the systems effective and adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to ESG performance
and reporting.
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Inside Information

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. The Group’s Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines and
procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside
information of the Group is disseminated to the public in equal and timely
manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure Team
comprising the Executive Directors and members of senior management,
has the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information
reported is inside information and requires disclosure and to refer the
subject matter to the Board for approval. Measures are in place to preserve
confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Communication is held regularly for
officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

Anti-corruption and Whistleblowing

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. Anti-corruption and whistleblowing are essential to establishing a
healthy corporate culture and promoting high ethical standards within the
organisation.

The Group has adopted its Best Practice and Guideline on Occupational
Code of Ethics, setting clear anti-corruption policy that supports anti-
corruption laws and regulations as well as to promote an anti-corruption
culture within the organisation. The Code provides guidelines on handling
conflicts of interests and restrictions on acceptance of advantages from
business partners. Anti-corruption training is provided as part of the
onboarding process and on an ongoing basis to ensure the Company’s
expectations are effectively communicated to all levels of staff.
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A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place to provide
guidance to our employees and business partners who may, from time to
time, need to raise issues relating to the Group in confidence and to ensure
that they can raise any matters of genuine concern, in the knowledge
that they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be investigated
appropriately and regarded as confidential. Under the Group’s Protocol on
Malpractice Reporting and Investigation, employees and business partners
may raise their concern by sending their malpractice reports to the Head of
Internal Audit who reports directly to the Audit Committee on receipt and
investigation of malpractice reports. For malpractice reports concerning any
member of the Management Board, informants may make direct reports to
the Chairman of Audit Committee.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of Directors of the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties and responsibilities. Company
Secretaries are responsible for supporting and advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretaries to ensure that Board procedures, all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

During the year, Company Secretaries of the Company complied with the
professional training requirement under the Listing Rules. On 1 April 2025,
Ms Vera Leung resigned as the joint Company Secretary of the Company
and Ms Lee Hung continues to act as the Company Secretary of the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavours to enhance returns on Shareholders’ investment
by way of, inter alia, distribution of regular and stable dividends. Guided
by the Dividend Policy adopted by the Board, the Company’s dividend
payout amount and frequency shall be based on the Group’s profit available
for distribution and shall make reference to historical payout ratios and
amounts to achieve consistency in dividend distribution. The Board shall take
into account all relevant circumstances when it decides on the Company’s
dividend distribution, including but not limited to, the Group’s business
performance, operating results, cash flow, working capital requirement and
business development plans as well as general market condition and other
internal and external factors that the Board may consider relevant. Dividend
payment shall normally be in the form of cash, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure effective communication with Shareholders by providing balanced
and understandable information about the Group in a factual and timely
manner. The Policy also serves to govern the Company’s open and regular
dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media through
effective corporate communication system covering various communication
channels including Shareholders” meetings, corporate’s publications and
website, press and analyst conferences. During the year, comments and
areas of concern solicited from investors and analysts were reported to the
Board by management regularly to facilitate the Board’s understanding of
the investment community. Implementation of the Policy was also reviewed
during the year and the Policy is considered effective.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 September
2024, the Chairman of the Board and all other Board members, including
Chairmen and representatives of the Board Committees as well as senior
management and the external auditor were present to communicate with
Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed resolutions
were explained at the meeting by the Chairman. The Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted
and the poll results of the meeting were published on the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not convene any
other Shareholders’ meeting during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company's head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at general meetings.

Important shareholders’ dates in respect of the financial year ended 31

March 2025 are set out in the “Financial Highlights and Calendar” section
of the Company’s Annual Report 2024/25.
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Constitutional Documents

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year ended 31 March 2025, there was no change to the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.

Investor Relations

Management of the Company meets with institutional investors, financial
analysts or media from time to time and provides updates on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company also
participates in investor summits or corporate days when appropriate, to
enhance communication with the investment community. Investors are
welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Department
at ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for the latest
information of the Group.
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Shareholding as at 31 March 2025

According to the register of members maintained by the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, the Company had 559 registered shareholders as at
31 March 2025.

e
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% of Aggregate % of total

Number of registered number of issued shares

registered shareholders shares held HERT

Size of registered BRRE shareholders BRRR BEZR5 R 4EEE
shareholdings BRE BRBRREE ZBESHK B ZBEDH
0-1,000 0- 1,000 146 26.118 9,515 0.002
1,001 - 5,000 1,001 - 5,000 246 44.007 640,645 0.110
5,001 - 10,000 5,001 - 10,000 60 10.734 506,400 0.087
10,001 - 100,000 10,001 - 100,000 81 14.490 2,620,737 0.452
100,001 or over 100,001 2k A _E 26 4.651 576,226,736 99.349
Total st 559* 100 580,004,033 100

*  This number did not include shareholders whose shares were held by HKSCC Nominees Limited
as an intermediary, which holds an aggregate of 396,390,530 shares of the Company as at 31
March 2025.

Based on public information available and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the required 25% public float
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of
this report.

Details of shareholdings of the Directors and substantial shareholders of the

Company are disclosed in the Directors’ Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2024/25.

On behalf of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 June 2025
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Directors’ Report

EERWE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial

statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in operation of quick service restaurants, casual dining
chains, institutional catering, as well as food processing and distribution in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The restaurant sector in Hong Kong and Mainland China faced a severe
downturn during the year under review, marked by depressed economic
conditions and weak consumer sentiment in both regions. The adverse
market conditions were compounded by outbound spending behaviour of
Hong Kong residents and fierce price competition in the Mainland China
market. These effects impacted the Group’s revenue and profit for the year,
especially during the festive Christmas and Lunar New Year periods in the
second half of the year, which were traditionally the peak season for the
Group's Quick Service Restaurant and Casual Dining businesses.

Taking swift action, the Group reinforced measures to strengthen robustness
across its operations, focusing on value offers, menu mix adjustments and
hero product promotions, as well as membership loyalty strategies to create
demand and drive sales. Digitalisation and automation remained our key
strategies to enhance customer experience, uplift manpower productivity
and boost work efficiency, whilst optimising cost controls to protect profit.

The Casual Dining business focused efforts on brand building campaigns
and dedicated itself to creating better value for customers by offering
creative products and services. More emphasis has been put on margin
improvement across all brands through reengineering menus, improving
menu offerings, streamlining workflow and enhancing productivity. The
business will continue to develop promising brands cautiously, while
consolidating underperforming brands.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group’s Institutional Catering business returned to normal operating
conditions with steady profit during the financial year, an example of the
competitive edge provided by our diverse business portfolio amidst an
unstable economy.

The Group’s business in Mainland China demonstrated its resilience during
this difficult period by emphasising value-for-money and promotional offers.
The Group leveraged its strong brand positioning, focused on essential
daily needs and deep-rooted connections with local communities to fine-
tune its business models. As a result, the Group’s Mainland China business
outperformed the market, maintaining healthy profit margins and steady
network expansion in the Greater Bay Area.

A fair review of the Group’s business for the year with analysis using
financial key performance indicators as well as discussion on principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group subsequent to the financial year end, if any, and future
development of the Group’s business are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section in the Company’s Annual Report 2024/25.

Together with the Annual Report 2024/25, the Company publishes its
standalone Sustainability Report on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
which discloses the Group’s sustainability performance for the reporting
year in four key pillars, namely, Catering to Customers, Empowering our
Employees, Focusing on Food and Preserving the Planet. The report discusses
in detail the Company’s environmental policies and performance as well as
our relationship and continuous engagement through various channels with
our customers, employees, suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a
significant impact on the Group.

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's business and
operations are set out in the Sustainability Report 2024/25 as well as the
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2024/25.

The abovementioned discussions in the Company’s Annual Report and
Sustainability Report for the year ended 31 March 2025 form part of this
Directors’ Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 101 of the Company’s Annual Report 2024/25.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK15 cents per share was paid. The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK25 cents per share, totalling approximately
HK$145,001,000 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on 26 August 2025. The proposed
final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 19 August 2025
("AGM"). Details of dividends for the year ended 31 March 2025 are set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2025, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$969,130,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes of the Group
are set out on pages 235 to 236 of the Company’s Annual Report 2024/25.

PRINCIPAL SELF-USED PROPERTIES

Details of the principal self-used properties of the Group are set out on
pages 237 to 241 of the Company’s Annual Report 2024/25.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$100,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, no shares of the Company were issued on exercise of
share options under the Company’s Share Option Scheme. Details of the
movements of share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s Share Option Scheme disclosed in this report,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 242 to 244 of the Company’s
Annual Report 2024/25.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company repurchased a total of
5,700,000 shares of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$45.9 million (excluding
expenses). All of the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled.
The Board considered the repurchases a good opportunity to enhance the
earnings per share and rate of return on capital and were therefore in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Details of the
repurchases are as follows:

BE - HEIEE LHRE

RBEZZ_RAF=A=1+—HILFE &A1
AN BB X FTE B & 5,700,000 iR A A 7]
R - BREDWBIBEST(TEEER) -
FIBEEBRNBEEREETHE EFRRAMOE
RDABRABRAEF RERNDRE 2 R# -
HERRBIRRR 2 EERN - OB ZFBN
I

Aggregate
price paid
Number of Price per share (excluding
shares BB MHER expenses)
Month of buy-backs bought back Highest Lowest [EXREE-E
IR EE A 5 Bz Bl B B& R (FEE&E8HA)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
June 2024 1,100,000 8.09 7.95 8,829,780
—TMFERA
July 2024 4,600,000 8.22 7.99 37,100,220
—T_MELA
5,700,000 45,930,000

The trustee of the Company’s 2023 Share Award Scheme also purchased
a total of 3,812,959 shares of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of about HK$32.2 million to satisfy the
award of shares to selected participants pursuant to the terms of the rules
and trust deed of the scheme.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2025.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2025. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Retired on 5 September 2024)
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick (Appointed on 6 September 2024)

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick, appointed on 6 September 2024,
will hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company. Mr
Lee Sai Yin, Patrick shall then retire at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry and Mr Lo
Tak Shing, Peter shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 84(2).

Information on Directors proposed for re-election will be set out in the
circular to shareholders of the Company accompanying the resolutions to
re-elect them at the AGM.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2025 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a
shareholders’ resolution on 8 September 2022 (the “2022 Share Option
Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2022 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Summary
of details of the 2022 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose To attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the
Group’s businesses, provide additional
incentives or rewards to selected eligible
participants for their contribution to the
creation of the Company’s value and
promote the long term financial success
of the Group by aligning the interest of
grantees to those of the shareholders of
the Company

Participants Employees and directors of any member
of the Group

Total number of ordinary 58,570,403 ordinary shares representing
10.1% of the issued shares as at the

date of this report

shares available for issue
and the percentage of the
issued shares that it
represents as at the date
of this report
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) i HpRE =T &l (&)

Maximum entitlement of Shall not exceed 1% of the shares in BESHEETERZ FEfA 1218 A HA
each participant issue in any 12-month period ER NEHRBEEETRGD
Z1%

Period within which the Such period shall be determined by the — FI{TEERGEIEZHR AR H RGN AR 21T

options may be exercised Board, provided that it shall not exceed EHREHEERE
ten years from the date of grant of the E o MEZHARAE
relevant option. BR T NMFHEEaR

HEARBET T 4F -

Vesting period of options The Board may, in its discretion, RERGOHEZEEBY Z=ZFR0U2EAEM

granted determine the time or period when the 1%t BRtE S 2 FR B
right to exercise the option in respect of HE D IRID TR
all or some of the shares the subject of TEREN 2 55 B e Bk
the option shall be vested. HARR o

Amount payable on HK$1.00; payment must be made upon ~ EARGEERFANZ 1008 T KIEEA

acceptance of the options acceptance of the option which is open ~ E£ERATFHR D Bt 1R X

and the period within which  for a period of 28 days from the date of - BEREHR AR E

payments must be made grant HEfkeEt 28 B

Basis of determining the Not less than the highest of (i) the closing RERGHETHEE MER ()RR H

exercise price of options price of the Company’s shares as stated ZEEREE (EREXEB)AXR

granted in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s AR BB RS PT
daily quotations sheet on the date of BHEMEXRFMYIKT
grant, which must be a business day; B (NBEELBEH
(i) the average of the closing prices Al AL E & % A AR F]
of the Company’s shares as stated in BRORBEBBZME
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily H ¥R E R FEH U
quotations sheet for the five business mE: Ri)A R 7
days immediately preceding the date of BROEE  K&EeE
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a R
Company’s share

Remaining life of the scheme The 2022 Share Option Scheme will  FHEIZRIBREFH —E_FRIDERE

remain in force until 7 September 2032

HEERME-T

unless otherwise terminated under the =—FNAtH"HE
terms of the scheme. RIBEFTE 2GR BT
BRIEEBRIN o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Movement of Share Options Granted

Details of movements of the share options granted under the 2022 Share

Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

ARBEEBFR AR 2024/25 F3#

Bt HArE s 8 ()
ERERDMEZE
BE-T-RF-AS+-BLFERN K-
T EROPEABC RN 2RO BERE

SHHEMT :
Number of options®
ROHEHAE
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 April 31 March
Exercise price 2024 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2025
Date of per option Exercise g 12 during during duing ~ RZZBZRF
Grantees grant Sk period mA-H the year the year the year =R=1-H
ARA RiLAH HETRE i HAITE QR R EREN WA
HKS
AT
Director
g2
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 301202022 149 317712025 - 800,000 - - - 800,000
REARE 2912120329
Chief Executive Officer
ERHUOE
Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony 301122022 149 317712025 -
FugEat 2912120329 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
2142024 8.28 317712027 - - 500,000 - - 500,000
11412034
Other employees of 301202022 149 317712025 -
the Group 2912120329 20,070,000 - - (1,900,000) 18,170,000
(in aggregate)
ASEEMEE (43 317712024 8.06 317112027 - - 969,000 - - 969,000
30/7/2034 ¢
Total
g 22,870,000 1,469,000 - (1,900,000) 22,439,000
Notes: B & -
(a) Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares of the Company covered by the (a) & BAME B B T B IRIE T — —F R B s 8
options under the 2022 Share Option Scheme. A&7 BRREFT S Rk 2 A A RIMERR D 8B -
(b) These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches as follows: 20% on 31 July 2025, 20% on 31 (b) ZERNEPEARENIRATHESRE : 206 K=

July 2026, 20% on 31 July 2027, 20% on 31 July 2028 and the remaining 20% on 31 July
2029 and are exercisable for the period commencing the respective dates of vesting to 29
December 2032, being ten years from the date of grant. All options granted are subject
to achievement of personal performance target based on the Company’s Performance

Management System before the options can be vested.

(© These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches as follows: 20% on 31 July 2027, 20% on 31 July
2028, 20% on 31 July 2029, 20% on 31 July 2030 and the remaining 20% on 31 July 2031,
and are exercisable for the period commencing from the respective dates of vesting to 1 April
2034, being ten years from the date of grant. All options granted are subject to achievement
of personal performance target based on the Company’s Performance Management System

before the options can be vested.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Movement of Share Options Granted (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date on which these
options were granted was HK$8.01. The fair value of the options granted at the date of grant
(i.e. 2 April 2024) was HK$874,000 and the relevant accounting policy and standard adopted
are set out in Notes 2 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

These options shall vest in 5 equal tranches as follows: 20% on 31 July 2027, 20% on 31 July
2028, 20% on 31 July 2029, 20% on 31 July 2030 and the remaining 20% on 31 July 2031,
and are exercisable for the period commencing from the respective dates of vesting to 30 July
2034, being ten years from the date of grant. All options granted are subject to achievement
of personal performance target based on the Company’s Performance Management System
before the options can be vested.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date on which these
options were granted was HK$7.93. The fair value of the options granted at the date of
grant (i.e. 31 July 2024) was HK$1,419,000 and the relevant accounting policy and standard
adopted are set out in Notes 2 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The number of shares available for grant under the 2022 Share Option
Scheme at 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 were 35,700,403 shares and
36,131,403 shares, respectively.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options granted

under the 2022 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March

2025 divided by the weighted average of the Company’s shares in issue for
the year is 3.86%.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or

cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES
2013 Scheme

A share award scheme (the “2013 Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 27 August 2013, under which any individual being an
existing director, employee, officer, supplier, customer, consultant, adviser
or manager of any member of the Group is entitled to participate as
selected participant who may be granted an award of restricted shares and/
or performance shares of the Company. The purpose of the 2013 Share
Award Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. It also aims
to provide a competitive remuneration and/or incentive package in order
to attract and retain talent for the development of the Group’s business,
and to promote long term success of the Group by aligning the interests of
selected participants and shareholders.

The 2013 Share Award Scheme is funded by existing shares of the
Company. The award period for shares granted under the 2013 Share
Award Scheme commenced on its adoption date and ended on 26 August
2023, being the day immediately prior to the 10th anniversary date of its
adoption date. The vesting period of award shares granted under the 2013
Share Award Scheme was determined by the Board from time to time.
The total number of shares awarded under the 2013 Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares awarded to a selected
participant but unvested under the 2013 Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from time
to time. The 2013 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of 15 years from its adoption date and is administrated by the Board
and the trustee of the scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
2023 Scheme

A new share award scheme (the “2023 Share Award Scheme” or the
"Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 27 August 2023 (the
“Adoption Date”), under which any individual being an existing director or
employee of any member of the Group is entitled to participate as selected
participant who may be granted an award of shares of the Company. The
purpose of the 2023 Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward
selected participants for their contributions to the business and development
of the Group. It also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or
incentive package in order to attract and retain talent for the development
of the Group’s business, and to promote long term success of the Group by
aligning the interests of selected participants and shareholders.

The 2023 Share Award Scheme is funded by existing shares of the
Company. Under the Scheme, awards of shares may be granted during
the period commencing on its Adoption Date and ending on the day
immediately prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date with
such vesting period(s) to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The total number of shares can be awarded under the 2023 Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time. The 2023 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of ten years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the
Board and the trustee of the Scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED) iz 17 22 Eat 8l (&)
Movement of Award Shares RERD 2%
Details of movements of award shares under the 2013 and 2023 Share ~ BE-_ZE—=FK_T_=FRH BRIz
Award Schemes during the year were as follows: RERNDNEANZEBFBOT
Number of shares
RHEE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2024 during during during 2025 Vesting
Grantees grant R=Z-QmE the year the year theyear R=Z=HfF period @
SN RHBEH mMA-B RERRE REREE RERAW =ZA=+-H BEH@
Directors
Bz
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 2/8/2021 19,159 - (19,159) - - 31/7/2022 -
BIEREE 31/7/2024
31/7/2023 ® 85,045 - (28,064) - 56,981 31/7/2024 -
31/7/2026
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 2/8/2021 6,844 - (6,844) - - 31/7/2022 -
BEREE 31/7/2024
31/7/2023 ® 30,606 - (10,099) - 20,507 31/7/2024 -
31/7/2026
Five highest paid 2/8/2021 35,780 - (35,780) - - 31/7/2022 -
individuals (in aggregate) 31/7/12024
LEBEHMAL(E5)
31/7/2023 ® 247,194 - (81,570) - 165,624 31/7/2024 -
31/7/2026
31/7/12024 ® - 325,529 - - 325,529 31/7/2025 -
31/7/2027
Other employees of the 2/8/2021 365,688 - (358,844) (6,844) - 31/7/2022 -
Group (in aggregate) 31/712024
rEEHEMES (R5)
1/8/2022 ® 434,066 - (220,582) (12,160) 201,324 31/7/2023 -
31/7/2025
31/7/2023 ® 2,520,340 - (836,049) (134,307) 1,549,984 31/7/2024 -
31/7/2026
31/7/12024 ©® - 3,467,404 (18,733) (175,615) 3,273,056 31/7/2025 -
31/712027
Total
me 3,744,722 3,792,933 (1,615,724)@ (328,926) 5,593,005
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Movement of Award Shares (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The award shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the award shares
respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance
of the remaining award shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case
such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day
immediately thereafter.

(b) The grant of the award shares was subject to achievement of financial performance target of
the Group.

(0 The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant of these
award shares was HK$7.93. The fair value of the award shares at the date of grant was
HK$27,871,000 and the relevant accounting policy and standard adopted are set out in
Notes 2 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

(d) The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on
which these award shares were vested was HK$7.93.

(e) All award shares were granted at nil purchase price.

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 22,984,595 and 3,792,933 shares had
been awarded under the 2013 and 2023 Share Award Schemes respectively,
representing approximately 3.96% and 0.65% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of each Director and
the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

ARBEEBFR AR 2024/25 F3#

EERRSTRAERKRS - 1868
BRORBEZP 2ERRAR

ROCZE-RAF=ZA=1T—H ARARERZH
RHAEGHI ([ &5 R BEES ) 5% 352 tfm 17
BEZECMATRCE  RE EHRAMERC3
Frelz LM AR EFEITEZFR ZNRESTH
(MEESFA D RTTHEARARR RE B RAT -
ARABEFRRBITBRABRALRA REN
BAE (B S RHEIRPIE XV #BZBE) Z I
0~ BB RESF 2 S RAREINT

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
AAEEER HERGHE (F8)

% of total
issued
Equity shares *

Name of Directors and Personal Family Corporate Other derivatives Total {HEHE{T
Chief Executive interests interests interests interests R interests R
EERBRETRAEHE BARER Rk D E) R Higs PTETIR BHAY zaoth*
Directors
S
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - 37,983,394@ 3,000,000 ® - 64,433,894  11.109%
BRNEE
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - - 3,000,000@ - 17,039,928 2.938%
BEBLL
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407  9,614,500@ - - - 17,033,907 2.937%
BRIAYL S E
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - - - - 25,837  0.004%
RIS
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 688,415 200,000@ - 94,330,213% 56,9819 95,275,609 16.427%
BEALE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 190,720 - - - 820,507 ®™ 1,011,227 0.174%
BRASLE
Chief Executive Officer
BEYTE
Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony 244,999 - - - 2,662,099 2,907,098 0.501%
RAliE it

*  The percentage is calculated based on 580,004,033 shares of the Company in issue as at
31 March 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) These shares were held by Victor Reach Investments Limited which was wholly-owned by
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

(b) These shares were held by a foundation in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny is a trustee.

© These shares were held by a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita is a trustee.

(d) Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests
of his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by a foundation in which his spouse is a
trustee.

(e) Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests of his
spouse.

(f) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts.
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being
beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

(9 These represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s 2013 Share
Award Scheme.

(h) These represented interests in 800,000 options granted under the Company’s 2022 Share
Option Scheme and 20,507 unvested shares granted under the Company’s 2013 Share
Award Scheme.

(i) These represented interests in 2,500,000 share options granted under the Company’s 2022

Share Option Scheme and 162,099 unvested shares granted under the Company’s 2013 and
2023 Share Award Schemes.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors and
the Chief Executive of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of every person,

other than Directors of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, as

recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

ARBEEBFR AR 2024/25 F3#

FERRER
RZZBEZRAF=ZA=+—8 ' KARFAREZH
KA EAIE 336 xR TF2ELEMAT - 5
BARRDAIRG BB GO ERIORE 2 AL (B
EARATDBEITRAS% KA F) (BRAQFE
EHNEHFNAT -

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
ARREERHBROHUE (HR)

Name of
substantial shareholders

TERRHE BB

Ms Ng Yuen Han
RPTRZ L

Wandels Investment Limited

Sky Bright International Limited
Verdant Success Holdings Limited
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited

Ms Tso Po Ping
EETLt

Victor Reach Investments Limited

Mr Lo Hoi Chun
ERBLE

Ms Man Bo King
XERLL

LBK Holding Corporation

MMW Holding Corporation

Personal
interests

AR

200,000

37,983,394

132,000

35,969,133@

31,911,701 ®

Family
interests
iy

95,075,609

64,433,894

68,012,834

(@

(©

()

*  The percentage is calculated based on 580,004,033 shares of the Company in issue as at

31 March 2025.
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% of total
issued
shares *
Corporate Other Total HEBT
interests interests interests MR A7 4 5
DE) R Hit R A ZED*
- - 95,275,609 16.427%
- 94,330,213 ® 94,330,213 16.264%
- 94,330,213 ® 94,330,213 16.264%
- 94,330,213 ® 94,330,213 16.264%
- 94,330,213 ® 94,330,213 16.264%
- - 64,433,894 11.109%
- - 37,983,394 6.549%
67,880,834 - 68,012,834 11.726%

S 68,012,834 11.726%

S 35,969,133 6.202%

S 31,911,701 5.502%

* O BESRNER-ZE-_AFZA=ZT—BARRBEBITRG
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

Ms Ng Yuen Han was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter.

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts.
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in
these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

These shares were held by Victor Reach Investments Limited which was wholly-owned by
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to
35,969,133 shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK"”) and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by
MMW Holding Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by
Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 22 March 2023, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen"”) entered into a new framework agreement (“2023
Framework Agreement”) which governs the terms upon which Fung Yuen
and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would continue to be engaged
by the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation, maintenance and/
or related services to the shops operated or managed by the Group in Hong
Kong, Macau and Guangdong Province in the People’s Republic of China (the
“Renovation Works") for a further term of three years from 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2026 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 HK$10,000,000
1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 HK$10,000,000
1 April 2025 to 31 March 2026 HK$10,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group together with his wife. Thus the Renovation Works constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2023 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 March 2023.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate value in respect of the
Renovation Works under the 2023 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$493,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the year.
The Group has followed its pricing policies when determining the price and
terms of the Renovation Works conducted during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Annual Review

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2023 Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2025 and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(© according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted a connected
transaction but was exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of Directors are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick’s position in C-Polar Technologies Asia Limited has
been changed from executive director to advisor in February 2025. He
ceased to be a consultant of Hong Kong Association of Testing, Inspection
and Certification on 1 February 2025 and a board member of Innovation
and Technology Training at the Vocational Training Council on 1 April 2025.

Mr Lee was also appointed as a consultant of Nano and Advanced Materials
Institute Limited and The Greater Bay Area Xiaohongshu E-commerce
Operation Center — HKSAR Region in February 2025 and November 2024,
respectively.

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter

(Executive Director)
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter ceased to be a member of Executive Committee of
Hong Kong Retail Management Association from 18 October 2024.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

(Executive Director)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan was appointed as a director of the Association of
Restaurant Managers in Hong Kong on 28 November 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

87

ARBEEBFR AR 2024/25 F3#

EEENEE
KB EMRANE13.51B() K EFEREBH
BRI -

SHEXLE

(B IEHITES)

F B S A 7 C-Polar Technologies Asia Limited
ZHER T -_AF-_ARARTESEAE
Mo FA_T-_AF_A—ABRTHELEHS
BAREHEEMRBE_E_HAFNA—BiE
TEEEREIRBEIH MBI EIRE B GX

o

10

\

~

ERENDFR_BE-_AF-_AR_T-_F
+— AEZREARARRIGEMEFERERA
8 WRKERNMIESEELT L — BB
RITTEN R & i3 2 RS o

EBEREE

(HITES)
BEALEE - ZE_NFE+A+N\HETBE
ITEBTEEEWE ZHEEKE

ERERSLE

(HITES)
BHFEEER_E-_NF+—A -+ \BEZ
TEEERRER(RR)EXHEES -

RANREBRE

RBAD TS 2 ABIER U R E E A
& REAREEH  AAAERTREGEZ
0 25% BARALIE o



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 June 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report
CRYR -GS

R

pwec

To the Shareholders
of Café de Coral Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
99 to 234, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2025;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), as applicable to audits
of financial statements of public interest entities. We have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

90

e
3
X
(e

=R (&)

HPHNER

BFIRR  ZERAVBRRERET LSS
ARG RGAKBEEVBREEIDEEM+T S
kT BEER-_ZT-_RF=A=+—H
MRS MBI R R B EZ B IEFENGE Y
BERARGERERE - WEBREB(A T
IV H BE 4R TE 2 B o

ERMER
HMERBEEE SIS RMAKEBETE
ADETTET - RAEZFERTAENEED
EASRE [ZBEN B4R A M MR AEN
] Mo EE— Rt -

AFIHRE - RAIMESHEERR TR K
iR PINES BRI HER

e

YA 3
REFESHAMASRMAAKEXSFENBRET
A1) CATER 7RI - @BARARN DT R
MR B - HPIIC BT R Ay E A B
XBREARET - BfBLIR BEXE-

REFB G ASRMACERSHNERST
) BB BEEBE - XEETTRIFH
HibBEXBERE -

BREEEE
ARETFEERERMNERAE - RRY
AEFAMBRRNEARREENER &
LERTERMBAERGEVBTRRIEA
BARETRERN - AT SHELEREHR
BERENER -



ARLEEAR AT 2024/25 £

Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2 BN

R

pwec

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Revenue recognition

o Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets .

Key Audit Matter

BAREITER

BERAKE
EAg2EsH=EH (])
B P SR A B BRSBTS

. LN

(=1

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMW T MAEERRET SR

Revenue recognition

LON

Refer to note 2.20 to the consolidated financial statements
for the Group’s accounting policies on revenue recognition
and note 22 for the analysis of revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

F2HRAMBHRERNFE220 ESEFRABARRNE
ABELNT22 EEEREBE_Z_AF=A=1+—H
LIEEFEERADHT

The Group recognised revenue of HK$8,568.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

EEERNBE T _AF=A=1t—HIEFEERKLA
8,568.3BEATT °

We focused on revenue recognition in particular for
sales of food and beverage due to its magnitude and the
characteristics of the Group’s industry nature. The recording
of revenue involves high volume of transactions through
various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data
or interfaces of data amongst the various systems may have
significant impact on revenue. Therefore it required significant
time and resource to audit this area.

HEREBORER EEEMESTEEENRR®
R BALHEINHERY KR mERATER » WA
REFRABEB TR RFETHR S - EERBUIRRE
FEEEE OREENTAERE - GreHBRABKE

& At ZERNEATEAERERER -

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key

internal controls over the revenue recognition process.

e - FHELREEEEENERARRBETHNER
BRI o

We involved Information Technology specialists to evaluate
the design of the relevant controls (including automated
controls) over revenue recognition and tested the operating
effectiveness of those controls.
HFIRBEE AR B R R R WA FERR M R 5T H AR A
(BEEa8EsH) Imﬁ&#fﬁm%¢&$

We performed analytical procedures on revenue by
comparing the actual result of the current year with that of
the prior year.
HPFEBALBRAFENERERE TFENBRER 8
WADMA AT ©

We tested samples of sales transactions by tracing to bank
receipts and other relevant evidence.

BB @EPRITRIE M MAARRREMEHER S °

We tested samples of journal entries posted to revenue
accounts selected on risk based criteria.

BfRAREERE T ABARRW BARRRE °

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that

the sales transactions being tested were supported by the

available evidence.

gf%ﬂﬂm&f HPIRABAANEHER ZEEBIE
£ o
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

RRETER

EEETEIE(R)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET A EERRETEIER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

M BERRBUREREEENRE

Refer to notes 4(a) and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A2BERE MR 4(a) J26 -

As at 31 March 2025, net book values of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment (“PPE"”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU") amounted to HK$1,465 million and
HK$2,159 million, respectively. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s PPE and ROU are written down to their recoverable
amounts if the carrying amounts are in excess of their
estimated recoverable amounts.
RZZE_RFE=A=+—H  BESEZ?% BEEX
BWARGEREEECREFESRR1465B8EB TR
2159B8ETL - H BEEENYE  BELREBALRE
FA#EEENREERD LA rIRE S5 - AlglRzEn]
el &% -

Management considers each of its individual restaurant as
a separate identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors
their financial performance for the existence of impairment

indicators.
EEERSEREEABLMAHAIReEESMN - WEE
REANBRAESFLRETR -

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key
internal controls over the impairment of PPE and ROU.
HFIERE  SHERBEEIREHYE BB LR EARE
P& EREN E EREES o

We enquired management on their basis of identifying
restaurants with impairment indicators and challenged the
appropriateness of these judgements.

HFIMEEBEAMMBEMNERETRNVERHNKE - I

ERELYHELEE

We compared the projected sales performance, forecasted
food cost and forecasted running costs applied in the
value-in-use calculations to the historical records and
challenged management'’s key assumptions behind and
evaluated them by comparing against historical trends
and our understanding of latest market information and
conditions.

B EREBETETEANERHEEXE  BHEM
B R TEORI & B A AR B 52 SO I T B - W kBB IR fE
WEERR - WERLRELBE RBEMEEHTIHEM
Rtk 0 B2 e st B 1 T AT A o

We checked the tenure of the leases of the restaurants to
the lease agreements and recomputed the impairment loss

calculation.
HMReEEmHETHNEERZ  YEHTERES
8o
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

RARETER

B R K E
BAEE T ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET A EERRETEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

M BERRBUREREEENRE

An impairment loss of approximately HK$34 million was
recognised for restaurants in the consolidated income
statement in accordance with the impairment assessment.
The recoverable amount of the assets of the restaurant is
determined by value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the management’s forecast
covering the remaining tenure of the lease, with major inputs
including revenue growth rate and discount rate.
RBFRER G - ZEROMEBROR34AEETENER
AEAXER - EREENITNESRERIEEEEH
THEAFHHNIEA - URARRRESREAEEREEM
BT TERABBREERGEERERERE -

We focused on auditing the impairment of PPE and ROU
because the estimation of recoverable amount is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the impairment assessment of PPE and ROU is
considered elevated due to subjectivity of inputs used such as
the forecasted sales and discount rate.
HRAIWE S BN G FERE TN - ARMES
B - B MREBAREREEERRIE - BRAE
i AZUR (TERISHE REBRR ) X 81 - Eik Y
¥ BB KRR R EREEENRENEEBHNES R
BRI RB AR °

We involved internal valuation expert in assessing the
reasonableness of discount rate used.

BRI ZBEAEMAEE RGP AR RS R -

We evaluated the sensitivity analysis to consider the
impact on the impairment loss with reasonably possible
changes of key assumptions and considered whether the
judgements made in determining the key assumptions are
reasonable.

HPTEBRESN - UWERFERINEEERL T A8
HIRWEBSEREBENTE  TEEETEEERIXEH
EREHE R R EIE -

Based on the procedures performed above, we found that
the Group’s impairment assessments of PPE and ROU are
supported by available evidence.

BIE FARF - MR EEEEYE - BEREHIN
KA FRHEE ERVRIERT LB Al BB B X HF °

93




Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

Independent Auditor’s Report
CRYR -GS

&

pwec

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lam Chun Yee, Johnny (practicing certificate number: PO6566).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 June 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE M BARR R

As at 31 March 2025 R - FF=A=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
i N
—E_RE —EPUE
=HA=+—H =A=+—AH
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
PiEE FET FEr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEKEE 6 1,464,996 1,552,675
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 6 2,159,044 2,366,096
Investment properties wEMZE 7 402,100 440,300
Intangible assets | EE 8 1,104 1,116
Deferred income tax assets RIETIREE 16 99,021 66,214
Financial assets at fair value through BEATETAEMEEUYA
other comprehensive income ZEMEE 10 38,787 74,499
Retirement benefit assets BRIRSEMNEE 15 7,293 4,208
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ JERENTENT B K IE S 11 307,271 301,550
4,479,616 4,806,658
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 12 220,637 230,288
Trade and other receivables e N B IR ERIA 13 124,515 152,510
Prepayments and deposits AN RIERIES 13 84,648 62,808
Current income tax recoverable BNEf AT e Bl 18 17,181 712
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 14 1,053,633 1,260,948
1,500,614 1,707,266
Total assets EEHARE 5,980,230 6,513,924
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to A BIRERB A
equity holders of the Company JEAG AR A K (4
Share capital [N 20 58,000 58,570
Share premium 10w B 21 575,643 621,122
Shares held for share award scheme I BB R BB 2 R 5 21 (72,000) (73,722)
Other reserves HAbfEE 21 525,033 547,402
Retained earnings REBRM 21
— Proposed dividends — BURA% B 145,001 245,996
— Others - Efb 1,500,609 1,500,480
2,732,286 2,899,848
Non-controlling interests JEFE I MERE 12,450 10,665
Total equity BRIEAR 2,744,736 2,910,513
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As at 31 March 2025 R - FF=A=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
“E-RF —ZT U4
=A=+—H =—A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BT FET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FERBaE
Deferred income tax liabilities FERIBEE 16 48,957 32,860
Provision for long service payments REARG S BE 15 63,722 68,398
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 1,093,324 1,289,060
Long-term borrowings RHEIER 19 225,000 305,000
1,431,003 1,695,318
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables B ETARIE 17 204,567 210,767
Other creditors and accrued liabilities B fERIBERETER 18 764,916 804,370
Current income tax liabilities BIEAF{IE B & 19,022 38,889
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 735,986 774,067
Current portion of long-term borrowings  REAEZ &I BIEAZR 5 19 80,000 80,000
1,804,491 1,908,093
Total liabilities BEHAHE 3,235,494 3,603,411
Total equity and liabilities BRENEBEHEZE 5,980,230 6,513,924
Net current liabilities RBEEFEHE (303,877) (200,827)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABER 4,175,739 4,605,831

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 234 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2025 and were signed on its behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
ZRN
Chairman

1
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LO TAK SHING, PETER
B

Executive Director
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Consolidated Income Statement - By Function of Expense
MEEER - naRyEss

For the year ended 31 March 2025 HEZ —ZE - AF=A=+—HILFE

2025 2024
—E_RF —T P4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FaE FET FEL
Revenue A 22 8,568,317 8,691,449
Cost of sales SHEMA 24 (7,675,662) (7,702,163)
Gross profit EA 892,655 989,286
Other income and other E AR A R EA
(losses)/gains, net F(E518) %A 23 (73,276) (33,257)
Administrative expenses THE R 24 (494,493) (503,213)
Operating profit £ 18 s 324,886 452,816
Finance income TSI A 25 46,652 45,304
Finance costs EURCID RN 25 (104,115) (108,592)
Profit before income tax BR AR B Al 267,423 389,528
Income tax expense TSt & A 26 (32,312) (56,313)
Profit for the year REERER 235,111 333,215
Profit attributable to: FEL = F -
Equity holders of the Company RARRIEFRE A 232,744 330,454
Non-controlling interests P A 2,367 2,761
235,111 333,215
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Earnings per share for profit attributable 722 R ERE B A FE
to the equity holders of the Company &%z &R0EF
Basic - WIN 28 0.41 0.57
Diluted g 28 0.40 0.57
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction ~ Lili4R & B2 R ERREN ~ st —OFRE -

with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 HEZ —ZE - AF=A=+—HILFE

2025 2024
—EB-RHE —E PO
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit for the year REE A 235,111 333,215
Other comprehensive loss: Hth2EEE -
Items that may be reclassified BB SR ER I EE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from BRI B AR ZEN =8
translation of foreign subsidiaries (5,690) (22,223)
Items that will not be reclassified T BB ER B IHA
to profit or loss:
Revaluation surplus of property, EAREYERNTE - BERFK
plant and equipment and right-of-use AR EREEESEGRLR
assets prior to transferring to
investment properties - 35,971
Remeasurement of retirement benefit B ERREENEER
liabilities and provision for long KRR & B1E
service payments 8,901 (2,509)
Fair value loss on financial assets at BATFEIIAREMEEEAZ
fair value through other EHREENNTEEE
comprehensive income (35,720) (12,247)
Total comprehensive income AEERZHEBA
for the year 202,602 332,207
Total comprehensive income EaAFEAZEKA
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company - ARREIREFEA 200,235 329,446
— Non-controlling interests — FEPEI M 2,367 2,761
202,602 332,207

B A-DANEAN

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read LR ES

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
n‘/_\é*ﬁﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ’?«%

For the year ended 31 March 2025 HEZ —ZE - AF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RARRERE ABE

Shares

held for

share

award Non-

scheme controlling
Share Share iR Other  Retained interests Total
capital premium  FE5E  reserves  earnings Total  FiEmitE equity
BE  RiEE 2 Hitfits  REEA am Bi  RELE
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FET FEr FET FET FEr FET FET FE

Balance as at 1 April 2024 W-Z-MEMNA—BEH% 58570 621,122 (73,722) 547,402 1,746,476 2,899,848 10,665 2,910,513
Profit for the year REERT - - - - 744 232,1M 2367 235111
Other comprehensive loss: Eth2EEE -
Exchange differences arising from ERHINIBARZ

translation of foreign subsidiaries EHEE - - - (5,690) - (5,690) - (5,690)

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair WA TEIIAEMAEE
value through other comprehensive WAz SHEENR

income TEES - - - (35720) - (35720 - (35720
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ E¥fi: ERKEEHE

liabilities and provision for long ERRARES &R

service payments - - - - 8,901 8,901 - 8,901
Total comprehensive income BRERA - - - (41,410) 241,645 200,235 2,367 202,602
Employee share award scheme EERAREE

- value of employee services - EER%ER - - - 2,611 - 2,611 - 2,611
Employee share option scheme EEMRIDHES 2]

- value of employee services -EERBER - - - 15,871 - 15,871 - 15,871
Purchase of shares held for BARRNREREIT

share award scheme (Note 32) BHERRA (M 32) - - (32159) - - (32154) - (3214)
Shares repurchased and cancelled B Ra AR (Wit 20)

(Note 20) (570) (45,479) - - - (46,049) - (46,049)
Vesting of shares of share EERE b

award scheme BE - - 33,876 (18,379)  (15,497) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserves ERBETRE - - - ) 4 - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR - - - (1,058) - (1,058) - (1,058)
Dividends RE - - - - (327,018)  (327,018) (582)  (327,600)

(570) (45,479) 1,722 19,041 (342,511)  (367,797) (582)  (368,379)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 RZE-RF=A=1-H
&% 58,000 575,643 (72,0000 525,033 1645610 2,732,286 12,450 2,744,736
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B

For the year ended 31 March 2025 HEZ —ZE - AF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARERERA B

Shares
held for
share
award Non-
scheme controlling
Share Share  FRIPEEED Other  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium  FEHSE  reserves  eamings Total  FEEERIM equity
BE BRAOEE Bl EftRE  REER 38 Be  REEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 — HK$000 — HK$'000 — HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FAET FET FAT FAET T FAT FET
Balance as at 1 April 2023 WZE-=FNA—-B&H 58570 621,122 (98,979) 522,679 1,680,202  2,78359% 8469 2,792,063
Profit for the year TEERR - - - - 330454 330454 2,761 333215
Other comprehensive loss: A2 EEE -
Exchange differences arising from BREINNERRZ
translation of foreign subsidiaries EHRERE = = = (22,223) = (22,223) = (22,223)
Fair value loss on financial assets at far ~ IRAFENAEMZE
value through other comprehensive BAZEBEEND
income TEER - = - (12,247) - (120 - (12,47)
Revaluation surplus of property, AREMEANE
plant and equipment and B REEARER
right-of-use assets prior o RAEEREHS
transferring to investment properties - - - 35,971 - 35,971 - 35,971
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ EFFFERNEERNE
liabilities and provision for long ERRARE SRR
service payments - - - - (2,509) (2,509) - (2,509)
Total comprehensive income B2ERA - - - 1,501 327,945 329446 2,761 332,207
Employee share award scheme EERAREE
- value of employee services -EERBER = = = 18,077 = 18,077 = 18,077
Employee share option scheme EERIAHEE]
—value of employee services -EERKERE = = = 18,823 = 18,823 = 18,823
Vesting of shares of share e R
award scheme %E = = 25,257 (15,408) (9,849) = = =
Transfer to statutory reserves BRERLTRE - - = 1,730 (1,730) = = =
Dividends RE = - - - (250,092)  (250,092) (565)  (250,657)
- - 25,257 23,222 (261,671)  (213,192) (565)  (213,757)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 RZEZRE=A=1-H
B 58,570 621,122 (73,722) 547,402 1,746,476 2,899,848 10,665 2,910,513

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GaeBReRER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 HEZ —ZE - AF=A=+—HILFE

BAR AT 2024/25 Fi

2025 2024
—E_FREF —EToNEF
Note HK$000 HK$°000
BsE FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& ZFH2HEHRE
Net cash generated from operations EEEAEZFRS 31(a) 1,596,408 1,694,297
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 BEBNER (68,086) (16,776)
Overseas taxation paid B 28N IE (17,323) (14,367)
Net cash generated from operating KEEEEAE 2F R
activities 1,510,999 1,663,154
Cash flows from investing activities REFBHZBEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A& % - & X&E (305,069) (316,358)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEKREFERIE
plant and equipment 31(b) 1,313 1,925
Dividend received from listed investments & 4 =M% &L= 3,062 6,123
Purchase of financial assets at fair value //J\E%fz@ifﬁﬁllkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁk
through other comprehensive income ZEREE (8) =
Interest received B Uz FE 46,652 45,304
Net cash used in investing activities KEZBRACFERS (254,050) (263,006)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBHBEELHRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERZFERIE 31(c) - 400,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIFTER 31(c) (80,000) (995,000)
Dividends paid B (327,600) (250,657)
Payment of lease liabilities TREEAE 31(c) (956,340) (933,062)
Shares repurchased and cancelled fE Ml Kt dEAR 9 20 (46,049) =
Purchase of shares held for share BARRKRNEBEIMBEEH
award scheme R%15 32 (32,154) =
Interest paid BEAFE 31(c) (18,093) (23,758)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBAAFERS (1,460,236) (1,802,477)
Net decrease in cash and RekReFEER 2FRLD
cash equivalents (203,287) (402,329)
Cash and cash equivalents FYHeRReFHEIER
at the beginning of the year 1,260,948 1,671,978
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes AN R 2 522 (4,028) (8,701)
Cash and cash equivalents FRREMREEEIEE
at the end of the year 14 1,053,633 1,260,948

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2.1

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of quick
service restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering as
well as food processing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2025.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and defined benefit scheme plan
assets, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2

2.1

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The Group’s management regularly monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate amount of banking facilities are available to meet the
Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and long term. As at
31 March 2025, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$303,877,000 (2024: HK$200,827,000). This net
current liabilities position was mainly attributable to the recognition
of lease liabilities of HK$735,986,000 (2024: HK$774,067,000) in
current liabilities and HK$1,093,324,000 (2024: HK$1,289,060,000)
in non-current liabilities, while the associated right-of-use assets of
HK$2,159,044,000 (2024: HK$2,366,096,000) were recognised
in non-current assets in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”.
Management believes that there is no significant liquidity risk in view
of the available bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents held.
In addition, the directors regularly review the liquidity position of the
Group to ensure all covenants with banks are compiled with at all
times. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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2

2.1
(i)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
New and amended HKFRSs adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended HKFRSs for
its annual reporting period commencing on 1 April 2024

o Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current”

o Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants”

o Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback”

o Revised Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”

o Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 “Supplier Finance
Arrangements”

The adoption listed above did not have any impact on the amount
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2

2.1
(i)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 wREEZE ()
New and amended HKFRSs not yet adopted by the Group (i)

Certain new standards, amendments to accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
March 2025 reporting period and have not been early adopted by

the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1
BAGENE 21 ]/ R
BB IR ELERLE 157 2185]

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
BRI HREERFE IR K
BRI ELERE 7R 21E5]

HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7

%Ei’éﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁu 155%
FRM I EERE 75
BRPBMEERIE 95 -
BRPHREERE 1057 R
BEGREAE 75

HKFRS 18
BBMEREENF
HKFRS 19

BB IEIEERFE 1957

185%

Amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5

BRRBE SR ZER]

B BERE

TR ER AR

Lack of Exchangeability
TRZ ARt

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

ERMIADENE

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

BAMBHREEN G LA ZFERE-F 115

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
(new standard)

sk 2 25 MR EE GrER))

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures (new standard)

BARREMZMBATE - HE GER)

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
IHRER 2 25 -fERALH B2 RERERRX
ZBHERZ DR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

BRMBHREERE 1057 )
BRI 2857 ZEF]

[nvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REEREMBARRA L AT 2
ML ESEABE

B & TR
T 28 0 18 3 58 I BR 4

EXSHHRRBE (&)

REEE 5H“’ M2 KRBT &

BE_T_RAF=A=1t—HILHEH
SRFERBRT A R

 MAKE TR

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

or after

HEUT A

®ZBEKRN

FEHBEXR

1 January 2025
—E-RFE—HA—

1 January 2026
—E-RF-A—
1 January 2026

—E-XRF—H—H

1 January 2027
—ZE_t+F—-HA—H
1 January 2027
—ZE_t+F—-HA—H

1 January 2027

—E-t+F¥—-H—H

To be determined

FEE
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2

2.1
(i)

2.2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs not yet adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements,
introducing new requirements that will help to achieve comparability
of the financial performance of similar entities and provide more
relevant information and transparency to users. Even though HKFRS
18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the
financial statements, its impacts on presentation and disclosure are
expected to be pervasive, in particular those related to the statement
of financial performance and providing management-defined
performance measures within the financial statements.

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and amended standards and interpretation, but is yet in a
position to state whether they would have significant impacts on its
results of operations and financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2

2.2
(a)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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2

2.2
(a)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2

2.2
(b)

2.3

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.
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(a)

(b)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “finance income and finance costs”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement item are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.5

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group's ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Freehold land is stated at historical cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.5

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5%
Shorter of remaining period of the

Building

Leasehold improvements
lease or useful life

10%

Furniture and other equipment 12.5% —33.3%

Plant and machinery

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in the consolidated income
statement.

For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of
the property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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2.6

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Right-
of-use assets of the leasehold land that meet the definition of
investment property are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by
external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.
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2.6

2.7
(a)

(b)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)
Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group’s share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwiill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.
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(a)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investments at
FVOCI.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other income and other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

EXSHHRRBE (&)

2.12 Trade and other receivables 2.12 EERHMEURBRIE

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.9 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(d) for a description of
the Group's impairment policies.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdraft.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.15 Trade payables and other creditors and
accrued liabilities
Trade payables and other creditors and accrued liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in respect
of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and
losses that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred
if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on interest rates on similar
borrowings in the entity’s functional currency.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with

respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

(i)

(iii)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers or when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.21 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVOCI.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Income grants are presented as “other income” in the consolidated
income statement.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.24 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be

settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the income
statement. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

2.25 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2 EXSEHBRHEE (&)
(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued) 2.25 HE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s

useful life and the lease term on a stra

ight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a

straight-line basis as an expense in the
leases are leases with a lease term of 1

income statement. Short-term
2 months or less.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the

scope of the lease by adding

the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

EXSHHRRBE (&)

2.25 Leases (Continued) 2.25 HE (&)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on their nature.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.27 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.
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2

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.27 Financial guarantees (Continued)

3.1

(@)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by the
management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").
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3

3.1
(a)

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

Certain bank balances of companies of the Group in Hong Kong
are denominated in US dollars. As HK$ is pegged to US dollar, the
foreign exchange risk is considered as minimal. Except the aforesaid,
the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for bank
deposits and bank borrowings, the income and operating cash flows
of which are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates which are subject to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2025, if interest rates had been increased/decreased
by 0.5% with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year would have been decreased/increased by HK$1,273,000
(2024: HK$1,607,000) and increased/decreased by HK$1,139,000
(2024: HK$2,493,000) respectively, as a result of the changes in the
interest expenses on bank borrowings and interest income on bank
deposits.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

() Price risk
The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets at FVOCI. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2025, if the price of the listed equity securities
(financial assets at FVOCI) had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables being held constant, the Group’s FVOCI investment
reserve would have increased/decreased by HK$3,879,000 (2024:
HK$7,450,000).

(d) Credit risk

(i) Risk management
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual
cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, deposits
with bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers and debtors, including trade and other receivables.
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3.1
(d)
@i)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Majority of the Group’s bank
balances and deposits are placed in banks and financial institutions
which are independently rated with investment grade credit rating
(Moody’s: Baa3 or above; Standard & Poor’s: BBB- or above; Fitch:
BBB- or above). Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks and financial institutions as they have
no default history in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of
cash at bank is assessed to be nominal and no provision was made
as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group's historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowance and the directors
are of the opinion that expected credit loss rate of these balances is
nominal and no provision was made as at 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group's bank balances
and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings, and the Group has a large number
of counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.
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3.1
(d)
(ii)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three main types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

(1)

)

Cash and cash equivalents

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, as all financial
institutions are rated with investment grade credit rating, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on the nature of customer accounts,
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are calculated using a “roll rate”
method based on the probability of a receivable progressing
through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Roll
rates are calculated separately for exposures in different
segments based on the common credit risk characteristics.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The group has identified the GDP and the fixed investment
growth rate of Hong Kong and Mainland China to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HBERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREE(E)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) EEmRk(E)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) SHEEREBEGE)
(2)  Trade receivables (Continued) (2) EEEWERIE(E)
On the basis, expected loss rate of trade receivables is BRUEEE RZT-_AF=H
assessed to be close to zero, as at 31 March 2025 and = +t—BEZZFE-_WNNF=H
31 March 2024. In respect of trade receivables, the loss =+—H  &XEWKKREANTEL
allowance as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 was EBEERWHATAEOT -HEHX
determined as follows: BUWEREmMS  R_ZE_RHF=
A=+—BR-_ZZE-_ME=A
—t+—HREEBEETNT ¢
31 March 2025 0-30days 31-60days 61-90days 91-365days Over 365 days Total
“B-RE=RA=1-H 0Z£30H 312608 61290 H 91£365H #3650 st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FEn FET FET FET FET
Gross carrying amount BREE
- Trade receivables - EREENER 41,645 9,491 3,483 3,321 237 58,177
Loss allowance BiEAE - - - (49) (237) (286)
31 March 2024 0-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-365days  Over 365 days Total
“E-RF=A=t-H 0Z30R 312608 61290H 91Z2365H #365A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FAT FEL FEL
Gross carrying amount BEEE
- Trade receivables - BERWERTE 68,980 12,262 4217 3,971 83 89,513
Loss allowance BiERE - - - = (83) (83)
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3.1
(d)
(ii)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

Trade receivables (Continued)

A credit-impaired financial asset is when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when
they fall due or it becomes probable the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy. A default on a financial asset is when
the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within
120 days of when they fall due. Trade and other receivables
are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of greater than
120 days past due. Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables are presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

3

Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Other financial assets at amortised costs include the deposits
and other receivables excluding prepayments. The credit
quality of other financial assets at amortised costs has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. Other financial assets at amortised costs are
considered to be low credit risk where they have a low risk
of default and the counterparties have strong capacities to
meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
Management compares the risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition and considers that their credit
risks have not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Management is of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is not significant and does not expect
any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other financial
assets at amortised costs is assessed to be nominal and no
provision was made as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.
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3.1
(e)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, after considering the expected
market conditions, implies maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of available
credit facilities. The Group continues to maintain a healthy net
cash position by keeping credit lines available and to maintain
flexibility in future funding. As at 31 March 2025, the Group had
total banking facilities amounting to HK$1,280,660,000 (2024:
HK$1,627,459,000) of which HK$467,642,000 were utilised
(2024: HK$546,783,000). As at 31 March 2025, the Group had
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$813,018,000 (2024:
HK$1,080,676,000).

The Group's primary cash requirements are payments for trade
payables, other creditors and accrued liabilities and operating
expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through internal resources and borrowings from
financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities.

144

3

3.1
(e)

B EREE (&)

AR ()

REEEEE
EERDECRREELT RTBEEHT
BRRIEERATEHNA B EERER
B HBEAHOReRITAES K
SREERBEEREREEBRISTEBETF
REeBERARARESCHRBME - R=ZF
—HEEZAZ=Z+—H8B AEEZETT
1= B #8 %8 3 1,280,660,000/8 ;o ( — &
—PY4F : 1,627,459,000/87C) + EFE
&) F 467,642,000 78 7|:( —EMEFE:
546,783,000 L) RZTE_HF =
HE+—Ev$$@ﬁT@%2ﬁﬁ%
B%6/4813,018,000/8 0 (=T =4 :
1,080,676,000787T) °

AEBEMFR S T EZRERNESREN
BRK - At ENBRIB N BT BB UARE

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ° ﬁ$$@m/m§b§§wzg

BAREIR KK B S REIBHNERES -

TRARBENZHBBAREENIENT
L RAESN SEBEEHAERNDT -



ARLEEAR AT 2024/25 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

3  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their carrying

balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

3

3.1
(e)

2=
AL

B EREE (&)

M EREE ()
A ERE (&)
REHRBONSERBORBRR SR

E-BRMBENFELTEAN Ait

[

+ =8 A AR ER SRR B R H AR E £

Total
Within undiscounted
oneyearor Betweenone Between two More than cash flows
ondemand and twoyears and five years five years AERBS
—FRHRER —EMER RELER RENE RELE
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A FéEn Térx A TEx
At 31 March 2025 R=2=R§=p=+-A
Trade payables BEENRER 204,567 - - - 204,567
Other creditors and accrued  EAhEERE RIEF B
liabilties (excluding (TREFLRER)
non-financial liabilities) 515,411 - - - 515,411
Lease liabilities REAR 799,639 510,691 589,399 68,458 1,968,187
Bank borrowings RITER 92,432 230,610 - - 323,082
1,612,049 741,301 589,399 68,458 3,011,207
Total
Within undiscounted
oneyearor  Betweenone  Between two More than cash flows
ondemand  andtwoyears  and five years five years FERRE
—ERHRER —EMER MEREFN AFNE mELH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET FE7
At 31 March 2024 R=B-ME=A=+-H
Trade payables EEREMRE 210,767 - - - 210,767
Other creditors and accrued  EA1E(REREH £
liabilities (excluding (TBEEERER)
non-financial liabilities) 570,915 = = = 570,915
Lease liabilities E8F 843,009 601,660 710,840 55,758 2,211,267
Bank borrowings FITER 87,007 85,349 226,987 - 399,343
1,711,698 687,009 937,827 55,758 3,392,292

145



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

3

3.2

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group monitor capital on
basis of gearing ratio, which is calculated based on total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity.

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, as the Group is in a net
cash position of HK$748,633,000 and HK$875,948,000 respectively,
management considers that the Group’s capital risk is minimal.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The difference levels have been defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2025:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ @REE
— Listed equity investments* - PR E *

3.3

B EREE (&)

AFEGE ()
ARER_F_HF=A=T—HBER
FEAENEMAEHIIN T -

Level 1 Total
E—/ et
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
38,787 38,787

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2024:

Assets BE

Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ 2R EE
— Listed equity investments* - AR A *

AKER-_Z-NE=A=+—HERRQ
HEFENSRMEERSIN TR :

Level 1 Total
F—1 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
74,499 74,499

* Amount mainly represented the equity investment in Tao Heung Holdings Limited.
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3

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less loss allowance of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.
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4

(a)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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4

(a)

(b)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections, which include among others, consideration of the
present and expected market conditions; and whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets. The
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
and amortisable lives and therefore affect the depreciation and
amortisation charges in future periods.

150

4

(a)

(b)

BRSNS ET & N H il ()

MR - BERRE - EREE
ENREFEERE(F)

B EFE B A EERED EEH
UeHE - ()R ECBLERGEBRRARE
EEERENIWEZEM4 : (i)rTkE
IR (BN A FERH E R A RIZ R P 5
BEREEMGEFHNARRREREZF
RETHORSE)EEAXFHZREE R
IR ¢ DA K (iii) R 120 2 7% 8 TRDBI B P %
ArEE BRERERE(BERRRY) HR
B RIEHITRANEE AR REERE
BEURENZFRSRETRR o bk
EEERNFHEREZRR (BRRER
ETRRTERA R RYIERERRR

RAEREAATERNFREEER
E AMPEARE MBI R EE

i

ME- BMERRE  E£AREE
ERBREEZERFH
AEBZEEEREYE  BEMR
- ERREENBTEEREEMTH
ERFRRARITE MEHE W -t
AHARLEE R M - BER&R
B ERAEEEREBNEERERR
BIRAIERFHAEE - HAlEHFH
BERGRTFHAE  MEEERRES
WEREHX - HiSHEHs iR 2
BERHERM EBFRIEREEZE
Eo BERQEFHA Rt 2 fER
FHIAE o MR Al s (E A I 8 K
HEHMLRES  AmZEERKHAHE
ZITE MBI o

/



ARLEEHR AR 2024/25 F3#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

4

(@)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. No deferred income
tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain whether there are
sufficient future taxable profits available before such tax losses expire
where the final outcome of these uncertainties are different from
the estimation, such differences will impact the carrying amount of
deferred income tax assets in the period in which such determination
is made.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for withholding
tax on the undistributed retained profits of the Mainland China
subsidiaries. The Group assesses its needs to make distribution out of
its subsidiaries. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the
undistributed retained profits that are expected to be distributed by
the Group in the future.
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4

(d)

(e)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in consolidated income statement.
The Group obtains independent valuations at least annually. At
the end of each reporting period, the management update their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. In making the assessment,
consideration is given to assumptions based on market conditions,
such as actual market data and latest transactions for comparable
properties, existing at the end of the financial reporting period.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options or shares that are expected to vest. At the
end of each financial reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions, taking into account the
Group’s latest business performance, current market condition and
the future business outlook.
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(f)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most

relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),
the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a

significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed when an option is actually exercised
(or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is revised when
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
Group.
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(9)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Estimation of long service payment

The present value of the long service payment depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number
of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of long service payment.

Details of key assumptions and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in note 15.

Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering, as well as
food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different segments,
and assesses the business principally from a geographical perspective,
including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment results as
presented below represent operating profit excluding fair value
changes on investment properties, depreciation and amortization
(excluding depreciation for right-of-use assets — properties), reversal
of impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets; and including finance cost of lease liabilities.
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥ERGE)
Segment information of the Group for the current year and AEBAFENDBENNMLERETE
comparative figures are as follows: FEATS -
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
B8 FR A it AEH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Year ended 31 March 2025 BE-_Z-_RFf=H=+—H
IHFE
Total segment revenue DI ALBEE 7,079,885 1,601,184 8,681,069
Inter-segment revenue (Note /) REBDFBU A (KTaEi) (6,794) (105,958) (112,752)

Revenue (from external revenue) L INCIEES 1IN

(Note ii) (Hiatii) 7,073,091 1,495,226 8,568,317
Represented by timing of revenue RRAFERNRREETR

recognition:

— At a point in time - EXE KR 7,042,220 1,495,203 8,537,423

— Over time - EX-REER 30,871 23 30,894

7,073,091 1,495,226 8,568,317

Segment results (Note iii) DABEELE (K tiii) 525,090 162,567 687,657
Depreciation and amortisation e g

(excluding depreciation of (EREEE-MEZFE

right-of-use assets — properties) BRI (303,057) (75,416) (378,473)
Fair value loss on investment properties 1% & ¥13H) A F(EF1E (38,200) - (38,200)
Reversal of impairment loss of FEREEE RERBERD

right-of-use assets 1,920 - 1,920
Impairment loss of property, mE - BEEREZ

plant and equipment BEEE (8,771) (2,811) (11,582)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets & & E < i EEE (22,458) - (22,458)
Finance income TS 44,369 2,283 46,652
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITEI WA (18,093) - (18,093)
Income tax expense FriSHi & A (22,073) (10,239) (32,312)
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Segment Information (Continued)

5 Z2¥ERE)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
B HR B A rEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE_Z-_ME=HF=+—H
LFE
Total segment revenue DU A LB 7,181,814 1,625,812 8,807,626
Inter-segment revenue (Note /) WEE A FRUA (Ha ) (5,746) (110,431) (116,177)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (R B INEBUYRA)
(Note ii) (Hiatii) 7,176,068 1,515,381 8,691,449
Represented by timing of revenue  #ZUWW A HERBIFFREIER R -
recognition:
— At a point in time — R 2 7,143,692 1,515,373 8,659,065
— Qver time - EX—EREEA 32,376 8 32,384
7,176,068 1,515,381 8,691,449
Segment results (Note Jii) DAEELE (Mt iii) 618,894 179,421 798,315
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
(excluding depreciation of (ERREE-MEITE
right-of-use assets — properties) BRI (314,809) (79,381) (394,190)
Fair value loss on investment properties 1% & 4% H) A F(E 518 (31,900) = (31,900)
Reversal of impairment loss of property, #72 « BE &2
plant and equipment REEER D 4,320 - 4,320
Impairment loss of property, M - WENREHE
plant and equipment EEE (6,223) - (6,223)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets {& & E 2w EE1E (2,290) - (2,290)
Finance income B REUA 43,486 1,818 45,304
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITERZ ISR (23,808) - (23,808)
Income tax expense FriSti & A (31,879) (24,434) (56,313)
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5

Segment Information (Continued) 5 S3E:
0) Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal (i)
course of business.

(if)

(iif)

The Group has a large number of customers. For the (ii)
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no revenue was

derived from transactions with a single external customer
representing 10% or more of the Group's total revenue.

Information of segment results

(iif)

(a) The following items are included in the measure

Ak
]
AEEREREET -BE_T
—HERZZBZMNF=A=1—
RIEFE  TEREIDBETZ

RPEENAEELR AR 10%
A EZWA ©

ECES -

(@ MHNATHBEFAXEESR

of segment results reviewed by the Chief Executive FRTEEHN D BES
Officer of the Group: FHE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB FEIR b ]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FE7
Year ended 31 March 2025 Z-ECRE
ZR=t+-HLEE
Depreciation - right-of-use FE-RREEE-NZ
assets — properties 694,983 116,279 811,262
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEAGEHNHBRA 65,706 20,316 86,022
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-Z-MF
ZA=t-HALEE
Depreciation - right-of-use & - EREEE - 0%
assets — properties 694,302 111,274 805,576
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEAERNHBRA 64,966 19,818 84,784
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 Z2¥ERGE)
(i) Information of segment results (Continued) (i) DEEREEHGE)
(b)  Recondiliation of total segment results to total profit b) HBREEAFHERRTIAG
before income tax is as follows: FABFERHRRIAT -
2025 2024
—E-FHE —E U4
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment results Pak SE L 687,657 798,315
Depreciation and amortisation  #78 kB4
(excluding depreciation of (EREEE-MEZFE
right-of-use assets — properties)  Br4h) (378,473) (394,190)
Fair value loss on investment BREMEN DT EEE
properties (38,200) (31,900)
Reversal of impairment loss of EREEEL
right-of-use assets EE BRI 1,920 —
Reversal of impairment loss of mE - BELREZ
property, plant and equipment  JEi{EEIEE R - 4,320
Impairment loss of property, Mm% - WEEREZ
plant and equipment BEEE (11,582) (6,223)
Impairment loss of right-of-use  {FRAEEE 2 REEE
assets (22,458) (2,290)
Finance income B U A 46,652 45,304
Finance cost on bank borrowings $R1TE 72 B FSACA (18,093) (23,808)
Profit before income tax FRA R A 267,423 389,528
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Segment Information (Continued)

5 Z2¥ERE)

Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
&8 Bl At rEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FHET
As at 31 March 2025 R-EBE-_RAF=A=+—H
Segment assets PEEE 4,716,035 1,109,206 5,825,241
Year ended 31 March 2025 BE-—ZE_-8fF
ZA=t—HLEHFE
Segment assets include: DEEER
Additions to non-current assets REFNDEE(ERIAR
(other than financial instruments FEEFL B EERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 796,152 207,314 1,003,466
As at 31 March 2024 RZZEZMFE=H=+—H
Segment assets DEEAE 5,231,695 1,140,804 6,372,499
Year ended 31 March 2024 HE-_ZT-UF
ZA=+—RHILFE
Segment assets include: NEEERE
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE(EBIAK
(other than financial instruments FEIEFI B EERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 670,187 271,151 941,338
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5

Segment Information (Continued)

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that
are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted
to HK$3,544,509,000 (2024: HK$3,861,999,000) and
HK$797,299,000 (2024: HK$803,946,000) respectively.

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

DEER ()

R_E-_RAE=ZA=+—H ' KA£H
EREAERTBEAMNERDEE
(EMIAREEHBEEERI) 25
#3,544,509,000% ;o = & — 4 & :
3,861,999,000 % 7T, ) & 797,299,000 7 7T
(ZZ P4 : 803,946,000 7T) °

DREERBEEERRNERNT

follows:

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-ZE-HF pr g
=A=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHAETT FET
Total segment assets DIRAEMRR 5,825,241 6,372,499
Deferred income tax assets RIEFRIAE = 99,021 66,214

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZEREE 38,787 74,499
Current income tax recoverable BHART U B £ 18 17,181 712
Total assets BELR 5,980,230 6,513,924
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #%¥ BMERIKEUREHA

of-Use Assets EEE
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
0% RERRA ERREE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture land and
buildings and other [and use
(otec) ~ Leasehold  equipment  Plantand right
1HEES improvements FHR  machinery |  Subtotal | HEIHE  Properties |  Subtotal Total
(lZc HERTRE  HfkE  HERES 0| LHERE ES it g
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Fiér b2-1 i i i i i fir FEn
Year ended 31 March 2025 i
ZRt-BLEE
(Opening net book amount SIEEAE 500,444 501,150 450,448 100633 | 1,552,675 539260 1826834 | 23660% 3918
Additions RE - 118,962 155,973 19457 294392 - 669,963 669,963 964,355
Disposals i - (4416) (5073) (64 (9,553) - - - 95%3)
Modfication and termination of leases ~ REEHRE I - - - - - - (21,589) (21,589) (21,589)
Reversal of impairment loss of PREEE REER
rgft-0f-use assets AL - - - - - - 1920 1920 1920
Depreciation il (17,861) (151,446) (170,747) (17,756) (357.810) (20,651) (811,262) (831,913)  (1,189723)
Impairment HE - (5,867) (5,715) - (11582) - (22.458) (22.459) (34,000)
Exchange differences EizE (57) (2,280) (19) (195) (3,126) (157) (2.818) (2.975) (6,101)
(Closing net book amount REmSE 482,011 456,103 44807 102,075 | 1,46499% 51845 164059 | 2159044 3,624,040
At 31 March 2025 W21
=B=t-A
Cost it 7553 1672637 2103326 307,785 | 4816301 162134 4280219 | 504435 9,860,654
Accumulated deprecition ZENERAEEE
and impaiment losses (250542)  (1.216534)  (1678519)  (05,710) | (3351305) | (43680) (2641620 | (2885300  (6,236,614)
Closing net hook amount SREEFE 482,011 456,103 44807 102075 | 1,464,99% 51845 1660590 | 2159044 3,624,040
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6

YK BB RREURER

of-Use Assets (Continued) EEE (&)
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use asets
0% BERZE {PREaz
Leasehold
Land and Furniture land and
buidings and other land use
Motec) — leasghold  equipment  Plantand right
THREF  improvements FRE  mahiney | Subtotdl | BELHR  Popertes Subtotal Totdl
Wido RERFRE  EtRE  HRRES Nt bR VS it %
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 Hk$ 000 HKs$ 000 Hks 000 H$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
i FAn i A Fér Fén Fn Y i
At 1 April 2023 WZ2Z=EMmA-A
Cost i 121331 1581418 1,955,087 305428 | 4,569,265 057944 7491068 | 8149012 12718277
Accumulated deprecation ZEMERAEER
and impaiment losses (2094)  (1053761) (1472445 QoA415) | Q951563) | (0484) (5531009 | (5,735850)  (8887.413)
(Closing net book amount HREESA 506,390 521,657 432,64 100013 | 1,617,702 $3103 1960059 | 2413162 4030864
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-gopE
ZRt-BLEE
(Opening net book amount SEEFE 506,390 521,657 432,602 101,013 1,617,702 453103 190,05 | 2413162 4,030,864
Additions HE = 146,004 152,645 19454 318103 = 588310 588310 906,413
Disposals e - (433 (206) (131) (653)) = = = (653)
Modfication and termination of leases ~ EEEERAL = - - - - - 00 102,109 102,109
Depreciation g (17903 (157,697) (179,056) (18,776) (373452 (20.701) (805,576) (826.277)  (1199.729)
Reversalof impairment loss HEGERE - 2047 2B - 4320 - = = 4300
Impairment HE - (2679) (3,548 - (6.23) = (2,29 229 8513
Transfe from property, plant and % - BERE
equipment and right-0f-use assets N RERRERES
{oinvestment propertes (Voie 7 BB (Hit7) (6,000 - - - (6000) | (42000) - {20000 (48,000
Tiansfer fiom investment properties ~~~ ERENEER A
to property, plant and equipment % - R Rkl
and right-of-use asets (ot /) NiEREEE (B ) 16,000 - = = 16,000 119,000 = 119,000 135,000
Revaluation surplus of propert, E\RENZANE
plant and equipment and i BB R
rght-of-use asses prior BREREELRR
to transfering to investment (#i7)
properties (Note /) 5300 - - - 5300 30,671 - 30,671 31971
Bxchange differences EXZE (3303 (9.849) (2443) 927) (16,54 8N (15778) (16,589) (33,131)
(Closing net hook amount SREEFE 500444 501,150 450,448 100,633 1552675 539,262 186834 | 23660% 3918771
At31 March 2024 iut i
Zhzt-H
Cost s 134129 1632088 201424 29497 | 4675408 162318 7693190 | 8455568 13130976
Accumulated deprecition ZENERAEEE
and impairment losses (233685 (1130938)  (1563776) (194334) | 3122.733) 3116 (8663%) | (6089472 (9,212,209
(Closing net hook amount SREEFE 500444 501,150 450,448 100,633 1,552,675 539,262 186834 | 23660% 3918771
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
of-Use Assets (Continued)

(@

Depreciation expenses of HK$1,172,459,000 (2024:
HK$1,182,002,000) and HK$17,264,000 (2024:
HK$17,727,000) have been charged to cost of sales and
administrative expenses respectively (Note 24), while
impairment losses of HK$34,040,000 (2024: HK$8,513,000)
and reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,920,000 (2024:
HK$4,320,000) have been charged to other income and
other (losses)/gains, net (Note 23).

Impairment/reversal of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group mainly operates restaurants, institutional catering
and casual dining chains on self-owned properties and
leased properties with lease terms ranging from one to nine
years (2024: same). Management regards each individual
restaurant as a separately identifiable CGU and performs
assessments on each of the CGU with impairment/reversal
indicators by considering the recoverable amount of such
assets at restaurant level. During the year ended 31 March
2025, management identified those restaurants with
impairment/reversal indicators and performed assessments
to estimate the corresponding recoverable amounts of their
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use basis which cover a period of the
useful life or the remaining lease term, whichever is shorter.
Impairment is recognised when the recoverable amount
was lower than the carrying amount of a CGU. Reversal of
impairment is recognised when the recoverable amount was
higher than the carrying amount of a CGU. Key inputs to
the determination of the recoverable amount includes the
annual revenue growth and pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax
discount rate used to determine the recoverable amounts is
approximately 10.5% per annum (2024: 12.0%).
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BEE (&)
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17,727,000/ 7T) E D RlFT AHE
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{E /518 34,040,000/ 7L ( —Z =Y
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-

2

of-Use Assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment/reversal of impairment of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Based on the assessments performed, the Group recognised
an impairment charge of property, plant and equipment
of HK$11,582,000 (2024: HK$6,223,000) and right-of-
use assets of HK$22,458,000 (2024: HK$2,290,000) as
well as a reversal of impairment of right-of-use-assets of
HK$1,920,000 (2024: nil) for the year ended 31 March 2025.
The Group recognised a reversal of impairment of property,
plant and equipment of HK$4,320,000 for the year ended 31

March 2024.

6 ME BERIREUKREHR
BEE (&)

(b)

ME - BEERBARERHEER
EZRE/HERED (&)

RIEFET TG REEZT
ZHEF=ZA=+—HLEFE &
EEBERME - BELZEZR
B 11,582,000 7L (= =P
£ 1 6,223,00087T) RIEAEEE
ZRMES 1 22,458,0008 L (—Z
—PU4E : 2,290,000 7T ) LA K AF
& E 2B ERE 1,920,000 % 7T
(ZZZWF - |8) - AEEREE
T CNE=A=1+—HILFEE
R - WFE REE 2B ERE
4,320,000 87T °

(©  The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows: (© AEBEITHREFONET :
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-B-HF i
=A=t+—H =A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET F&T

Net book value: REHE

Freehold land SKAFEREL M 14,811 14,811
Buildings g 467,200 485,633
482,011 500,444
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #%¥ BMERIKEUREHA

of-Use Assets (Continued) EEE (&)
(d)  This note provides information for the leases where the (d) I FREANEEAHEBANE
Group is a lessee. &K -
0) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) REEUBRAKRPER
financial position e
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R=ZBZHEF R-Z_MF
=A=t+-—H —A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

Leasehold land and HAEL A&
land use right T AR 518,454 539,262
Properties ES 1,640,590 1,826,834
2,159,044 2,366,096
Lease liabilities HEEE
Non-current JEmED 1,093,324 1,289,060
Current RE 735,986 774,067
1,829,310 2,063,127
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #%¥ BMERIKEUREHA

of-Use Assets (Continued) EEE (&)
(d)  This note provides information for the leases where the (d) MR EAREEAZEE AMNE
Group is a lessee. (Continued) &K (B)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income iy MREcERXTPERZS
statement |
2025 2024
—E-RE —EmE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET F#ET
Depreciation of right-of-use FERAEEEZIE
assets
Leasehold land and land use right FHE -t Jo - R A 20,651 20,701
Properties LYES 811,262 805,576
831,913 826,277
Interest expenses (included in BT (GEABBERA)
finance costs) 86,022 84,784

Expense relating to short-term leases fHEHMAEGHE s BA
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHERA) 39,055 37,302

Expenses relating to variable lease ~ T~EEEHAEREANND

payments not included in lease BREFHENTKER
liabilities (included in cost of sales) A (sF ASHERA) 59,517 60,442
Leases entered by the Group were generally with AEBFIZ2HE—RE
lease term of one to nine years with renewal option. —ENFHEE - WrEE
B o
During the year ended 31 March 2025, total cash HE_Z-_AF=A=+—
outflows for leases were HK$956,340,000 (2024: HItFE - HERSRLE
HK$933,062,000). %8 £ 956,340,000 jT( =
= — PY £ : 933,062,000
JT) °
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7 Investment Properties 7 BEYx
2025 2024
ZB-hHEF —EpUEF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt EE FET FET
Beginning of the year FHNEEER 440,300 559,200
Transfer from property, plant and Rz - BB RE&E
equipment and right-of-use A RFEREEE
assets to investment properties B RIRENE 6 - 48,000
Transfer from investment HEREMERERRYE -
properties to property, plant and BB
equipment and right-of-use assets FHEEE 6 - (135,000)
Fair value loss NEEE 23 (38,200) (31,900)
End of the year FRER 402,100 440,300
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties: MIREMERBRP RN -
2025 2024
—E-FE —ET 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Rental income el A 13,099 13,403
Direct operating expenses from EEXHeRAZHEZ
properties that generate rental income ~ E#¥=EERH (1,145) (1,419)
11,954 11,984
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7

Investment Properties (Continued) 7 BEYx(E)
During the year ended 31 March 2024, as a result of change in use, BHE_ZT_WE=A=+—RHILtFE "
an investment property of HK$135,000,000 located in Hong Kong e # - 7 & % #9 135,000,000
was transferred to owner-occupied property and right-of-use asset, BITRENEEBREQRMERFERAE
and an owner-occupied property and right-of-use asset located in BE MURBENERMERERAE
Hong Kong was transferred to investment property. Details of the BENEREREDE -BAREME
transfer into investment property is as follows: ZEERT
2025 2024
—EB-HE —E PO
Note HK$000 HK$°000
B = FET FHT
On the date of transfer REREHR
— Fair value of properties and - BEBHMER
right-of-use assets transferred EREEEQTE - 48,000
— Carrying amounts of properties - BEBRMER
and right-of-use assets transferred FAEEEREE - (12,029)
Revaluation surplus recognised in REMEERA
other comprehensive income R EL &R - 35,971

Independent valuation of the properties being transferred were
performed by CBRE Limited to determine the fair value of the
investment properties at the dates of transfer.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no un-provided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2024: Nil).

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties
was performed by CBRE Limited to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 March 2025 and 2024. Fair value loss
has been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains, net (Note
23).
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7 Investment Properties (Continued) 7 BEYx(E)
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair TRAABEERATHEIITIREDE -

value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2025 using
R-B-HAF=A=+-—HBZAVEFEFRER

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
EEEETER H AT HEN FEATEREM
% EHRE ERWAE ERWAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
it (B—#%) (B=4) (B=4)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements & E QA F A=
Investment properties: wEME

- Shops — Hong Kong - - BB - - 402,100

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2024 using

RZZTZNF=A=1+—RAZ2ATFEFEFREA
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
R & SR Efth AT EERHY SERTEIERE
M5 ERRE BABAE BARBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
it (B—#&) (B=&) (B=%)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FET FET

Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HMAFETE
Investment properties: EYE

— Shops - Hong Kong - - BB - - 440,300
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7 Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of

fair value hierarchy levels as of the d

ate of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Leve

Is 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation Unobservable

Fair value technique inputs

AFE fEER % R B R A E
(HK$'000)
(F%)

As at 31 March 2025
R-E-_HF=A=+—H

Direct Comparison

Method with
adjusting factors Adjusted units’ rates
EABREREN RARENER

402,100 =K 354 597

REWH (&)
ARERE AN AR EBEE E
42 BRERBBE - RRAATEER
BRI o

FRN-F—R FARE=HREAGE
8B o

Relationship of

Range of unobservable

unobservable inputs to

inputs fair value

FE A8 AT FEABENEAE

W AEREE B2 AP {E HBA{R

The higher the

HK$11,500 to adjusted units’ rates,

HK$54,000 the higher the

per square feet fair value
B¥HR11,500F RARBENERES

54,000 /& T DNFEHS

As at 31 March 2024
RZZEZWMFE=A=+—H

Direct Comparison

Method with
adjusting factors Adjusted units’ rates
£ HFAEREER KRB EA(E
440,300 BRLEOL

HK$13,000 to

per square feet
FF¥HIRI13,000E KLAREGERYS

The higher the
adjusted units’ rates,
the higher the

fair value

HK$59,000

59,0008 7T NEEBS
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7

Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2025 and 2024 were determined on the basis of a valuation by a
qualified valuer in accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards
2017" published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, which is
also compliant with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the International
Valuation Standards (IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the direct comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes
and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a
year for financial reporting purpose.
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8

Intangible Assets

8 ®EEEE

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BE HtEEEE g
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHETT FHET
At 1 April 2023 R-—®B-=fmA—A
Cost AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ Z2E#E S MR EERE
impairment losses (246) (57,745) (57,991)
Closing net book amount BRSRERTFE 1,104 49 1,153
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-—ZE_NE=HA=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount YRR EFE 1,104 49 1,153
Amortisation expense (Note (a)  #$5&F (Mt (a) - (37) (37)
Closing net book amount HRAREFE 1,104 12 1,116
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-_WFE=A=+—H
Cost A 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZFE#E S MR EEE
impairment losses (246) (57,782) (58,028)
Closing net book amount HREE M FE 1,104 12 1,116
Year ended 31 March 2025 BE-ZE-_RAF=A=1+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount AR E A 1,104 12 1,116
Amortisation expense (Note (a) #3458 A (f1:7 (a) - (12) (12)
Closing net book amount HREREH#E 1,104 - 1,104
At 31 March 2025 R-ZE-_RFE=HA=+—H
Cost AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and 2 #4 MIREEE
impairment losses (246) (57,794) (58,040)
Closing net book amount HRAREDFE 1,104 - 1,104
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8

(a)

(b)

(c)

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$12,000 (2024: HK$37,000) has been
charged to costs of sales (Note 24).

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of five to twenty years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified according to
country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below.

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(9]

BYEE (8

12,0008 0 (ZZE =4 : 37,0008 7C)
ZEHEERD AT ASHER A (MizE24) -

HiBPEETZERRENE  HEM
FHARE_THF -

BRI
P Ty AR bR AN S A 1 B 5K 1 3 )
MR SEEEMERSE -

BENEHDBEB2HRAT

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
REZEZHF KRB ME
=HA=+—H =A=+—AH
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET

1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (ii) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.
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9 Subsidiaries 9

B B8 2 =]

TRV -_ZFE_AF=A=+—HH

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2025: TZMBARER
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held"  Principal
Name of subsidiary ML R L BRI/ FiE FriERM  activities
ME AR AR RS2 AfRA  ROER B! EEXEK
Asia Pacific Catering Hong Kong HK$131,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Corporation Limited B 131,000,000/ %@ R
REHRRBRATE
Barson Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BHERARLA N 10,000/87T E& MERE
Bloomcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$71,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEBARLE N 71,000,000  Ei@ R
Brilliantwin Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
WEBARAR N 1,000,000  E& R
Café de Coral Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
HEERES 1%1T  E@ AR
Café de Coral Central Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Food processing
Processing Limited B 208 L@ BMEE
Café de Coral (China) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$92,291,880  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REKE(HE) ARAF BB 92,291,880 Ll REER
Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS ~ Denmark DKK125,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
FHE 125,000 %= E& REER
Café de Coral Development British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited! HEERES 1%1  E# AR
Café de Coral Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$148,923,550  Ordinary 100%  Catering
REELEBRRAA N 148,923,550/ &l R
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Café de Coral (Guangzhou)
Catering Company Limited
ARE(BM) RMBRAR

Café de Coral (Macau) Limited
AR (RPY) BRAF

City Energy Limited
Blat BR A

Diners Court Management
Limited
ERUEBARAA

Dongguan Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited

REZGHRBEBRAF

Dongguan Continental
Foods Limited

REBERBARLQE

Eldoon Limited

Exo Enterprises Limited

Foshan Café de Coral Catering

Company Limited
FILAKERRBR AT

Gateway City Limited

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RSB 3L

Mainland China
HE A
Macau

SBFT

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

s

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
HE A

Hong Kong

s

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China

REAM

Hong Kong
&R

Issued/
registered
capital
B#1T/

o AR

HK$21,000,000
21,000,000 7C
MOP300,000

300,0003£7T

HK$200,000
200,000 87T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$7,400,000
7,400,00078 7T

RMB39,186,061
AE#39,186,061 7T

HK$21,000,000
21,000,000 & 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 7T

HK$6,000,000
6,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T
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9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fiks iEsTidr)
bl B!
- 100%
Ordinary 70%
gl
Ordinary 100%
gl
Ordinary 100%
EiE
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
g
Ordinary 100%
g
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
b

Principal
activities

TEXRE
Catering
#R
Catering
R

Property investment

MERE
Catering

R

Catering
#R

Food processing
RYEE

Catering
R

Catering
R

Catering

FR

Catering
R
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Global Force Limited
BBEARAA

Glory Congee & Noodles
Food Limited
BRERmEBRARF

Grand Seasons (Central)
Food and Beverages
Caterers Company Limited

Greatpower Kingdom Limited
ABEFERAA]

Greenwise Limited
HEBRAA

Guangzhou Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited
BMZERRABRAE]

Guangzhou Café de Coral
Foods Limited
BMNARLERmBEBR AR

Honour Congee & Noodles
Food Limited
ERERmARAA

Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering
Company Limited
BIMZEHRRARRAR

Invol Resources Limited
BERERERERAT

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RSB 3L

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
EB

Hong Kong
N

Hong Kong
&R

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
At

Hong Kong
N

Mainland China
B A

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
Mainland China
(operation)

B8 (),

B At (45 &

Issued/
registered
capital
B#1T/
s AR AR

HK$92,466,446
92,466,446 78T

HK$2,500,000
2,500,000 % 7T

HK$11,000,000
11,000,000 % 7T

HK$22,000,000
22,000,000 % 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 87T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000 % 7T

US$23,500,000
23,500,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$3,200,000
3,200,000 % T

HK$6,125,000
6,125,000 % T

176

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fiks iEsTidr)
bl B!
Ordinary 100%
i
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
TR
Ordinary 100%
i
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
R
- 100%
Ordinary 100%

Principal
activities
Catering
KR
Catering

R

Catering
R

Catering
#HR

Catering
R
Catering

/90

Food processing
RYEE

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Property investment

MEERE
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Jiangmen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited

TFIRFERRBRAR

Kamstar International Limited
S EREBRBRAR

Kater International Limited
Iz BPR A PR A

Kolink Enterprises Limited
BlEt R EFR AR

Luckyview Enterprises Limited
FREEARRLT

Maradona Limited
Paramount Success Limited
REARAR]

Perfect Plan International
Limited

Real King Limited
EHBRAR]

Regal Universal Limited
BRREARAT

Scanfoods Limited
EBBEBERABERAR

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RSB 3L

Mainland China
B Ay

Hong Kong
G

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
EE
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RBERES

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Issued/
registered
capital
B#1T/

o AR

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 % 7T
HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$2
2787
HK$1
1787

HK$20
2087T

HK$24,000,000
24,000,000 7T

US$1
1%

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000/ 7T

HK$18,000,000
18,000,000 % 7T

HK$2,100,000
2,100,0007& 7T

177

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
iEss P AR 4D
bl B!
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
=R
Ordinary 100%
=R
Ordinary 100%
=R
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

Principal
activities

TEEK

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Leasing of premises
space
MEMELE

Leasing of properties
HEWMZE

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#BR

Investment holding
REER

Catering
#BR

Catering
#BR

Food trading

ADEW%

RomnE
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9

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MELE BB

Shenzhen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited
AINARRERRER AN A

Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering

Company Limited

R FRHRERAT

Silver Weal Enterprises Limited

RS ERBRAR

Sparango Limited

The Spaghetti House

Restaurants Limited

EREBRAR

Very Nice Fast Food Limited

HEERMARRAHE

Weli Company Limited

AZBRAF

Winfast Holdings Limited

XBEEEBRAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RSB 3L
RASE i 2

Mainland China
HE A

Mainland China
B At

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
Mainland China
(operation)

B (KAL)
R (%)

Issued/
registered
capital
B#1T/

o AR

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 % 7T

HK$32,000,000
32,000,000 7C

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$18,500,000
18,500,000 % 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 % 7T

HK$17,025,000
17,025,000 % 7T
HK$5,675,000
5,675,000/ T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$10,000
10,0007 T

178

9

Class of

shares held

P
B4 %51

Ordinary
¥

Ordinary
¥

Ordinary
¥

Class A?
ASERI2
Class B?
BAERI?

Ordinary
¥

Ordinary
¥

BB~ = (&)

Percentage
of shares

held'

PR
Bk

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEXRE
Catering

B

Catering
R

Catering
R

Catering
R

Investment holding

RERR

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Property investment

MERE
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Worldway Limited
pNERC] YN

Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited

EERRARAA

Zhongshan Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited

FILARERRBR A

Zhuhai Café de Coral

Catering Company Limited

WEARERRBR AR

U Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

2 Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of class B shares
on certain shareholders’ rights.
g Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class

B shares have no voting rights.

4 The official names of the companies incorporated in Mainland China are in Chinese.

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEM RSB 3L
RS B

Macau

il

Hong Kong
B

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
HE A

English translation is for reference only.

° All of the companies incorporated in Mainland China are wholly foreign owned

enterprises.

Issued/
registered
capital
B#1T/

o AR

MOP300,000
300,0003£F97T

HK$6,701,560
6,701,560 87T
HK$2,872,100
2,872,100/ 7T

HK$1,300,000
1,300,000 87T

HK$8,000,000
8,000,000 % 7T
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9

Class of

shares held

s

B4 %51

Ordinary
g

Class A3
ASERI3
Class B?
BAERI3

BB~ = (&)

Percentage

of shares
held’
iEsTidr)
B!

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEK

Property investment

MERE

Catering and property
investment

RREMERE

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Café de Coral Development Limited f 74X A &]
HERE - MEHMHIBARSREERSE -

EBRARABNBRBZHAEAZE TR
REMERBEARMN 2156 AFfES 2 #

o

IR B R B ARRBRND ZHEABERE
B T BARRIARID 2 B AU BT -

PR B A RE AR SZ B0 A B 2 VA E & R 2 A
X o BXGELEHBE o

FAERTEARBFMR IO ARRIINELE

3
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10 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 10

11

Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
include the following:

Listed investments denominated in HK$ LAABTTRHMER LR E
— Market value of listed equity securities* - PR S TE

BAFEIAHEMEZEEA
ZEMEE
BAFEIAEMEZEBAZEREE
BIELATIAR -
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-ZB-HF pr g
=A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
38,787 74,499

* Amount mainly represented the equity investment in Tao Heung Holdings Limited.

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11

Non-current prepayments and deposits include the following:

¥ ZEBEEEAEERREEARMRERE -

FRBANTRERERS

FRBENFARZSBIE TS

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

R-ZE-HREF RZTZME

=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deposits Ee 277,697 282,646
Prepayments TETFIR 29,574 18,904
307,271 301,550
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1"

12

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

FERBANRERRE (&)

AEBEZIFRBRENEEENTIE
BEHE

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-ZB-HEF RZTE_MF
=H=+—H =A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
HK$ BT 235,215 240,360
RMB AR 40,244 40,518
Macau pataca SEFITT 2,238 1,768
277,697 282,646
Inventories 12 #&

Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost

of sales amounted to HK$2,329,045,000 during the year ended 31
March 2025 (2024: HK$2,384,637,000) (Note 24).
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BEISEEANIERS  REAE

RBEE-_T-_AF=—A=+—HLF
B ERRBAILREIFAHERR
217 8 Ak AN 52,329,045,0008 T ( —
T — U4 : 2,384,637,00078 7T ) (B 7E
24) °
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits

13 EXRHEMEWRKRE BAF
MERZEE

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

R-ZE-HREF S

=H=+—8 Ef=T—E

Note HK$’000 HK$000

B 5T FHET FET

Trade receivables EE A E ] 58,177 89,513
Less: Loss allowance W RS (286) (83)
Trade receivables — net BEEUCFERIA a 57,891 89,430
Other receivables H b p U BRIE 66,624 63,080
Trade and other receivables EE R E M EKARIE 124,515 152,510
Prepayments TERTFRIE 84,171 62,363
Deposits ®e 477 445
209,163 215,318

(a) The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants a credit period between 30 to 90
days to certain customers for the provision of the Group’s
institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the
Group’s food manufacturing business and its franchisees.

(b) Other receivables primarily comprise value-added tax
recoverable and receivable from a security logistic company.

182

@ ARBEUEFPZHENRERS
BE - AKETET=1TENT
REEMTETASERHEE
AR - AEBERMEBERT
B iH & 2 R RTINEER

(b) EfEWERAETZEEAKEIE
BER SRR R A RHEKARIEA
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13

LR EMERIRE - B

and Deposits (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

MIERZEE (&)

ERBUCRIANREOITIAT

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

R=ZBZ-HEF R-F_F

=HA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 - 30 days TE=1H 41,645 68,980
31 - 60 days =+—HEXTAH 9,491 12,262
61 - 90 days AtT—HEhA+H 3,483 4,217
91 — 365 days N+—BZE=\/,~T5hH 3,321 3,971
Over 365 days BE=EthH 237 83
58,177 89,513

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
provision for loss allowance which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Details on the calculation of loss
allowance is set out in Note 3.1(d). The creation and release of loss
allowance of trade receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. The Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible trade receivables
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.
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AEBEATEVBRELERIFE IR
ETEAEBRRE B EBEEM
BEXBURERAFENAYER
B - BRBBZAEFBHANME
3.1(d) » FIEANE @ A2 X KRR
BREEAAGEBERANZITHER -
FERER B PHIRHEE R ERY
AW ORI S RMH - EFRAE
RAMBHRRD RARERE Z 2 KB
BRI TE D B -

HRERHRERE - &5 MHEMEWKAR
IHREREEAMESENE R FE -
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13 ZExRHAMEWRERE - AN

and Deposits (Continued) NERZE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are RNEE R & & H A EIERIE 2 BREE
denominated in the following currencies: BRIATERHE
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
N-B—RE R-ZT P4
=BA=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
HK$ BT 87,429 108,907
RMB AR 37,076 43,579
Others EHAh, 10 24
124,515 152,510
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current deposits are AEBHRBRENRAERATES
denominated in the following currencies: FTHE -
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R=-B-HF R-_ZF_mF
=A=+—8 =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET F#T
HK$ BT 231 201
RMB AR 246 244
477 445
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14 Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 RERBELEEIEHR

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

REB-HEF R-ZT_MF

=A=t+—8 =A=+—H

HK$000 HK$°000

FHT FAT

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHRE 244,651 527,040

Short-term bank deposits RHISRTTIER 808,982 733,908

Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 1,053,633 1,260,948
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 5.3% RERITERZERFENERS3% (=
(2024: 4.9%) per annum. As at 31 March 2025, these deposits have EUF 49%) RZZE-_AF=H
an average maturity of 74 days (2024: 59 days). =+—HB ZEEXRZFHINEHBERT4

B(ZZ—p4F :59H)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following ReRREEHEEBE U TIEREHE
currencies:

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

R=-ZB-HF RZEZE

=HA=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 432,638 1,039,513
RMB AR 142,254 157,892
Macau pataca SBPIIT 37,906 39,963
US dollar ETT 439,318 23,276
Others A 1,517 304
1,053,633 1,260,948
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14 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 14 BEkBRESZEEHERB (B
The conversion into foreign currencies and remittance out of REBUAARESENIRE RIRTTHER
the Mainland China for the Group’s cash and bank balances H R INE K B T A B R i B B ST R EE
denominated in RMB is subject to the rules and regulations of ARFME ([ E ) BAFEGRINEE
foreign exchange control promulgated by the government of the HARE KA -
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 RAEEINEERRIRE
for Long Service Payments B
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-B-HF R-T_PF
=A=+—8 =A=+—H
Note HK$000 HK$°000
Lz FHET FET
Retirement benefit liabilities RARRENEE
Defined contribution scheme REHFKEE a (15,347) (15,974)
Defined benefit scheme RERMTE b 7,293 4,208
Provision for long service payments REARGSBE c (63,722) (68,398)
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15

(a)

(b)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$15,347,000 (2024: HK$15,974,000), which was
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.

187

15

(a)

(b)

RASEANEER RIIRK
T (&)

SREEKETE
AEBZBBRBIEXESFEGIR
REBERBEIGEERAZ R ZE
BRERBIEAESFE([RESF
2] - ZETEIABUXFEAEE °

RiFRIEDETE  ARERESERE
B8 8 RREE AW (Ex& Ria |
AT A BIERD]) 2 5% RET I
MR EIMHR ERAF A 1,500
TC ° At B2 AR FE R AR B AR A% B
Z BRA5 1% BERN SRR o

AEB T AT E A E 8 R R e ftR
FHE - NREBEAEREMBED MRE
ARF N T REM L RmZEFTEH

o
A °

R_ZE_RAF=A=+—8 A&£EA
FLTE KT B FE R 518 15,347,000 4 7T
(—Z U4 : 15,974,00087T) * B 5t
AHMEMRERETEANR ©

SERAETE
AEERAE RS R ERF
B - et B RN ARREENAS
BAZBRGFERAREFHAE - 5t
B BEDEBIERERBESAZA
EEMEESHFE -

EFEImAKE RS RS ERBIUR
HEERNEREENRREZEZMIE
hZ HRERETTHR ©
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision

for Long Service Payments (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected

unit credit method.

The net assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated statement of

15

(b)

RASEANEER RIIRK
T (&)

RERAFE (&)
RERMNASETHBLABREE
RbSEt (B8 ) BRARIRMAETEME
BRAEITRE -

EG e BHRRRABRZEE, (B

financial position are determined as follows: &) FEETIAREE :
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-B-HF R-F_F
=A=+—H =A=+—A”
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHT
Present value of funded obligations FEERMEZRE (34,436) (43,049)
Fair value of plan assets STEEEZATE 41,729 47,257
Net assets in the consolidated statement 434 B EARRER AN 2 BEFE
of financial position 7.293 4,208
Remeasurement on defined benefit BN ERATEMNEE
obligation excluding interest expense  (F| S FIszBR4M) (683) (3,529)
Remeasurement on return on plan assets E#Ft ST &4 E 2 B3 3,349 4,314
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 EARESEFEER RHIRKE

for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REEAFEI(E)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows: REBNEENESHAOT :
2025 2024
—E-FE B it S
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Beginning of the year FYEER (43,049) (45,723)
Current service cost BB R (627) (859)
Interest cost B A (1,356) (1,395)
Employee contributions REHR (244) (298)
Remeasurement on defined B ERATERAEE
benefit scheme (683) (3,529)
Benefits paid EANE =R 11,523 8,755
End of the year FREER (34,436) (43,049)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FFEIEENATFEZEBIT ¢
2025 2024
—E-RE —EUFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FOEEH 47,257 48,821
Interest income B A 1,531 1,517
Employee contributions EEHK 244 298
Employer contributions EEHRK 880 1,072
Administrative expenses paid HerEIEEX N 2 ITHER
from plan assets 9) (10)
Remeasurement on return Bt ERTEIEE 2 EW
on plan assets 3,349 4,314
Benefits paid EREF (11,523) (8,755)
End of the year FRER 41,729 47,257
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 ZBHAE@EINEERRERE
for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REEAFEI(E)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as e ERRANER 2 BHT ¢
follows:
2025 2024
—EC-RE —TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHT FAIT
Current service cost IR A BRI A AR 627 859
Interest cost B 1,356 1,395
Interest income on plan assets FTEIEE 2 A EWA (1,531) (1,517)
Administrative expenses 1T E A 9 10
Total (included in employee RE(BBETEREE
benefit expenses) BRIASZA) 29 461 747
Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement, T ALREEERNLEF - 4193,000
approximately HK$193,000 (2024: HK$317,000) and HK$268,000 BIE( =T — /4 317,000 1) &

(2024: HK$430,000) have been included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate

Rate of salary increase

BEIR

FE RS

268,000/ ;o ( — = — O 4 : 430,000
BT DRI EIEESE SR A R THE AR -

PIERA 2 T2RBEMRT ¢

2025 2024
F4%3.0% p.a. FHF3.6%p.a.
B%3.0% p.a. FF3.0% p.a.

The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain of
HK$2,666,000 (2024: HK$785,000).
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EHRAE2ARARKERNATENE
EzEHFTE AW 2,666,000 T (=
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

RASEANEER RIIRK
T (&)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REEAFEI(E)

The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation EHFEa2EBRARKERNATEAINE
2 RETEHTE AE18 19,236,000
JL(ZZ =PO4 : 21,902,00077C) °

recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$19,236,000 (2024: HK$21,902,000).

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan

FEH AR BEEE AL

assets are as follows: LU
2025 2024
—E-RHF —TOpF
Equity instruments RETA 61.2% 46.4%
Debt instruments EHTH 35.2% 48.6%
Other assets Hith & E 3.6% 5.0%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the RERNEEHERRESNGRIES

assumption is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
HAERANEENRE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BR& BRR2E BRI N CE
As at 31 March 2025 R-ZB-RF=HA=+—H
Discount rate BRI = 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
A 1.4% #4n1.5%
Rate of salary increase FMIZR=E 0.5% Increased by Decreased by
I 1.5% W2 1.5%
As at 31 March 2024 RZEZFE=H=+—H
Discount rate ALIR & 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
WA 1.3% #h01.4%
Rate of salary increase g R = 0.5% Increased by Decreased by

EH011.4%

B 1.4%
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(b)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the Group
for the year ending 31 March 2026 is approximately HK$834,000
(2024: HK$1,036,000).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3
years (2024: 2.8 years).

Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next
ten years on 31 March 2025:

Less than

a year

—FHUR

HK$’000

F#ET

RERMEE

Defined benefit obligation 5,357

15 BARESEIEERRHRE
SRME (E)

(b) RERBAETEI(E)
HE_ZT-_"F-A=1+—HIFE"
REBEGAERANGTEINFERHKLN A
834,000% 7L ( = Z = U 4 : 1,036,000
BT °
AERANEANMETHBHAEIF (ZF
ZPOEF : 2.8%) o
R-EBE-_RAF=A=+—BHATEF
BEERKERTFHTEEREAB D47 -

Between Between

1-2 years 2-5years Next5 years

—EWF —ZHF T—EEFH

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FHET FET
7,411 12,834 10,305

Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit
depending on members’ length of service and their salary at the
time of leaving the Group. Active members contribute 2.5% of their
salary to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of
funding the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial
risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk.
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 EARESEFEER RHIRKE

for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()

() Provision for long service payments () REIREESEEG
The Group provides long service payments for its employees in AEBRBEEEBENEETERLT
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in HIEEREIMENRRBETET

certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by I REARBSBERTHBE LS ERE
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, HENEM (B8) BRARRAE B
using the projected unit credit method. EECFEETHE -
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EHFEEUBARRARANERZ BEEELD
position is determined as follows: N
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
—E-RHE —EFUF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F&T

Liability in the consolidated statement &AM REARNZ BE
of financial position (63,722) (68,398)

Remeasurement on plan liabilities STEIAE BN E 6,235 (3,294)
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15 EARESEFEER RHIRKE

for Long Service Payments (Continued) LRE ()
(c) Provision for long service payments (Continued) () REIRBEHEME (&)
Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement FEREMBRRRAER B EZEH
of financial position are as follows: N
2025 2024
—E-RE —EUFE
HK$000 HK$°000
FHT FET
Beginning of the year FYEER (68,398) (62,080)
Current service cost BB RBKA (8,626) (8,134)
Interest cost BB (2,421) (1,897)
Remeasurement of provision RO eBBE  ENTE
of long service payments 6,235 (3,294)
Benefits paid EREF 9,488 7,007
End of the year FRERR (63,722) (68,398)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as TR ERRERCSEAT
follows:
2025 2024
—E-HE —E
Note HK$000 HK$°000
B & FET FET
Current service cost IR A IR AR 8,626 8,134
Interest cost B 2,421 1,897
Total (included in employee RE(BBETEREE
benefit expenses) BRIASZA) 29 11,047 10,031
Of the total charge, HK$9,832,000 (2024: HK$8,928,000) and B H 98320008 (= =1
HK$1,215,000 (2024: HK$1,103,000) have been included in cost of £ 18,928,000 7T ) & 1,215,000/ 7T
sales and administrative expenses respectively. (ZZE P4 : 1,103,000/ 7T) 9 58

REHERARITHERNA -
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(@)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Provision for long service payments (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate ALIE &

Expected rates of future salary increase K2R 2 BHAME & =R

15

(0)

RASEANEER RIIRK
T (&)

RIABRTS < B 5 (4R
FHRA 2 EEBEBRMT :

2025
—E-RF

2024
—EmE
S%3.5% p.a. BF37%p.a.
2025 —E-HfF -

BE 0% p.a.

2026 and 2027
—EZRER
—ECEF-

B%2.0% p.a.

2028 onwards

“ENFEFE-
S%3.0% p.a.

HF3.0% p.a.

The remeasurement of provision of long service payments recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain
of HK$6,235,000 (2024: a loss of HK$3,294,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$55,183,000 (2024: HK$61,418,000).

Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by the
Group for the year ending 31 March 2026, after the offset from the
accrued MPF account balance, is approximately HK$2,267,000 (2024:
HK$5,940,000).
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T (=2 V04 : 61,418,00087T) ©
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision 15
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

(c) Provision for long service payments (Continued) ()
The sensitivity of provision for long service payments to changes in

the assumption is:

RASEANEER RIIRK

SRE (&)

RERB A (8)
RERBBEEBEHRIZEES OGN
=3

Impact on provision

for long service payments
HREBRBSRENSTE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BR& R 28 REZIE N CE
As at 31 March 2025 R-ZBE-HF=R=+—H
Discount rate REIR = 0.5% Increased by Decreased by
E1HN4.6% W 4.2%
Rate of salary increase FMIZR=E 0.5% Increased by Decreased by
#E1HN0.8% W 1.0%
As at 31 March 2024 RZTZUFE=H=+—H
Discount rate AhIR = 0.5% Decreased by Increased by
L 3.6% #HN3.9%
Rate of salary increase g R= 0.5% Increased by Decreased by

EH011.0%

A 1.1%

The weighted average duration of the long service payment

obligation is 9.1 years (2024: 7.8 years).
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(@)

Retirement Benefit Assets and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)

Provision for long service payments (Continued)
Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the
next ten years on 31 March 2025:

Less than

a year

—FBR

HK$°000

FET

RERBESEMT

Long service payment obligation 2,267

15 RASEINEER RIRS

T (&)

() RERBEEE(E)

RZE-_RAF=A=+—H2Z2EHR%E
SEERNKRRTFE 2FEHAEIER DT

Between Between
1-2 years 2-5years Next5 years
—EmMF —EHF  T—ARFH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
3,200 10,694 29,280

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment
obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds.
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16 Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

16 ELERHIE

EEAREHNITHENAT SRR EE
EERARGEERERE  MEEHREY
KFA— e AREHBREENE

fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate BRIR] B AR < SRe MR RN
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial THRBE(SELHEEHEIEEES) W
position: I
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-Z-HE RZZTZUF
=A=+-~8 =A=+-H
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Deferred income tax assets to be PR+ =18 A & U B f9RE
recovered after twelve months HIEEE 99,021 66,214
Deferred income tax liabilities to be B+ @ A EEREERE
settled after twelve months HIEAE (48,957) (32,860)
50,064 33,354
Movements in net deferred income tax assets are as follows: FRERBEEEFEZEHIOT
2025 2024
—E_AfF —EmE
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B FE FHT FHT
Beginning of the year FEESH 33,354 30,009
Deferred taxation debited to the FHEEERRFTAZ
consolidated income statement IRIEFLIE 26 16,761 3,076
Exchange differences M ERR (51) 269
End of the year FRER 50,064 33,354
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 ELEBIE (F&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEB s FRNEEREBEEERGE S
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (PR — B AVE R 2 AR EAT)
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: LU
Deferred income tax assets: EEBIEE =
Decelerated Lease liabilities,
tax depreciation Tax losses provision and others Total
EBRTE BBER HESE  RERHMW ek
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
—E-RE —T-ME —EB-RE —E-NFE Z—EB-RF —T-MF —E-HE —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FAET FET FAT
Beginning of the year F#&# 18,662 19,441 65,947 68,668 82,228 76,351 166,837 164,460
Credited/(charged) to 47 AEBHERA
the consolidated Mk (GTA)
income statement 4,887 (779) (20,735) (2,721) 60,830 5,608 44,982 2,108
Exchange differences [EH =% - = - = (51) 269 (51) 269
End of the year FAREH 23,549 18,662 45,212 65,947 143,007 82,228 211,768 166,837
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Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Accelerated

16 EZERIE (&)

A==

tax depreciation Provisions Right-of-use assets Total
MERIETE B ERESE B
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
“EBC-RFE O —E-WE ZBCREFE O —ZE-NE  ZE-HE  —T-ME ZBDHEE S —EoOE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FET FET FET FHET
Beginning of the year F#&# 69,528 76,576 16 34 63,939 57,841 133,483 134,451
Charged/(credited) to 47 AEBHERA
the consolidated A/ (H08%)
income statement (749) (7,048) 9) (18) 28,979 6,098 28,221 (968)
Exchange differences [& 3 %% - - - - - - - -
End of the year FRER 68,779 69,528 7 16 92,918 63,939 161,704 133,483
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Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities: (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March
2025, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
in respect of losses of approximately HK$1,114,773,000 (2024:
HK$1,028,776,000). Unrecognised tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$202,931,000 (2024: HK$205,697,000) and
HK$135,668,000 (2024: HK$124,501,000) will be expired up to
year 2037 and 2029 respectively, while the remaining balance can
be carried forward indefinitely.

On 18 December 2024, the Legislative Council passed a bill which
introduced a tax deduction for expenses incurred for reinstating
leased premises to their original condition. The bill was gazetted by
the HKSAR Government as the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (Tax
Deductions for Leased Premises Reinstatement and Allowances for
Buildings and Structures) Ordinance 2024 on 27 December 2024.
As such, deferred tax assets of approximately HK$22,913,000 is
recognised for reinstatement provisions as at 31 March 2025.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$18,473,000 (2024:
HK$16,660,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting
to HK$305,123,000 (2024: HK$274,072,000) of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China earned after 1 January 2008. Such
amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable future
to the group companies outside of the Mainland China.
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17 Trade Payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

17

LRENERE

EEENRBENRESITNOT :

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

REZEZHF KRB ME

=H=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

0 - 30 days TE=1H 201,839 206,387
31 - 60 days =+—&E,"1H 2,216 3,188
61 —90 days At—Z=NTH 318 1,071
Over 90 days iy oy = 194 121
204,567 210,767

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the

EERMNERENERTETIE .

following currencies: 18 :
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-B-HF R-F_F
=H=+—H =A=+—A”
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ T 156,496 159,197
RMB AR 48,071 51,570
204,567 210,767

BREIREE - SXEMNRENKREE
HRFNERTE -

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.
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18 Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 18 HtENRERESEA
Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued HiENERIE R A BRA T ZOEREST
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other e IERHMEE - HthEMNERE
creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB. REHERAT2HUBTRARES

B
Bank Borrowings 19 RITEX
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R-B-RHF R-T_F
=A=+-8 =A=+-~
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITER 305,000 385,000
Less: Current portion included B EFAREBIAGEZ
in current liabilities BNHAER > (80,000) (80,000)
Non-current portion JEBNERER & 225,000 305,000
At 31 March 2025, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as RZZB_RAF=A=+—8 ~xEEE

follows:

BEZIRITEFNT

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

R-B-HF R-ZZF-MF

=H=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F A 80,000 80,000
Between one and two years —E2WFER 225,000 80,000
Between two and five years MERFA - 225,000
305,000 385,000
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19 Bank Borrowings (Continued) 19 MITER(E)
The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the corporate AEEZRITEFRBAARREZ AR
guarantees provided by the Company. In addition, the Group #%‘T%T’EZ%EW ° Jkt@l\ F REEEETIR
is required to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants 1THENN 2 & T BA TS PR HI 2240 -

imposed by the banks.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair HREBREZEWTIEKX - RITERZE
values as the impact of discounting was not significant. EEEEAFERS -
An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings REEREESB 2 AEBRITERER
by type and currency is as follows: HEZDTHAT :
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R=-ZB-HF RZEZE
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
HK$ at floating rates BT F IR 305,000 385,000
As at 31 March 2025, the effective interest rate of the bank RZEZRAF=A=+—H " RITEXK
borrowings was 4.6% per annum (2024: 5.6% per annum). ZEBRNELETFL46% (ZZ_OF :

FE56%) °
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20 Share Capital 20 B
2025 2024
—E-FE 4
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
R EE HE = [Eifi=]
‘000 HK$000 ‘000 HK$°000
FrR FET ThR FHET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares TiEk R EE
of HK$0.10 each 0.10%7T
Beginning and end FYIREFR
of the year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE
Beginning of the year FH) 585,704 58,570 585,704 58,570
Shares repurchased and RNAREER R
cancelled by the Company ~ Z /&% (5.700) (570) = -
End of the year FR 580,004 58,000 585,704 58,570
During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no shares were BHE-_T_AFE-_FT_WNMF=H
issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of the Company. =+—HLEFE  #BMERNERARTZ

Pfn BRvERt 81377 -

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company repurchased BHE_T_RF=A=+—HILFE "
a total of 5,700,000 shares of the Company on the Hong Kong AARRE B ZFTEE[E 4 £ 5,700,000
Stock Exchange with an aggregate consideration of approximately RAR R - 2R (B4 /546,049,000
HK$46,049,000 (including expenses). All of the repurchased shares B (BERY) - TEBERKRMDERM
were subsequently cancelled during the year and the issued share FRFEHE - MARAEBITRAMEER
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of DEFIERG 2 HEE °

cancelled shares accordingly.
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21 Reserves 21 f#fE
Shares
Share held for
Capital  Exchange based share  Statutory
Share  redemption translation Capital  Investment compensation award reserve  Contributed  Revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve schemes (note]) surplus reserve  earnings Total
&% b3 HRARN  REG%Mm:E ERRE

BiER  WERR  FRRR  ARBE  REGR  WMeRR  Hhukf ( BiRR  EfER  REM 2
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  KKSOMD  HKSO0  HKSOOD  KKSUMD  HKSOO  HKSODD  KKSUMD  HKSODD  HKSOOD
L L L L L TR iz iz Fr iz Fir i

Asat 1 Apri 2024 R-Z-mEMA-A 621122 152,034 9,682 1,019 (25,884) 281 1B12) 31382 80,69 2968 1,746,476 2,841,278
Fairvlue los on financial RATEIINEHZE

assets at fair value though WAZERERY

other compreensieincome AT - - - - (35720 - - - - - - (35720)
Remeasurement of efirement  EXfirERAERAAR

benefitiabiites and provision ~~ REHRHSE(E

forlong senvice payments - - - - - - - - - - 8,901 8,901
Shares repurchased and cancelled - EE iR (#5,479) - - - - - - - - - - (45479)
Tandfer tostatutoy resenes  ERTEFHE - - - - - - - (0] - - 4 -
Deregistration of asubsidiary HE-HHBAR - - - - - - - (1,058) - - - (1,058)
Employee share option [ESRhSE

scheme - value of employee it2l- EERHEE

senvices - - - - - 1581 - - - - - 15871
Employee share awerd ESRAZE

scheme - value of employee itEl- EERHEE

senvices - - - - - 26N - - - - - 06N
Vesting of shares of share Rt B OROGE

award scheme - - - - - (18,379 33,876 - - - (15,497) -
Eichange diferences arsing BREHBANL

from translation of foreign EXzE

subsidlaries - - (5,690) - - - - - - - - (5,690)
Profit attrbutable to equity HAFRIERE AREER

holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 3),744 32,744
Putchese of shares held EAARR

for share award scheme EEEmEEORE - - - - - - (32,154) - - - - (32,154)
Dividends ke - - - - - - - - - - (321,018 (327,018

Balance as at 31 March 2025 KoE-RE
ZA=1-Bith 575,643 152,034 3,992 1,019 (61,604) 62914 (72,000 36,280 80,69 2968 1,645,610 2,674,286

206



ARLEEHR AR 2024/25 F3#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

21 Reserves (Continued) 21 #E (&)
Shares
Share held for
Capital Exchange based share Statutory
Share  redemption  translation Capital ~ Investment — compensation award reseve  Contributed  Revaluation Retained
premium reserve fesenve fesenve resenve resenve scheme (ote ) surplus fesenve eannings Total
Bx e RGN RORERE  ARER
ROEE  BEORE  FERRE 0 AMEE RERE  GEeRE  KEZRD (W) E8ER  ERER 2 #8
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 H$000 S 000 S 000 S 000 S 000 H$000 H$000
FET FAT FAT iz i #r i AT FET FET FET FET
Asat 1 Apri 2023 W-3-=mA-A 621122 152,034 31,905 1,019 (13637) 1319 (98,979) 35,612 80,69 193671 1,680,202 2,725,024
Fairvlue los on financial RATEIINEHZE
assets at fair value though WAZEBEER
other comprehensive income LTEER = = = = (12,247) = = = = = = (12,47)
Remeasurement ofefirement  EXfirERAERAER
benefitiabiites and provision ~~ REHRHSE(E
forlong senvice payments - - - - - - - - - - (2,509) (2,509)
Transfer to statutory reserves ERBTTHE - - - - = = = 1730 = = (1,730 =
Employee share option [ESRhSE
scheme - value of employee it2l- EERBEE
services - - - - - 18823 - - - - - 18823
Employee share awerd ESRAZE
scheme - value of employee it2l- EERHBEE
services - - - - - 18077 - - - - - 18077
Vesting of shares of share R B AOROGE
award scheme - - - - - (15,408) 25,257 - - - (9,849) -
Eichange diferences arsing BREHBANL
from translation of foreign EXZE
subsidaries - - Q) - - - - - - - - 22223
Profit attrbutable to equity HRFRIERE AEEER
holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 330454 330454
Revaluation surplus of property, ~ EAREMERNE -
plant and eguipment and FERREREDE
rightof-use asets prior to EEEMES
transferting to investment
properties - - - - - - - - - 3597 - 3597
Dividends e - - - - - - - - - o (250,092) (250,092)
Balonceasat 31 March 2024 WZF=RE
ZA=1-Bith 621122 152,034 9,68 1,019 (25,884) 281 (13722) 31382 80,69 29682 1,746,476 2841278
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21

22

Reserves (Continued) 21 f#E (&)
0] Under the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, Mainland China companies are (@) RBFEEREEERAO - FEAMDRE
required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the fund until such fund HRARFEMNZ10% DEEZFES  BEE
reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can ZABLER AR FMELRZ50% AL © X
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated ERESEEAERIERTTANEHER
losses or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is BEIEMARZAMER - EZEES R
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital. RN AR FEMERZ 25% KF o
Revenue 22 WA
2025 2024
—E-HE —EFUF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Sales of food and beverages HERY KRG 8,479,060 8,603,538
Rental income HeA 25,560 26,815
Management and service fee income EIE KRB ERA 5,334 5,569
Sundry income MU A 58,363 55,527
8,568,317 8,691,449
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23 Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, 23 HiWARHEAMF (FHIE)
Net gl
2025 2024
—E-HE —EMF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
k=3 FET F#ET
Dividend income from listed LkRkEREREKA
equity investments 3,062 6,123
Fair value loss on investment BEMEN N FEEIE
properties 7 (38,200) (31,900)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR EFEE
plant and equipment, net (8,240) (4,608)
Reversal of impairment loss of  {FAEAE 2 R EFER LD
right-of-use assets 1,920 -
Reversal of impairment loss of M - W NERE O REBERE
property, plant and equipment 6 - 4,320
Impairment loss of property, M - BENREREBE
plant and equipment 6 (11,582) (6,223)
Impairment loss of right-of-use ~ FREEEZREEE
assets 6 (22,458) (2,290)
Government subsidies AT 4 8h 2,222 1,321
(73,276) (33,257)
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24 Expenses by Nature

24 EMEESENEH

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are

BREHEXARITRERNER DT

analysed as follows: LU
2025 2024
- e X2 112
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
i3 FET FET
Cost of raw materials and packing FEMRRBERA 12 2,329,045 2,384,637
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 8 12 37
Depreciation e 6
— property, plant and equipment -0% - BERE 357,810 373,452
~ leasehold land and land use rights -PERERAEAE HELH
classified as right-of-use assets Rt 20,651 20,701
- right-of-use assets — properties - ERELE — W% 811,262 805,576
Expenses relating to leases of HERBNRX
— short-term leases -RHHE 39,055 37,302
- variable lease payments not included - AIEBRENFTTRERESE
lease liabilities 59,517 60,442
Gain on modification and termination ~ FERFH K& |z s+
of leases* (7,383) (28,758)
Exchange losses, net BN FEES 1,438 4,339
Employee benefit expenses (excluding  BEREFIFES (TRENRH
share-based compensation expenses) L) 29 2,907,663 2,877,765
Share-based compensation expenses ARHZ S 29 38,482 36,900
Auditor's remuneration Gl ka
— audit services - BiT R 3,257 3,701
- non-audit services - B R 1,669 1,904
Electricity, water and gas £B . KELERE 438,620 437,718
Advertising HESZH 83,041 94,834
Provision of loss allowance on TREXEKNRIE L
trade receivables ERkE 13 203 7
Sanitation EEE 130,659 128,440
Repairs and maintenance BERREE 146,725 136,066
Building management fee, BFERE THREM
air conditioning and rates 246,313 235,698
Delivery expense BHE 90,023 111,666
Insurance R B 29,073 37,968
Other expenses Hih & 443,020 444,981
8,170,155 8,205,376
Representing: RE&
Cost of sales HEMA 7,675,662 7,702,163
Administrative expenses TRER 494,493 503,213
8,170,155 8,205,376

*  During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recognised gain of HK$7,383,000
(2024: HK$28,758,000) as a result of lease modifications, including changes of lease
terms, changes of lease payments or the assessment of options to extend the leases,

where applicable.
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25 Finance Costs, Net 25 FHBEHA
2025 2024
—E_RE —EOE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Finance income B 46,652 45,304
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEaE PR (86,022) (84,784)
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITER 2 KA (18,093) (23,808)
Finance costs B RS R AR (104,115) (108,592)
Finance costs, net SHEE SR A (57,463) (63,288)

26 Income Tax Expense 26 FEBEA

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
8.25% (2024: 8.25%) on the estimated assessable profits up to
HK$2,000,000 (2024: HK$2,000,000) and 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) on
any part of estimated assessable profit over HK$2,000,000 (2024:
HK$2,000,000) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the period at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.
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26 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 26 FTIEHEA (&)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income R ERRANGTAZRIBEE
statement represents:

2025 2024
—E_FHE —EZMF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current income tax: BNERTRIE -
- Hong Kong profits tax - BBFEH 32,675 38,921
— Mainland China taxation — R IE 15,106 19,052
Deferred income tax relating to the R ERESREMD
origination and reversal of B M EVIRIET IR
temporary differences (16,761) (3,076)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 1,292 1,416
32,312 56,313
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the 255 B 5 BARR A Al A M 2 B 18 B RS X
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong RAEREZHEMAR 2 BT 8
Kong as follows: LU
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax R A A 267,423 389,528
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%  ¥&Fi%E 16.5% (ZZF /U4 : 16.5%)
(2024: 16.5%) STEORIE 44,124 64,272
Effect of different taxation rates EH b [Em TR R 2 o2
in other territories 3,244 2,473
Income not subject to taxation BERH WA (15,746) (17,623)
Expenses not deductible for NATHBEE A
taxation purposes 12,368 22,511
Recognition/utilisation of previously TR (AR AT RTER
unrecognised temporary ZERMER BKEE
differences/tax losses (27,396) (25,029)
Tax losses not recognised REER 2 RBEE 15,180 8,467
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 1,292 1,416
Others Hith (754) (174)
Taxation charge RIBZH 32,312 56,313
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26

27

Income Tax Expense (Continued) 26 FTIEHEA (&)
OECD published Pillar Two model rules in December 2021, with the CEHBN - —F+ - AnMmEHE
effect that a jurisdiction may enact domestic tax laws to implement ZRAVGRA| - ARE & RDARE R A] 6l B
the Pillar Two model rules on a globally agreed common approach. WL - WIKREIREENBA T EE
Pillar Two legislation applies to members of multinational enterprise MEZAE ZERRA] c TR ZIDEEAR
groups within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, which XEZRABNGEANBEEPEEE
companies of the Group fell into. It imposes a top-up tax on profits KB ERBREAEBETAA EX
arising in a jurisdiction whenever the effective tax rate determined H_EABRARERE -—FEEREE
by the Pillar Two model rules on a jurisdictional basis is below a BRI 15% AR XK - BIFZ 7]
minimum rate of 15%. AR B A 2 AR B B A
Pillar Two legislation in Hong Kong will come into effect on or after BEIH AR T _RAF—H—
1 January 2025. As of 31 March 2025, the Group owns several Heiz@ER - BE_ZE_HAF=A
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong, Mainland China and certain other =t+—B  AEEEEE  FEAMK
jurisdictions. Under Income Inclusion Rule (“IIR”), the top-up tax AETHMAVEEREEZRKME QR
generated by these subsidiaries might affect the current tax exposure BEBEWARARE - ZEMBRRES
of the Group starting from 1 January 2025. The Group will continue ZEEBAkEgE T _AF—A—H
assessing the Pillar Two tax exposure and the impacts on its financial REEAREE BT ERRE -  RNEE
statements accordingly. o BB AT A ST A B A R B e HL T B 7S
WwERONTE
Dividends 27 BRE
2025 2024
—E-RHEF —TNF
HK$000 HK$°000
FHET F&T
Interim dividend paid: RIS -
HK15 cents (2024: HK15 cents) TR EEAR 15810
per ordinary share (ZZE W4 : 15%810) 87,001 87,856
Final dividend proposed: EEAHRE
HK25 cents (2024: HK42 cents) TREE B 257810
per ordinary share (ZZE U4 : 427%0) 145,001 245,996
232,002 333,852

A final dividend of HK25 cents (FY2023/24: HK42 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 was proposed.
Such final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
upcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do
not reflect this dividend payable.

213

BEREE—_T-_RAF=-A=+t—H1t
$J%'7‘}EE%§3EB3@H§§ BT E MK 25810
—E-= ZIFE 428) - %K
BB AGFRRAERERREFTAE L
HO& - FAIERE o ANBATS R I 4 R A
PLERIAR B o



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

28 Earnings Per Share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award
schemes.

28

FREFN

B
FREARG M RN R R RERE AR
BENRAFASHTERR (PEREAR
RARBR DR ERE TR 2
MR8 BAERFTH -

2025 2024
—ECRE —TNF
Profit attributable to equity holders A RIRIERE A AE(R 5 A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) 232,744 330,454
Weighted average number BTSRRI 8
of ordinary shares in issue (“000) (FEfz) 574,594 580,716
Basic earnings per share BAREAH N HK$0.41& T HK$0.57 7T
Diluted e
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted EREEENDIRBHREELTETZE

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding
the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share
award schemes) with the weighted average number of ordinary
shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the

share options and shares under the share award schemes.

BRI H B FAD BT EBK
(TEEARBRBERDEZESBED
BB Z P BEHFEME -

2 R RER AR B R A0 2 B At B A Ak

N REEERE -

2025 2024
—E_RHE ZEZMEF
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIRIERE A AE(R 5 A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) 232,744 330,454
Weighted average number EBITERRZ INETFHE
of ordinary shares in issue (“000) (FE#f7) 574,594 580,716
Adjustment for share award Betn 22 Bhat &l 2 FE
schemes (“000) (FEfz) 2,946 965
577,540 581,681
Diluted earnings per share GRRHEE R A HK$0.40 /& T HK$0.57 %t
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29 Employee Benefit Expenses 29 EEBAFEX
Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FANEEBMFAZNT -
2025 2024
ZB-hHEF —EpUEF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B &E FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances T& - &% N2, 2,682,286 2,630,015
Discretionary bonuses FEE FEFEAL 111,903 136,046
Pension costs BERAE T
— Defined contribution scheme - ATH-FEE 101,966 100,926
— Defined benefit scheme - RERAEE 15 461 747
- Long service payments - RERBE 15 11,047 10,031
Employee benefit expenses B E@AIFx<
(excluding share-based (B
compensation expenses) YA E) 24 2,907,663 2,877,765
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (9 S A< Bl
— Share award expenses - R EEAX 24 22,611 18,077
— Share option expenses - B BT R ST 24 15,871 18,823
2,946,145 2,914,665
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong

Listing Rules)

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March

2025 is set out below:

Name of director E=p?

Non-executive directors FHTEE

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ERfRE
Chairman E

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita EEBEOT

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael  BRIA Y55

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel SHRERE

Indevendent non-executive  BUHHTEE

directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZHEBRE
(Note b) (Hith)

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry ~ SSBfEEA
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert ERALE
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine Al &£

Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick FHEEL
(Note ¢) (Hiitc)
Executive directors HTEE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter EEREE
(Note ) (Htd)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BEREE

Fees
we
HK$"000
TEx

1,180
300
300
300

173
400
400
400

227

50
50

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

e 2R
v)-4
HK$000
TErx

960
960

216

Discretionary
bonuses
FEEEAL
HKS$'000
TEn

30 EENRAEZNER (KBEB
CATMEBI) (58622 F) £ 383
(AR (HBEEENEE
BBAN(FE622GE) REB
EHRAREER)

(a) E=BNe
BE - ZE-_hAF=A=1+—BHILFEHN

EEEMeEIIOT ¢

Share-based

Employer's compensation

contribution benefits

to pension (Note a)

scheme DARRA3 3 A4
ExfEfe Sub-total HEEH Total
HE L it (Kizta) am

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEn FEn TEn

- 1,180 - 1,180
- 300 - 300
- 300 - 300
- 300 - 300
- 173 - 173
- 400 - 400
- 400 - 400
- 400 - 400
- 227 - 227
18 1,028 349 1377
18 1,028 792 1,820
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong

Listing Rules) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March

2024 is set out below:

Name of director E=it2

Non-executive directors FHITEE

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ~ BERREE
Chairman B

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBL

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BR# 54

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ FFEExE

Independent non-executive  BUFETEE

directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael —~ ZE#S%4E
(Note e) (Hiite)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEERE
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S8 &
Mr AuSiu Cheung, Albert  BREREL
Ms Fang Suk Kwan, Katherine  #B %L

Executive directors HITEE

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEEREE
(Note d) (Hritd)

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BrAks

Fees
HK$'000
FAT

48
400
400
400
400

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

He 2R
EMRH
HK$000
AT

5,097
3,095

217

Discretionary
bonuses
HFEEEA
HK$000
FAT

3333
500

30 EEMFENERS (KEBEETE
(R EMEB) (58622 %) 55383
R (RA(HEBEEZEFNRE
BHRAIN(£622GE) REB
EFRRBREER) (&)

(a) E=M<e (E)
BE-_Z-_NFE=ZA=1+—HIFERN

EESEMeHIWT

Share-based

Employer's compensation

contribution benefits

to pension (Note a)

scheme PR ATHY
EEtEke Sub-total EZ Total
HElE NGt (Hizta) fk]

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET

- 1,180 - 1,180
- 300 - 300
_ 300 - 300
- 300 - 300
- 48 = 48
- 400 - 400
- 400 - 400
_ 400 - 400
- 400 - 400
18 8,498 500 8,998
18 3,663 846 4,509
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30

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Notes:

(@) The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating
to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

(b) Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey retired as Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 5 September 2024.

© Mr Lee Sai Yin, Patrick was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 6 September 2024.

(d) Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter retired as Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2024.

(e) Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael passed away on 14 May 2023.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2024:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2024: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2024: Nil).
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EFRRBREER) (&)

EEME (&)
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P& -

(a) AR SR RS EERRNR
X TEREHEERNAMMNMS - HEH
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K
(b) FREXER " Z-_NMFAARRRELRR
FIBVIFITES

(© FHELEER T _MFANASBEZEIR
RRRBILIEMITES -

(d) BEAEENR T -_MFENA—BRIEE

HITE -

(e) EEREEN_E-_=F1 A +HEEH -

ESRAREER
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30

(e)

(f)

(9)

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2024: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2024: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include Nil (2024: one) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 30(a). The
emoluments payable to the remaining five (2024: four) individual
during the year are as follows:

30

(e)

()

(9)

EENFEMER (KEEE
(R EMEB) (58622 %) 55383
R (RA(HEBEEZEFNRE
BHRAIN(£622GE) REB
EFRRBREER) (&)

FRUES ZSEEHNEE
FENBEEERAZTAZE
M EERREMRZ 2ER

FAMENES  ZEFEETNZEEE
NEABEERATHRAZER EEZK
EMRZH(ZZE_PUF : ) -

EERRZ  ZHREHNE
RfEm
REERE B RFREMESRE - HE
ARRRESEARRSREEHZE
ARG BHRENTFEERRERE
EAIEARER (Z T : ) -

hEmeHMAL
AEEREEALERSHMALEE
THR(ZZ-MFE: —R)EF HMg
E&HNHIFE300@) - ESfA A (ZT M
FOB) ATRAFERY 2B 0
I

2025 2024
- s S —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET

Basic salaries, gratuities and K% - A& R E 2Rk
other allowances 19,734 16,145
Discretionary bonuses JERE EAEAL 14,396 11,638
Contributions to pension schemes RIS FHEIHR 90 72
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (D 2 A5 Bl 7,304 5,795
41,524 33,650
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30 EEWNF=MER (KIEEB
(Disclosures required by Section 383 of (A EMERBI) (55622 F) 55383
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance R (AR(BHBEEENEE
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of FRAN(FE6226E) REE
Information about Benefits of Directors) EFHRAEEEK) (&)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(9) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (9) hEESHMAL (E)

The emoluments fell within the following bands: ez BRI -
Number of individuals
A
2025 2024
—E-EHE —=opE
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T 4,500,000 7 2 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T 5,000,000 7 1 2
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 /7T % 10,500,000 /7T - 1
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 #7T% 11,500,000 7 1 -
HK$13,500,001 to HK$ 14,000,000 13,500,001 7T & 14,000,000 7T - 1
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001 7T 17,500,000 7T 1 -

(h)  No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation forloss () FRETAEEHFLSSHFMALE
of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid KRS MERANMARSE 2 RE)©
individuals during the year. EEREVFE o

(i) Senior management’s emoluments by band (i) SNEBAEFHFNEE

The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell

within the following bands:

SREEAS (TERES) 2FHMEE

T -

Number of individuals

A

2025 2024

—E_RE —EOE

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T 2 4,000,000 78 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T 2 5,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7T £ 10,500,000 75 7T - 1
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 & 7TE 11,500,000 57T 1 -
HK$13,500,001 to HK$ 14,000,000 13,500,001 7T ZE 14,000,000 57T - 1
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001 7T E 17,500,000 87T 1 -
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

31 HZEBHERERMEE

\I

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income taxto  (a) KRBIAVGFEEEESE 2 FIR

net cash generated from operations SHER
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$ ‘000
FAET FET
Profit before income tax BB A A 267,423 389,528
Adjustments for: PEE
— Finance income - g A (46,652) (45,304)
— Finance cost of lease liabilities -MHEaBEPBKA 86,022 84,784
— Finance cost on bank borrowings —IRITERZ KA 18,093 23,808
— Depreciation of property, - BERREBIHE
plant and equipment 357,810 373,452
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets -ERREEZINE
— properties o /E 811,262 805,576
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets -ERREEZTE
— leasehold land and land - TE i - {F A RE
use rights 20,651 20,701
- Amortisation of intangible assets - B A E#H 12 37
— Fair value loss on investment - EMENNFERBE

properties 38,200 31,900
— Loss on disposal of property, - HEME - BE K&

plant and equipment, net ZFEE 8,240 4,608
— Gain on modification and - HEg KR IEr W

termination of leases (7,383) (28,758)
— Provision of loss allowance - FHIRE EEARTE 2 18 EE

on trade receivables 203 7
— Share-based compensation expenses  — LARZ{D S (< B & 38,482 36,900
— Dividend income from listed - kg ERBIA

equity investments (3,062) (6,123)

- ERREEZRERBERREED

— Reversal of impairment loss of

right-of-use assets (1,920) -
— Reversal of impairment loss of - - BERREREREE
property, plant and equipment #[e) - (4,320)
— Impairment loss of property, - W% - WEREERERER
plant and equipment 11,582 6,223
— Impairment loss of right-of-use assets - {# & E 2 BEEE 22,458 2,290
— Deregistration of a subsidiary — FEEE— B A A (1,058) =
Operating profit before working mBE S F B 2 E R
capital changes 1,620,363 1,695,309
Changes in working capital: RBESEE
— Inventories -FE 9,651 37,955
— Prepayments and deposits - ANFRIBERERS (16,884) (17,546)
— Trade and other receivables - EE R A EIARTE 27,792 (14,481)
— Trade payables - EEENERE (6,200) (15,114)
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities - Efth B~ BRIE & fE =T & F (39,454) 5,475
— Retirement benefit assets and - BRRBBAEER
provision for long service payments RHARG 2 BH 1,140 2,699
Net cash generated from operations EEEEZFRS 1,596,408 1,694,297

221



Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERKE (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) HZKEBREREXRANHEY
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ¥ BERRERERERRE
equipment comprise:

2025 2024

—E_REF —EFpO4F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FHT

Net book amounts BREDFE 9,553 6,533
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE RRE 2 FEE

plant and equipment, net (8,240) (4,608)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERREMEIE

plant and equipment 1,313 1,925
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERKE (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (o) &Z=Z=-HAF=A=+—H

financing activities for the year ended 31 TFERETHEENEGY
March 2025 i
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HESE BITEM st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2024 RZZEZWMFMA—A 2,063,127 385,000 2,448,127
Additions NE 669,963 - 669,963
Cash flows: WEmnE -
- Repayment of bank borrowings - BEIRITER - (80,000) (80,000)
- Payment of lease liabilities - NHERE (956,340) - (956,340)
— Interest paid - BAIALE - (18,093) (18,093)
Finance cost BTG AR 86,022 18,093 104,115
Modification and termination of leases ~ HHEZ &) K41 (28,972) - (28,972)
Exchange difference = (4,490) - (4,490)
As at 31 March 2025 RZZE-_HAF=A=+—H 1,829,310 305,000 2,134,310
As at 1 April 2023 RZZEZ=FMA—A 2,269,084 979,950 3,249,034
Additions NE 588,310 400,000 988,310
Cash flows: REmE -
— Repayment of bank borrowings - BBIRITER - (995,000) (995,000)
— Payment of lease liabilities -¥NHEAE (933,062) - (933,062)
— Interest paid -BFE - (23,758) (23,758)
Finance cost BTSN 84,784 23,808 108,592
Modification and termination of leases ~ FAE&E) MR 1+ 73,351 - 73,351
Exchange difference [E N =58 (19,340) = (19,340)
As at 31 March 2024 RZZFE-WMF=ZA=+—8 2,063,127 385,000 2,448,127
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32

Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Schemes

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 8
September 2022 (the “2022 Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant options to the eligible participants to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. As at 31 March 2025, the Company had granted
options to certain employees of the Group (including an Executive
Director of the Company) pursuant to the 2022 Share Option
Scheme. The 2022 Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 7
September 2032 unless otherwise terminated under the terms of the
scheme.

For options granted under the 2022 Share Option Scheme, the
exercise price in relation to each option would not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day or (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. The exercisable period and the vesting
period of the options were determined by the Board of Directors,
provided that they shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
of the relevant options.
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TRk R_ZT-_AF=A=+—H "
AATIERE - - —FR K2
MAEESETIES (BEARR—BHNT
EE)RERMDEE S FRMHE
BB SRR EREE S =_F A
+ 8 - BRIFEBIRETBUEF T UALRLE o

SRIE =T = — S MR IR H A
B EEmM S - S ARNITEER
BERATHERSE  ()FDBH (LA
REXB)ERBBMIMERRERHN
2 AR AR W B 3 (i) B R
BHAIAEEX AT BB AEHRE
2P 2 A0 AN 1 B B A7 S 5 W T {8 B i)
AR w]— BB EE o B RENTT
FEHEEBEMAEERET  EEHR
TEREAERERIE R TF -



ARK

LREBARNT 2024/25 FiR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award 32 R H#EsHEIR KRG EBE
Schemes (Continued) £ (&)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) IR HARERT &l (48)
Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2025 HE_Z_RAF=A=+t—HILFED
are as follows: RADEARES BHLAT -
Number of options
HEHE
Fair Outstanding Outstanding
value per at at
option  Exercise 1 April 31 March
(Note) price per 2024 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2025
Exercise SREE  opton R-FT-MF during during during R=ZE-HF
Date of grant period AYE SHDE mA—A the year the year theyear =A=+-H
Rt A& Cigid (Hizt) g e RATE FR& FRTE FERRU 1 RATHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
30 December 2022 31 July 2025 to 35 14.90 22,870,000 - - (1,900,000) 20,970,000
—BICH 29 December 2032
+ZA=+H ZECRF
tA=+-HE
—E=Ck
+=A=tNA
2 April 2024 31 July 2027 to 1.8 8.28 - 500,000 - - 500,000
“EomE 1 April 2034
mA=AR ZECLF
tA=t—-HEZ
—EZmF
mA—H
31 July 2024 31 July 2027 15 8.06 - 969,000 - - 969,000
—E-NE to 30 July 2034
tA=t-H el o2
tA=t—-BEZ
—E-NE
tA=+H
22,870,000 1,469,000 - (1,900,000) 22,439,000
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32

Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Schemes (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted were calculated using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The weighted average fair value of
the options granted on 2 April 2024 and 31 July 2024 were HK$1.8
per option and HK$1.5 per option respectively. The significant inputs
into the model were as follows:

Closing price at grant date R HE 2 WmE
Risk-free interest rate g A 2
Dividend yield REx

Volatility RENE

Option life HRHEF A

The volatility factors estimated were based on the historical share
price movement of the company prior to the option grant dates for
a period over the option life.

Note:

None of the 22,439,000 outstanding options were exercisable as at 31 March 2025 (2024:
None of the 22,870,000 outstanding options were exercisable as at 31 March 2024). No
share options were exercised during the year so there was no related weighted average share
price for exercise of the options during the year (2024 Nil).
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Share options granted on

AT BHARR 2 % 17 A
2 April 2024 31 July 2024
—T e —ZT_mEF
/MA=H +A=+—H
HK$8.28/ 87T HK$8.06 /87T
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25.0% 25.0%
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32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award 32

B JA R R 8 K% IR 4D SR B &t

Schemes (Continued)

Share Award Schemes

On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “2013 Share Award
Scheme"”) was adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The award period for shares could be awarded under the 2013 Share
Award Scheme ended on 26 August 2023. The scheme remains
valid and effective for 15 years from the date of adoption.

On 27 August 2023, a new share award scheme (the “2023 Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2023 Share

2l (%)

Iz 10 22 st &l
RZZE—=F/\AZ++tR8  ARAIE
EREM—EROERGE( 2T —=
FROBEEE]) - RE-T—=FK
MRBF SR TRO 2BEBHARER
“E-=F NAZ+NERL - &t
MABMERMA BT T RFLE ©

R=ZZ-_=F\A=t++tB ARAES
SR — R AT & ([ =F _:$
Bein 2 Rhat &) » BRIERTTRURSIER

Award Scheme will remain valid and effective for 10 years from the —E - =FRHO BRI EIE B ERA EIH%_
date of adoption. ST FERERFBERREFRT] -

During the year ended 31 March 2025, 3,792,933 (2024 nil) shares
had been awarded to selected participants under the 2023 Share
Award Scheme and no (2024: 3,060,083) shares were awarded to
selected participants pursuant to the 2013 Share Award Scheme.

BE_ZE_RF4=A=1t—HIEFE"
3,792,933 (= F U4 : ﬂ)ﬂxfﬁmﬁ
BT =FRNDEETER L

2% 1$%ﬂ(_7_m¢ 3060083

Movement of the award shares under the 2013 Share Award i) R IR — T —=FRIDRBET B
Scheme and 2023 Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 TREBE2EE -BE_Z_RF=A
March 2025 are as follows: =T—HIEFE  RE-_Z-—=FkKHE
BiEtE R — S =F RO RS2 R
i&in 2 & T :
Number of shares
Fair value R#%E
per share As at Granted Vested Lapsed As at
(Notea) 1 April 2024 during during during 31 March 2025
Date of grant SRAYE H-B=mE the year theyear  theyear ~ W=E=J%  \Vesting period (Note b)
RiAH (Hita) MA-H FREH EREE  EA%R  ZB=t-B  BBHKHb)
HKS
B
2 August 2021 14.7 274N - (420,627) (6,844) - 31July2022-31 July 2024
“T_-%\AZH “E_C£tA=1-H
BFIECMELA=T-R
1 August 2022 15 434,066 - (220582)  (12,160) 201,324 31July 2023-31July 2025
“E__FN\A-H “E_CHHA=1-R
ECECRELA=T-A
31 July 2023 9.6 2,883,185 - (955,782)  (134,307) 1,793,096 31 July 2024 - 31 July 2026
“E-EYA=T-R “BMELA=T-A
BIEINECASTR
31 July 2024 13 - 3,792,933 (18,733)  (175,615) 3,598,585 31 July 2025-31 July 2027
“E-NELA=T-H ZERELAST-A
ECRCtELA=T-A
3,744,722 3792933  (1,615724)  (328,926) 5,593,005
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32 Share Option Scheme and Share Award

Schemes (Continued)

Share Award Schemes (Continued)

Movement of the award shares under the 2013 Share Award
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:

32 R{HESERKRDEBE

gl (&)

Bt R EhEt 3 ()

HE-_ZE-_MH&E=A=+—HILFE -
BE—Z—=FRHEEIFE 2 EBERK

2 EEBMT
Number of shares
Fair value i
per share As at Granted Vested Lapsed Asat
(Notea) 1 April 2023 during during during 31 March 2024
Date of grant BRATE NIFC=F the year the year theyear  AWZZZME  Vesting period (Note b)
RitAE (Hia) mA-A EREL EREE ERgM ZA=T-B BEH(H)
HKS
AT
31 July 2020 14.0 435,468 - (433,969) (1,499 - 31July2021-31July 2023
ZECEELA=T-H “E-EtA=T-BE
ZRCCEYAST-R
2 August 2021 147 912,429 - (461,153) (23,805) 7471 31 uly 2022- 31 July 2024
it S 1V i 2 [ o £
R MELA=T-R
1 August 2022 115 697,188 - (229,958) (33,164) 434,066 31]uly 2023- 31 July 2025
ZZZ2ENA-R ZZC=EEA=T-RE
ZR-RELAST-R
31 July 2023 96 - 3,060,083 (24,074) (152,824) 2,883,185 31 July 2024 - 31 July 2026
ZZ=EEA=T-R B MELA=T-BE
ZBORELAS TR
2,045,085 3,060,083 (1,149,154) 21129) 3,744,722
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32

Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Schemes (Continued)

Share Award Schemes (Continued)

During the year, the Group purchased 3,812,959 (2024: nil) of
its own shares through the trustee of the 2023 Share Award
Scheme from the open market. The total amount paid to acquire
the shares was approximately HK$32,154,000 (2024: nil) and has
been deducted from shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2025.
The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for the
schemes were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As at 31
March 2025, there were 2,465,792 treasury shares (2024 4,066,279
treasury shares) and 3,794,226 treasury shares (2024: nil) held
through the trustee of the 2013 Share Award Scheme and the 2023
Share Award Scheme respectively.

Notes:

(@) The fair value of the award shares was based on the closing price per share at the
date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

(b) The award shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the award
shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date
and the balance of the remaining award shares on the third anniversary date of
the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of
vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter. Management has revised
its estimates of number of shares that are expected to vest based on the market
vesting conditions.

() During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors
of the Company, participated in the 2013 Share Award Scheme.
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33 Commitments 33 &IE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BERRAIE
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had the following capital RZE_RF=A=+—H  &x&BZ

commitments:

BAAELEMT

2025 2024
R-B-HF R-F_F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BB R
plant and equipment
Authorised and contracted for BHENERD 25,104 37,136
Authorised but not contracted for BRUEERED 369,729 478,916
394,833 516,052
(b) Committed leases not yet commenced (b) EARFABIAEEE

RZE-_RAF=A=+—H HEE&RE
R AR R RFA E S SR (M R B4R ) FE ST a0

As at 31 March 2025, the total future lease payments for leases
committed but not yet commenced were payable as follows:

T

2025 2024
—E-HE B it
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHT

Properties ES
Within one year —FR 10,981 11,197
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 47,742 40,155
Over five years A T 8,641 2,232
67,364 53,584
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34 Financial Guarantees

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had given guarantees totaling
approximately HK$1,280,660,000 (2024: HK$1,920,309,000) to
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s bankers have given guarantee
in lieu of deposits amounting to approximately HK$162,642,000
(2024: HK$161,783,000) to the landlords and utility providers of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

35 Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

34

35

B R R

R-ZE-_RAF=A=+—8 "  KRAFA
CREBREEEELNB AR ZRITE
BEREERE £491,280,660,0008 7L (—
T PO : 1,920,309,0007T) °

R-BE-RAF=A=+—H8 AEEZ
FERBITEAAEEMBAR ZEER
NAZREHERERER  UREZS
549 /162,642,000 T (—ZF — M
% :161,783,00087T) °

ARKEHE 27 HE
RZE-_RF=A=+—"H x&£ER

BARHE REHEMNARREYR 2
RIEHEFRERNAT ¢

2025 2024

—ECHF —TPF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not later than one year —&FR 18,771 18,849
Later than one year and not later than five years —FBZERAFR 11,330 9,745
30,101 28,594
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36 Related Party Transactions 36 BAHMARZ
(@) The Group has the following significant (a) FAXEEEBEHELIBEUTZ
transactions with related party during the BARS :
year:
2025 2024
—E-RE —TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Operating lease rentals paid MBS EEBERS ¢
to a related party:
- Tinway Investments Limited* - RERERR A 2,585 2,536
* Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by (i) Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, (ii) ¥ORBEBRERERATHOEBELL  ()RBNE
an associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; and (iii) a company wholly owned by Mr EZBEA L)\&(IH) F'ﬁEE BRXEELEHEA
Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny. Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo ZA Tﬁﬁé‘—tﬂ%ﬁ ﬁi R EER

Hoi Kwong, Sunny are Directors of the Company.

The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related

R 5 TR A R B R T PRS2

BRYVERFETT

party.
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEAEME

2025 2024
s TS —E_mEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances M KRG 16,375 26,698
Fees we 100 100
Discretionary bonuses SEREIETEAL 12,860 16,326
Contributions to pension schemes RN FHEIHR 90 126
Share-based compensation expense LARAD A B 6,812 7,988
36,237 51,238
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37 Statement of Financial Position and

37 ARAMBRARE #ES

Reserve Movement of the Company

B

(@) Statement of financial position of the (a) ZAATEKEAMRTE
Company
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
—E_RE =Syt 2=
=A=+—H —A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MIEE FET FEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B ARRKE 331,802 331,802
Amount due from subsidiaries Al B NGIE e 1,414,119 1,530,217
1,745,921 1,862,019
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBLEEIER 101 381
Total assets BEMARE 1,746,022 1,862,400
EQUITY RRE
Capital and reserves KAGREREA
attributable to the equity B R R #E
holders of the Company
Share capital [N 58,000 58,570
Share premium %10 (8 37(b) 575,643 621,122
Shares held for share f& 82 EhET &I
award scheme B 2 D 37(b) (72,000) (73,722)
Other reserves H bk 37(b) 309,415 289,312
Retained earnings R A 37(b) 874,663 967,178
Total equity RREE 1,745,721 1,862,460
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REEE
Other creditors and accrued B fiRIBERETER
liabilities 301 (60)
Total equity and liabilities BREREEHEEE 1,746,022 1,862,400

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 16 June 2025 and was signed on its behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman
FE
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LO TAK SHING, PETER
R

Executive Director
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37 Statement of Financial Position and

(b)

Reserve Movement of the Company

B (&)

37 ARRMIEARRR R S

(Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARQF)FBEER
Capital Share-based  Shares held for Contributed
Share redemption  compensation ~ share award Surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve scheme (note ) earnings Total
Ex WEfxft  Rb%EHE EfEs
RHEE BE&% il Fae BRZhf (ki) REER 5
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FEL FEn 71 71 71 FE1 7L
Balance as at 1 April 2024 RZZ-MEMA-REH 621,122 152,034 4281 B 94,467 967,178 1,803,890
Employee share award scheme (BB R {3512
- value of employee services -EERBEE - - 261 - - - 261
Employee share option scheme B R HiExE
- value of employee senices -EERHEE - - 15871 - - - 15871
Vesting shares of share REE RS
award scheme - - (18,379) 33,876 - (15,497) -
Shares repurchased and cancelled B Rzt (45,479) - - - - - (45,479)
Purchase of shares held for share ~ EABRGZEHEMEEDRD
award scheme - - - (32,154) - - (32,154)
Profit attrioutable to equity RRIRERE B
holders of the Company - - - - - 250,000 250,000
Dividends RE - - - - - (327,018) (327,018)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 RZSZRE-A=-RE 575,63 152,034 62,914 (72,000) 94,467 874,663 1,687,721
Balance as at 1 April 2023 RIEZ=FEA-RER 621,122 152,034 21319 (98979) 94,467 877,119 1,667,082
Employee share award scheme (BB R 1E]
- value of employee services -EERBER - - 18077 - - - 18,077
Employee share option scheme B R E
- value of employee semices - BERKEERE - - 18,823 - - - 18,823
Vesting shares of share REBHENRNEE
award scheme - - (15,408) 25,257 - (9.849) -
Profitattrioutable to equity RRTIRERE B
holders of the Company - - - - - 350,000 350,000
Dividends S - - - - - (250,09) (250,09)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 W_B-RME=A=1-R& 621,122 152,034 4281 (73,722) 94467 97,178 1,803,890
[0) Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group reorganisation made in prior years (i) BERRHRETELRAEBNBEFENEMRM

and represented the difference between the value of investment in a subsidiary
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange thereon. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it
is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due
or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
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Principal Investment Properties

FTEREYE

Description
P

1. Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on
the First Floor, Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling
Mall and Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
NEDRAEFHNHEB10-165%
BEERS 117 —ENISHARCEG

2. Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on
the Ground Floor, Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 and 173 Castle Peak Road
and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FAEESILE 167 171 RIT3%R
A 47-51 SR ERANE—E 3 REHE D

3. 2/F, Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 & 173 Castle Peak Road and
Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FARSESILE 167 171 RIT3HK
KMET47-51 5K ERAE &

4. Shop A of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase |,
No. 688 Nathan Road and
No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
JVBERE AR UE 688 5 R B AT 655
W A0 E— BB B 30D A4

Lot number
b R 4R 5%

New Kowloon Inland Lot
No. 5086
N EERIER 5086 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZEMHER 2235

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
EETHEL 22355

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JUBERIHEER 1262 5%
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Approximate
internal floor
area (sqft)
A RED
BHEE
(EFR)

2,608

392

4,720

1,946

Type
B

Shop
L]

Shop
[k

Shop
L]

Shop
[k

ARLEBAR AT 2024/25 F3f

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R
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Principal Investment Properties

FTEREYXE

Approximate
internal floor

area (sqft)
A WA

Description Lot number BHEE
it 1o BR 4R 55 (EFR)
5. Shop C of Portion B on the Basement, Kowloon Inland 3,378

Argyle Centre, Phase |, Lot No. 1262

No. 688 Nathan Road and NBEAHLER 1262 5%

No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon

BERT AR BUE 688 5 LI B £ 65 5%

W A0 % — B B 360 C 4
6. Shop B on the Ground Floor of the Podium, Inland Lot No. 8423 1,313

Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, P ER 8423 5%

Hong Kong

ERCERRE18WEEH UM TBE

7. The entire 1/F., Metropole Building, Kowloon Inland 2,306

Nos. 53-63 Peking Road and Lot No. 7728

Nos. 12 & 12A-C Hankow Road, BEMIER 7728 5%

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

NEEADBILFE53-63FREAE 12 &
NRACHEHAE 182E
Total 16,663

it

Type

Shop
L]

Shop
[k

Shop
L]

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Long-term
&8

Medium-term

R
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Principal Self-Used Properties

TEBRYZE

Description

1.

i

Shop Nos. A10 (Portion), A11,
G13 (Portion) & G14, G/F, and

Shop Nos. 157-159, 1/F, Tai On Building, Nos.

57/87 Shau Kei Wan Road, Shau Kei Wan,

Hong Kong
BERGEEGEEEST/87%

AL T A10(55), A1,

G13(H5) & G145 R

118 157-159 %4

Shops H and I, G/F,, King's House,
Nos. 969 & 971 King's Road,
Nos. 1, 3 & 5 Tong Chong Street,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
BBHIRBREE 69 & 971 R
BEH, 3&5FREAEM THRIE

Shop Nos. 13-13A, 15-18, 53, 53A and
55-59, 1/F., Kwai Chung Plaza, Nos.
7-11 Kwai Foo Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories

MAELBEERT-1NFRBES 12
13-13A, 15-18, 53, 53A }2 55-59 5748

Portion B of Shop N95, 1/F.,
Nos. 1-11, 15-17 Mount Sterling Mall &
Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen,
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
EHNAEENNZEE10-165%
BEEES1-11, 151758 11 N5 B {5

Approximate
internal floor
area (sqft)

A R
Lot number EHEE
b R 4R 5% (FRR)
Shau Kei Wan Inland 3,959
Lot No. 738
LHEERHER 73857
Marine Lot No. 703 4,370
B HER 703 5%
Kwai Chung Town 3,423
Lot No. 398
SR TIHER 398 57
New Kowloon Inland 3,860

Lot No. 5086
FLEE M HER 5086 57

237

Type
B

Shop
Gl

Shop
B

Shop
]

Shop
Gl
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Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

P

Long-term

=3t

Medium-term

P

Medium-term

P
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Principal Self-Used Properties
FEHRYE

N

3

Description

5.

i

Shop B of Portion B, Basement,
including floor space under the escalators,
Argyle Centre, Phase I,
No. 688 Nathan Road and
No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
BEAT MR NE 688 5% TR B £ 17 65 5%
H AR OE 1 EEB 3D
(BREBTHEEZM)

Store B, M/F & 1/F., Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 & 173 Castle Peak Road and
No. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

FAREESILE167,171 & 17350 K
KMETA7-51 K ERAREMIEB K118

Shop A, G/F, including Cockloft,
Offices A, B & C, 1/F,, and
Offices A, B, C &D, 2/F,
Lee Kiu Building, No. 51 Jordan Road,
Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon

ABEI 268 51 5%
FEREHT A (BERE) -
1A BRCHEFER21EA B, CRDHRHH

Shop A on the Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong

ERCEERB 1BRETT UM TAR

Shop C on the Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong

BASEERBE18FEEPOM T CH

Lot number
b R 4R 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
NEEAHIER 1262 57

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZETIHER 22357

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 9894
JUBERIHEER 9894 57

Inland Lot No. 8423

A ER 8423 5%

Inland Lot No. 8423

M ER 8423 5%
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Approximate
internal floor
area (sqft)
A WA
BHEE
(EFR)

4,677

5,202

4,769

5,650

2,273

Type
B

Shop
Gl

Shop
L]

Office

Shop
B

Shop
L]

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

P

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Long-term
=

Long-term

=
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Principal Self-Used Properties
FTEBRAY=E

Approximate
internal floor
area (sqft)

A WA
Description Lot number BHEE Type Lease term
it 1o BR 4R 55 (FHR) EE HAH
10. Shop D on the Ground Floor of the Podium, Inland Lot No. 8423 578 Shop Long-term
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, A EL 8423 5% Bk R
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BREEERE 18EEP LM T D
11. Shop E on the Ground Floor of the Podium, Inland Lot No. 8423 179 Shop Long-term
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, M ER 8423 5% Bk R H
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BESBERE 1BHETTOMTEM
12. Shop Nos. 1, 2, 3,5, 6, 7 Lot No. 3798 in D.D. 120 3,180 Shop Medium-term
(including the corresponding part of D.D. 12018 3798 % [k A
yard adjacent thereto), 8, 21 and
22, G/F, Orion Court,
No. 23 Mau Tan Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories
AT 23 5%
FRERMT1,2,3,5,6,7
(B R EARAR 2 2B 2 ARFE R,
8,21 R 2254
13. Factory Unit G, 11/F, Kwai Chung Town 3,388 Factory Medium-term
City Industrial Complex, Lot No. 339 B5 5
Nos. 71-77 Yau Ma Hom Road and EORmHbER 339 5%
Nos. 116-122 Kwok Shui Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
B RZERMMEIE 71-77 5% K&
BlImEE 116-122 5%
WM IEHL111BERG
14. Unit 13, 4/F, Sun Fung Centre, Tsuen Wan Town 1,219 Factory Medium-term
No. 88 Kwok Shui Road, Tsuen Wan, Lot No. 344 = A
New Territories ZEMHER 344 5%
AL EE R 88 5%

e 413555
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Principal Self-Used Properties

TEBRYZE

Description
P

15. Unit 15, 4/F., Sun Fung Centre,
No. 88 Kwok Shui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
AL BB R 88 5
e L AR5 RER

16. Factory Unit 5 and 5A, G/F.,
Tak Lee Industrial Centre,
No. 8 Tsing Yeung Circuit,
Tuen Mun, New Territories
HATEFELA8 W
BMIZEA LM TS RSASER

17. Unit A1 on G/F, Tuen Mun Industrial Centre,
No. 2 San Ping Circuit, Tuen Mun,
New Territories
B PIR T AT 257
P TER O T A1SRER

18. Café de Coral Centre,
5-13 Wo Shui Street, Fo Tan,
Sha Tin, New Territories
AL BN RARTRE 513 AR LS O

19. No. 17 Dai Fu Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories

RN TEBAREE 175

20. No. 19 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories

RN TEBARZME 195

Lot number
b R 4R 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 344
ZEMHER 3445

Tuen Mun Town
Lot No. 163
L FITIIER 163 5%

Tuen Mun Town
Lot No. 76
TP HbER 76 5%

Sha Tin Town
Lot No. 2
YWHTIHER 29

Tai Po Town
Lot No. 1 and the
Extension thereto
RITHIER 1557 &
BEHD

Tai Po Town
Lot No. 1 and the
Extension thereto
RITHIER 1557 &
BEHD

240

Approximate
internal floor
area (sqft)
A WA
BHEE
(EFR)

1,384

4,355

9,244

160,503

108,517

209,674

Type
B

Factory

Eite

Warehouse
BE

Factory

Office and Factory

Office and Factory

MRENEE

Office and Factory

MRENEE

Lease term
HAH

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R



Principal Self-Used Properties
TEBRAYE

Approximate
gross floor area

ARLEBAR AT 2024/25 Fif

(sqm)

Description BABIEEER Type Lease term

Fat (F7HK) BE A

21. Units 2, 3 & 4, Basement and 2-1, 3-1 & 4-1, 1,794 Shop Medium-term
Level 1, Dexing Building, Jianshe Road, Bk HEA
Luohu District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,

China
BB R AR B MR R B
BEAEE2, 3 4ETER—E

22. Unit A3, Level 1 and Unit B3, Level 2, 1,144 Shop Medium-term
Fushan Garden, Yingbin Avenue, [k R EA
Gongbei District, Zhuhai, Guangdong Province,

China
HEERERSHIRDERE
BHCERE—EAIRAR_EBINRA

23. Shop A, G/F, Edificios Lei Ka, Lei Nin, 517 Shop Medium-term
Lei Va, Nos. 48B-48C Avenida de Horta e Costa, [k A A
Macau

R E T ARSI 48B-48C St N A%

24. No. 10 Chunfen Road, Yonghe Zone, 34,155 Factory Medium-term
Guangzhou Economic and Technological = R EA
Development District, Guangzhou, China

R EMNEER MR FEEEED I 105

25. No.44 West Shangxing Road, Shangjiao District, 5,400 Factory Medium-term
Changan Town, Dongguan City, 5 I
Guangdong Province, China

HEEREREMRTE L AT E FFFRK 4455
Total in Hong Kong (sqft) 540,404
BBEF(EER)
Total in Mainland China and Macau (sqm) 43,010

R At R RP ARG (F oK)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FEHBESE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
For the five years ended 31 March 2025

2N =|

BEER

HE_Z_hF=A=+—HILRhEAFE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
“E-RE —ZT-mF —ZT-_=% —T--F &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 8,568,317 8,691,449 8,024,044 7,508,753 6,714,255
Cost of sales HERA (7,675,662) (7,702,163) (7,321,395) (6,961,032) (6,339,067)
Gross profit EF 892,655 989,286 702,649 547,721 375,188
Other income and other HA A R EAF
(losses)/gains, net (B18) /&7 (73,276) (33,257) (12,733) 42,29 561,011
Administrative expenses THBER (494,493) (503,213) (486,079) (458,843) (462,619
Operating profit ZE R 324,886 452,816 203,837 131,174 473,580
Finance income p 3N 46,652 45,304 38,847 7,659 8,125
Finance costs TR (104,115) (108,592) (98,508) (88,044) (91,159)
Profit before income tax BB AR A 267,423 389,528 144,176 50,789 390,546
Income tax expense P ER (32,312) (56,313) (32,989) (27,939) (29,996)
Profit for the year AEZHF 23511 333,215 111,187 22,850 360,550
Profit attributable to: PSR -
Equity holders of the Company RRARRERE A 232,744 330,454 110,353 21,214 359,130
Non-controlling interests IR 2,367 2,761 834 1,636 1,420
235,111 333,215 111,187 22,850 360,550
Dividends RE 232,002 333,852 222,567 163,997 222,567
Dividend per share BRERS HK40 cents HK57 cents HK38 cents HK28 cents HK38 cents
4074l 57 7l 38754l 28 7541l 38754
Basic earnings per share BREART HK$0.41 HK$0.57 HK$0.19 HK$0.04 HK$0.62
04187 0.57 %7 0.19%7 0.04 87T 0.62/7T
Diluted earnings per share BREERT HK$0.40 HK$0.57 HK$0.19 HK$0.04 HK$0.62
04087 0.57 %7 0.19%7 0.04 87T 0.62/7T
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FEHBESE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mEMBARRT
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2025 RZZE-_hFE=RA=+—H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E_RF “EoE —E-=F =S &
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FAT FHET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE¥ - BB NRE 1,464,996 1,552,675 1,617,702 1,586,070 1,518,982
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,159,044 2,366,096 2,413,162 2,158,474 2,124,383
Investment properties BEME 402,100 440,300 559,200 514,800 542,700
Intangible assets B EE 1,104 1,116 1,153 1,191 1,229
Deferred income tax assets FEERBEE 99,021 66,214 62,955 67,714 70,733
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFIAEMZE
through other comprehensive income WAZEREE 38,787 74,499 86,746 95,931 96,951
Retirement benefit assets RINGEHEE 7,293 4,208 3,098 2,878 542
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ 3ERBITEMFIE LS 307,271 301,550 303,725 293,263 283,622

4,479,616 4,806,658 5,047,741 4,720,321 4,639,142

Current assets MEBEE

Inventories FE 220,637 230,288 268,243 303,542 234,924
Trade and other receivables R R H YRR 124,515 152,510 138,036 199,550 102,539
Prepayments and deposits BENZERRS 84,648 62,808 44,832 55,074 51,490
Current income tax recoverable R 17,181 712 4,510 7,773 32,844

Bank deposits with maturity over HARR A5 ={ A LA 89
three months PITEH - - = = 21,222
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEEE 1,053,633 1,260,948 1,671,978 1,585,586 2,072,512
1,500,614 1,707,266 2,127,599 2,151,525 2,515,531
Total assets EEAE 5,980,230 6,513,924 7,175,340 6,871,846 7,154,673
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FEHBESE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

W-_ZE_RF=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2025

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—ECRE —EC-ME —E-=F —E-C —ZE-—
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FET FET FET
Equity fR i
Capital and reserves attributable to RRARRERE AEL
equity holders of the Company RA R
Share capital A 58,000 58,570 58,570 58,570 58,570
Other reserves Hinf#E 1,028,676 1,094,802 1,044,822 1,005,384 988,630
Retained earnings REBER 1,645,610 1,746,476 1,680,202 1,754,787 1,981,637
2,732,286 2,899,848 2,783,594 2,818,741 3,028,837
Non-controlling interests IR 12,450 10,665 8,469 7,635 5,999
Total equity gt 2,744,736 2,910,513 2,792,063 2,826,376 3,034,836
Liabilities =
Non-current liabilities FEnean
Deferred income tax liabilities EXERIEEE 48,957 32,860 32,946 36,225 33,424
Provision for long service payments KRS S B4E 63,722 68,398 62,080 41,548 30,629
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,093,324 1,289,060 1,508,455 1,341,995 1,368,550
Long-term borrowings REEX 225,000 305,000 - 899,690 999,433
1,431,003 1,695,318 1,603,481 2,319,458 2,432,036
Current liabilities TEE(E
Trade payables EEEMIRIA 204,567 210,767 225,881 167,408 178,183
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HinfETERE
NIEFTER 764,916 804,370 798,895 682,823 640,378
Current income tax liabilities BVEFIR B E 19,022 38,889 14,441 14,365 7,719
Lease liabilities HEBRE 735,986 774,067 760,629 681,416 681,521
Current portion of long-term REERAASRHS
borrowings 80,000 80,000 899,950 100,000 100,000
Short-term borrowings BHER - = 80,000 80,000 80,000
1,804,491 1,908,093 2,779,796 1,726,012 1,687,801
Total liabilities BEEE 3,235,494 3,603,411 4,383,277 4,045,470 4,119,837
Total equity and liabilities REREEARE 5,980,230 6,513,924 7,175,340 6,871,846 7,154,673
Net assets per share SREEFE HK$4.73 HK$4.97 HK$4.77 HK$4.83 HK$5.18
4738 4978 4778 4.83 7T 5188
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